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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHREE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to
present the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

2016 has been a difficult year with severe challenge for
the Group. The Group has been affected adversely by the
deconsolidation of the pawnshop operations (which is disclosed
in details in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section)
and a significant loss of approximately HK$970 million was
resulted.

Overall speaking, the financial markets in both Hong Kong and
China are volatile. However, the Group still managed to complete
the acquisition of the financial related operations including the
securities brokerage, asset management and insurance brokerage
and commence those businesses during the year.

PROSPECT

Despite the challenges encountered by the Group in 2016, |
believe that 2017 is a year full of opportunity. The Group has
been gradually diverted into the financial service business in Hong
Kong as well as in China. In Hong Kong, we will further develop
our operations in securities brokerage, loan financing, insurance
brokerage and asset management. In China, we will develop the
financing consultancy business which was newly acquired by the
end of 2016 and will continue to identify opportunity to add
value to the existing operations and explore new way to expand
the business to another level.

The Group will continue to explore new investment opportunities
including but not limited to financial service related business
with the aim to enhance the returns to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHREE

APPRECIATION e

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to ~ RNAZEHMKE REXESSRHL2EETA
thank our staffs for their efforts and contributions to the Group.  AEB{EEHEHME H KB ZERL o KA IR
| would also like to extend my gratitude to our Shareholders, &SR E EBBHERSHTEEATHLTAEE
business partners and professional parties for their continued KB X FRRHE -

support.

Liu Kequan FE

Chairman ZRR

Hong Kong BB

17 March 2017 —E-tF=A+tH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
MEEJE n—_l- &73 *ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT E CI=PNE- B

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial ~ ANEBFBH ERELER  TERYWEERE -
property development, general trading of consumable goods, HERHN—MRE S BTHEL RBREL &
securities brokerage, insurance brokerage, asset management FEE&EMH&Q%%(@%E%@% B X
and loan financing operation includes loan financing, loan N K#EARS)

referral and consultancy services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year of 2016 ~AEBER T — NFHNRARD HEEH N

are stated in the table below: T
For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLFE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue from: REATEEZRA :
Industrial property development TERAMERRE 8,904 13,651
General trading —REZ 36,448 -
Loan financing EXEE 22,878 102,305
Securities brokerage B 2,356 -
Insurance brokerage R 4,581 -
Asset management BEEE 8 -
75,175 115,956
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T—IF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THRT FHET
Segment (loss) profit from: KENATREZ (E18) &AM :
Industrial property development TERYMEERRE (7.637) (10,547)
General trading —RE5 1,035 (1,813)
Loan financing ERmE (43,568) 64,197
Securities brokerage BHLELR (1,217) =
Insurance brokerage R s 111 (27)
Asset management BEEERE 1 =
(51,275) 51,810
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industrial Property Development

The revenue from the warehouse operation mainly represented
the rental income for the warehouse storage received from the
tenants. The warehouse of the Group is located in Taicang,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the total rentable area of which is
approximately 48,600 square meters.

In 2015, the warehouse was fully occupied in the majority of
time. However, in the second half of 2016, certain warehouse
lease agreements were expired which were either not yet
renewed or new tenants were yet to identify. As a result, the
income from warehouse operation was dropped by approximately
HK$4.7 million to HK$8.9 million as compared to the year of
2015. Segment loss of the warehouse operation, on the other
hand, was slightly improved from approximately HK$10.5
million in 2015 to approximately HK$7.6 million which is mainly
contributed to the decrease in interest expenses as the partial
repayment of bank loan was made together with a stringent
control in overall expenses.

The Group is actively seeking potential business partners for the
vacant warehouse space. With its proximity to Shanghai and its
convenience in term of transportation, the warehouse maintains
a key advantage in attracting new business partners. At the same
time, we will also look into opportunity to utilize the warehouse
to facilitate the operation of other segment including but not
limited to general trading operation if possible.

General Trading

The general trading business of the Group has been inactive in
2015 due to decrease in demand of raw materials as a result
of the economic slowdown in the PRC. However, the Group
continued to identify opportunity to revive the general trading
segment and in the second half of 2016, the Group is able to
establish an cooperation with one of the major distribution agent
of Moutai (i.e. a distilled Chinese liquor) and commence trading
of Moutai and other popular Chinese liquors in the authorized
regions in the PRC including but not limited to Jiangsu Province.
Revenue from the trading segment of approximately HK$36.4
million and segment profit of approximately HK$1 million were
resulted in 2016.

BEEENWR DM

TERYFERR

EEEBNRATEZEARBEFLRENEERF
E&Tﬂiﬂ&)\OK%E’U%E&E@#ﬂ BTIEA K
2 HE@n] L HEmEBEL A48,600F 7K -

7S — ZEE T é}%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁﬂwﬁﬁﬁz
HAE100% - AM R_E—ARNETEF &
FTErEHERZI M EHER R EDE
FHEP BN AEEBNKRER _ZT—HF
B 2L 494,700,0007% JT £8,900,00078 7T ° 5 —

FH EEXEBENLSIEBEERA T —AFY
1o,5oo,ooo,arn%‘“wzaﬁzf;‘ﬁ,iw 600,000 7T, *

FERREETHRITERMN EERIEZEREHA
Ezé@zﬂ,%ﬁﬂszmd FrEk o

ZF'*.IEFWW@ S E R A AR

TEMEEEH REMM LSRR BERD
B BERGEARSIFTEFEHANETEE
oA -HMERATEATSERSER
FFﬁMﬁZ&ﬁﬁﬂ“*ﬁﬁ]%fx BREETRR—
BEHFER-

—RES

AR BEEERERESRM BT IR — K
EHEBR _T—RFANER- A $’§
BEAESKEERIR-—REZER TR

—NETHE REERIE— %”‘*(EHEP
BEEEAE) RALHRERY A FRET AR

I?'ﬂﬁ“ﬁ’\qﬂ B i b [ ( a%@ﬂﬁﬁémﬁ%é)

ETFeREMRTHIRBEEZEZEK R
—E—RF 5’3%/‘45211512\277%36400000
B IT 0 2 BB F 49 41,000,000/ 7T ©

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH Q



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Regarded as one of the most popular Chinese liquor in the PRC,
the demand of Moutai is relatively stable with a consistent and
steady growth on a yearly basis. In addition, the turnover of
such popular product is relatively quick which helps to maintain
a healthy cashflow of the operation. The Group will continue to
expand and develop the trading segment and further strengthen
our existing operation team to improve the efficiency of the
workflow.

Loan Financing

Loan financing segment includes the provision of mortgage and
other loans services and financing consultancy and loan referral
services in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

In 2015, this segment also included the pawnshop operation
in Shanghai which was de-consolidated from the Group with
effect from 2016. Please refer to the section under heading
“De-consolidation of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan” for detailed
explanation of the deconsolidation.

Greater China Financing Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was granted the Money Lenders
Licence in early 2016 to start money lending business in
Hong Kong. As the Hong Kong Monetary Authority has been
implementing tight controls on lending activities of the financial
institutions under its surveillance, our money lending business
is positioned as an alternative to licensed banks by providing
mortgage loans, securities financing and other secured loan
services, with the competitiveness of diversified financing and
loan arrangement and quick response to the market.

In 2016, turnover of approximately HK$22.9 million was recorded
which mainly represented the interest income generated from
the loan portfolio in Hong Kong and the financing consultancy
income received by the financing consultancy operation in
Beijing newly acquired by the end of 2016. A segment loss of
approximately HK$43.6 million was resulted in 2016 due to an
impairment allowance is made for certain secured loans and
interests receivables amounting to approximately HK$62 million.
The Group has taken legal actions to recover the amount but
full provision for impairment is provided in the meantime. As at
31 December 2016, the balance of the loans receivables was
approximately HK$37 million. Interest rate of the loans ranged
from 12% to 36% per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the loan financing operation in Hong Kong, the Group
has established stringent internal loan management system,
including credit assessment and risk management. In
addition, we cooperate tightly with external professionals for
property valuation, credit check and legal compliance and risk
management.

Though Hong Kong's mortgage market has been more
challenging in the past two years while the property market was
experiencing downturn correction in the first half year of 2016,
the quick sell-out of the first hand properties and the recent
upward property price indices are sending promising signals,
driven by the regain of the financial market. We will continue to
actively explore more business and expand our loan products in
the meanwhile elevating loan scrutiny policy and risk control.

By the end of 2016, the Group has acquired a business which
provides financing consultancy and loan referral services in the
PRC at a consideration of approximately HK$128.5 million. The
consideration is to be settled as follows:

(i) as to HK$68,515,168 payable upon completion, in which,
HK$20,000,000 shall be settled in cash and HK$48,515,168
shall be settled by way of allotment and issue of total of
194,060,671 consideration shares to the vendor at the issue
price of HK$0.25 per share;

(i) as to HK$30,000,000 (subject to adjustment) shall be settled
in cash upon the next business day after the issue of 2016
audited financial statements;

(i

=

as to HK$20,000,000 (subject to adjustment) shall be settled
in cash upon the next business day after the issue of 2017
audited financial statements; and

(iv) as to the remaining balance of HK$10,000,000 (subject to
adjustment) shall be settled in cash upon the next business
day after the issue of 2018 audited financial statements.

The vendor agreed to provide a guarantee of consolidated
net profit after tax of RMB10,000,000, RMB20,000,000
and RMB30,000,000 for the year of 2016, 2017 and 2018
respectively.

Following the completion of the acquisition by the end of 2016,
the new operation will contribute positively to the results of the
loan financing segment as well as the performance of the Group
as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Securities Brokerage

Upon completion of the acquisition of a licensed company,
which is licenced and approved by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") to carry out Type 1 (dealing
in securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO"), in March 2016, the Group officially
ventured into the securities brokerage and dealing business.
Revenue from the securities brokerage and the segment loss for
the year is approximately HK$2.4 million and HK$1.2 million
respectively. As the operation is newly incorporated into the
Group, we are still building up the team and trying to improve
the profitability of the operation including but not limited to
streamline the process of the operation, leverage our existing
supporting functions of the Group to lower the overall costs
such as centralize the operation office in one location, etc. and
identify ways to broader income stream.

The securities brokerage business will provide a variety of
securities related services including securities brokerage, securities
trading and margin financing. If suitable opportunity arises, we
will also provide placing and underwriting services to our clients.

Insurance Brokerage

Upon the completion of the acquisition of a company with the
insurance brokerage licence in late 2015, the company is formally
renamed as Greater China Wealth & Risk Management Limited
("GCWRM") in January 2016.

Revenue from insurance brokerage and a segment profit of
approximately HK$4.6 million and HK$0.1 million was resulted in
2016.

GCWRM, acting as an insurance broker, is a member of
Professional Insurance Brokers Association and also a principal
intermediary for carrying on MPF regulated activities. It engages
in the insurance and MPF scheme brokerage business and
provides a comprehensive professional insurance and financial
planning services to satisfy clients’ needs. As an agent of the
clients, GCWRM tailor-made financial solutions to each of
the clients and provide an independent advisory services in
connection with insurance products. The line of businesses
include long term (including linked long term) and general
insurance business plus MPF regulated activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GCWRM establishes business relationship with the insurance
companies by entering into the distribution agreements after
an in-depth due diligence process. It provides financial planning
services to clients through licensed representatives and the
majority of the business is being generated from referrals and
direct marketing.

In 2016, GCWRM commenced the insurance business by adding
different insurance products, adding different business partners
in order to diversify product varieties to ensure the steady growth
of insurance business. GCWRM also established the wealth
management team by building a full skeleton of the wealth
management team which include sales and administration staffs.

With the increasing demand of insurance products in the PRC,
GCWRM's client base are strategically broadened. The Group
will continue to diversify the business varieties and widen the
recurring income stream. In addition, general insurance will be
another income stream to support the steady growth of the
business in the coming future.

Asset Management

The acquisition of a licensed company, which is licensed and
approved by SFC to carry out Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO, was completed in March
2016.

The Group is setting up its asset management team with the aim
to tap into the asset management market. The Group target to
set up various investment fund portfolios to assist the potential
high-net worth clients in managing their assets. During 2016,
the results of the asset management is insignificant but the
Group is optimistic about the future development of the asset
management segment.

Despite the severe global stock market fluctuation in 2016, the
Group believes the need for asset management by the high-net
worth clients continues to rise and Hong Kong can continue to
serve as a financial hub to attract investment fund from clients
locally, cross border as well as in the Asian region. The asset
management business of the Group is still in the start-up stage
but the Group will strive to develop various investment funds in
near future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

In view of this, the Group has entered into an agreement to
acquire a company under a licence to carry out Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activities under the SFO and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO together with its
investment team at a consideration of HK$8,000,000 in March
2017. Currently, the company has assets under management of
over US$4.5 million under management and it is believed that
the asset management segment of the Group can be expanded
further with the completion of the acquisition. The acquisition is
still pending completion up to the date of this report.

The Group also intends to build up its own investment portfolio
in different industries in order to generate stable source of
income when and as opportunities arise. The Board considers
that the setting up of its own investment portfolio is in long term
investment nature with the long term goals of capital gains and
investment returns. During the period under review, the Group
had invested in shares of various companies listed in Hong Kong
with long term investment purpose.

In particular, in late December 2015, the Group had subscribed
for 40,000,000 new shares in ShiFang Holding Limited
(“ShiFang”) for a total cash consideration of HK$32 million.
Subsequently, the Group continued to acquire the shares of
ShiFang on the open market and a total of 70,106,000 shares
of ShiFang were held by the Group up to the date of this report,
represented approximately 4.8% of the total issued shares of
ShiFang. The shares of ShiFang are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and it is principally engaged in the business of
cultural media and advertising media in the PRC. During the
period under review, the share price of ShiFang plummeted
resulting in change in fair value of the investment portfolio
of the Group to approximately HK$106 million and the Board
will continue to monitor its business development and future
prospect. In addition, the Board will review the investment
objective and strategy of the Group's investment portfolio from
time to time and devise a suitable investment plan for the Group
as a whole.

The Group will continue to exercise prudence in managing its
expenditures, to look for new investment opportunity to cope
with existing market environment and constantly review the
business strategy in a cautious manner to enhance the returns to
the Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investment in Intraday Financial Group

In 2015, the Group acquired 45% of share capital of Intraday
Financial Information Service Limited with a subsidiary, £ 2=
ML E %A (E8)BR AT (the “Intraday Financial Group”),
engaging in the operation of an internet finance platform in the
PRC through E/8E X& @ ER% B R A A ("Dangtian”)
through the variable interest entity contracts (the “VIE
Contracts”).

For the operation of the internet finance platform, Dangtian
enters into consulting service agreements with the asset
management companies which will negotiate with companies
with financing needs and develop suitable products of the
companies to be placed for subscription on Dangtian’s internet
platform by the potential investors.

The source of revenue of Dangtian from the internet platform
is the transaction fee and servicing fee collected from the asset
management companies. Transaction fee represents the fee paid
for the work Dangtian performs through its internet finance
platform for matching the investment products. Dangtian would
also provide referral service to companies with financing needs
to external financing institutions and referral income would be
received.

During the period under review, the Group was informed by
the Intraday Financial Group that one of the asset management
companies did not have sufficient cash to repay the investment
principal of certain products to the investors when the products
reach their maturity dates (the “Repayment Issue”). As the
management of Dangtian does not want the reputation of its
platform and its operation being affected by the Repayment
Issue, therefore, Dangtian has, for and on behalf of the asset
management company, paid certain sums of the investment
principal to the investors utilizing their internal resources which
was reimbursed for the payment on or around June 2016.
However, the Repayment Issue persists.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Due to the Repayment Issue, together with the overall downturn
on the P2P markets, the transaction volume of investment
principal in the internet platform drops significantly. At the same
time, Dangtian did not offer any products on its internet platform
for subscription since June 2016 as the operational staff of
Dangtian focused on liaising with the investors in relation to the
continued Repayment Issue. As a result, the turnover dropped
significantly for the year under review and a share of loss of
associates amounted to approximately HK$37 million is resulted.

Given the current status of the operation of Intraday Financial
Group, the projected cash flow estimation in the future would
be greatly undermined and the growth rate would be reduced
significantly. As a result, the recoverable amount of the goodwill
arising on acquisition of the Intraday Financial Group is greatly
reduced and an impairment of the goodwill of approximately
HK$267 million is recorded during the year.

Deconsolidation of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan

In 2015, following the acquisitions of the 100% equity interests
of two target companies with subsidiaries engaging in the
pawnshop businesses in Shanghai, the PRC, the Group, through
its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, /&R E X AB R D
&) (“Yousheng”) and L8 % %1% B @A R A A (“Junning”)
(each as “WFOE"), has controlled two pawnshops, namely, /&
FEEEE AR AR (“Xinsheng”) and E/EFRHEE AR A A
("Zhongyuan”) (each as "OPCQ") respectively through the VIE
Contracts.

The VIE Contracts consist of a series of agreements, namely:
(1) Exclusive Consulting Service Agreement

The WFOE shall provide the OPCO with exclusive
management consultancy services, including, among others,
establishing appropriate business model, management and
operation policies, and marketing plans and strategies, as
well as provision of market and customer intelligence and
research, and developing business and operational funding
alternatives.

For services provided by the WFOE, the OPCO shall pay to the
WFOE, as consultancy services fee, its entire profits before
income tax (net of operating and other tax expenses) on an
annual basis. The WFOE has the right to adjust the service
fee in accordance with its services provided.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equity Pledge Agreement

The registered shareholders of the OPCO agreed to pledge
the entire equity interest of the OPCO to the WFOE, as
security for the payment obligation under the Exclusive
Consulting Service Agreement. Under the Equity Pledge
Agreement, except with prior written consent of the WFOE
or under the terms of the Exclusive Call Option Agreement,
the registered shareholders of the OPCO are prohibited from
transferring any of their equity interest in the OPCO, or
creating or allowing any creation of any pledge which may
affect the rights and benefits of the WFOE.

Exclusive Call Option Agreement

The registered shareholders of the OPCO agreed to irrevocably
grant a right to the WFOE that insofar as permitted under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, they shall transfer their
respective equity interests in the OPCO to the WFOE with
nil consideration. In the event that consideration is required
to be provided for such transfer under relevant PRC laws
and regulations, such consideration shall be the minimum
as permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
and that insofar as permitted under applicable PRC laws and
regulations, the full amount of consideration received by or
paid to the registered shareholders of the OPCO, shall be
returned to the WFOE.

The registered shareholders of the OPCO shall, upon request
from the WFOE at any time, immediately and unconditionally,
transfer their entire equity interest in the OPCO to such
representative(s) as nominated by the WFOE.

(4) Authorisation Agreement

The registered shareholders of the OPCO have
unconditionally and irrevocably authorized and appointed
the WFOE or any party assigned by the WFOE to exercise,
at the discretion of the WFOE, all the shareholder’s rights of
the OPCO including (without limitation) rights to approve
shareholders’ resolutions, file documents with the relevant
state administration for industry and commerce, convene and
vote in shareholders’ meetings, transfer or otherwise dispose
with the equity interest of the OPCO, and all shareholders’
rights provided for under the PRC laws and the articles of the
OPCO.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE“-J' &73 *ﬁ'

The WFOE has the right to authorize, at any time, any of
its directors and their respective successors (including the
liquidation committee of the WFOE upon liquidation of
the WFOE), and the directors (and successors) of the OPCO
as nominated by the WFOE (including members of the
liquidation committee of the OPCO nominated by the WFOE
upon liquidation of the OPCO), to exercise all rights granted
to the WFOE under the Authorization Agreement, and such
persons may only take instructions from the WFOE without
seeking any prior consent from the OPCO.

Under the VIE Contracts, Yousheng and Junning has effective
control over the financing and business operations of and are
entitled to the economic interest and benefits of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan respectively.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2015, Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan had contributed significantly to both the revenue
and segment profit of the Group. For efficiency of management,
both Xinsheng and Zhongyuan (collectively as the “Pawnshop
Operations”) were managed by the same management team.

However, on or around July 2016, the Group was informed by
the senior management of Yousheng that representatives of £
BIRERE (£E) B R A A (“Shanghai Kuailu”), one of the
registered shareholders of Xlnsheng which owned 83.13% of
equity interests in Xinsheng, took possession of the business
license, company seal, finance chops, and accounting books and
records of the Pawnshop Operations. The management staff and
employees of the Pawnshop Operations appointed by Yousheng
were laid off, and Shanghai Kuailu appointed the management
staff and employees to take up the Pawnshop Operations. Since
then, the Company is unable to access the complete sets of
books and records, the business license, company seal and the
finance chops of the Pawnshop Operations and is unable to
continue to run the Pawnshop Operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Due to the fact that the Company had been unable to (i)
access the complete sets of books and records together with
the supporting documents of the Pawnshop Operations
and (ii) maintain and operate the business of the Pawnshop
Operations, the Directors considered that the Company has lost
its control over the Pawnshop Operations and the accounts of
the Pawnshop Operations had been de-consolidated from the
Group's financial statements from 1 January 2016.

As a result of the de-consolidation, a net loss on de-consolidation
of subsidiaries of approximately HK$324 million and an
impairment loss on amount due from de-consolidated subsidiaries
of approximately HK$97 million are recorded for the year under
review.

Litigations
PRC

The Group has appointed a PRC legal advisor and the applications
for arbitration to enforce the VIE Contracts have been filed and
accepted by Shanghai Arbitration Commission in August 2016
(the "Arbitration”). Details of the applications are set out in the
announcement dated 18 August 2016.

Up to the date of this report, the Arbitration is suspended.
Nevertheless, the financial impacts of the de-consolidation is fully
reflected in the financial year of 2016. Details of the suspension
decision is set out in the announcement dated 23 February 2017.

Hong Kong

On 11 July 2016, the Company received two writs of summons
issued by Shanghai Kuailu as plaintiff in the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong under action numbers
HCA 1806 of 2016 (the “First Action”) and HCA 1807 of 2016
(the “Second Action”) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

In the First Action, Shanghai Kuailu is seeking a declaration that
it is the beneficial owner of the convertible notes issued for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (the “2014 Convertible Notes”)
under the sales and purchase agreement dated 20 November
2014 in relation to acquisition of Oriental Credit Holdings Limited
(the “Oriental SPA") and the convertible notes issued for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (the “2015 Convertible Notes”) under
the Oriental SPA; and (2) a declaration that 6 other defendants
of the First Action have converted the 2014 Convertible Notes
and the 2015 Convertible Notes to their own use. Shanghai
Kuailu is also seeking various orders on the Company and other
defendants in the First Action.

In the Second Action which is in relation to a dispute concerning
538,500,000 shares of the Company held by Long Tu Limited
(the “Subject Shares”), Shanghai Kuailu claims, inter alia, for (1)
a declaration that Shanghai Kuailu is the beneficial owner of the
Subject Shares; and (2) a declaration that 6 other defendants of
the Second Action have converted the Subject Shares to their
own use. Shanghai Kuailu is also seeking various orders on the
Company and other defendants in the Second Action.

The Company has acknowledged service of the two writs of
summons to the Court of First Instance of the High Court of
Hong Kong and up to the deadline for filing the statement of
claim (i.e. 2 November 2016) for both the First Action and the
Second Action, neither the Company nor the solicitors acting for
the Company in the First Action and the Second Action received
any statement of claim filed by Shanghai Kuailu. As such, the
solicitors acting for the Company in the First Action and the
Second Action applied for and obtained Court Orders that both
the First Action and the Second Action against the Company
be struck out with costs to be paid by Shanghai Kuailu to the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly consists
of the operating expenses of each of industrial property
development, general trading, loan financing, securities
brokerage and insurance brokerage as well as the overall
administrative expenses including but not limited to the office
utilities and administration, legal and professional fee, operating
lease payments, employee benefit expenses, depreciation and
amortization, etc. Administrative and other operating expenses
amounted to approximately HK$82.2 million during the year
under review, which is decreased by HK$1.1 million as compared
to last period. The decrease mainly resulted from the net effect of
the increase in the management and staff cost, the share-based
payment expenses due to the issuance of share options as an
incentive to the employees and consultants of the Group and
the office rentals as the Group had expanded into several new
businesses, which were offset by the decrease in legal and
professional fee and effect of de-consolidation of the Pawnshop
Operations incurred during the year.

Finance Costs

In 2016, finance costs were greatly dropped from approximately
HK$29.4 million in 2015 to approximately HK$15.2 million.
The decrease in the finance costs was a combined effect of the
deconsolidation of the Pawnshop Operations, the decrease in
bank loan interest expenses as partial repayment was made
during the year and the inclusion of the inputed interest of the
deferred consideration in cash payable to the vendor of the
financial consultancy business newly acquired by the end of
2016.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group follows the policy of prudence in managing its
working capital. The operation of the Group was primarily
financed by internally generated cashflow and external financing.

As at 31 December 2016, the shareholders’ fund and net current
assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$421,227,000
(31 December 2015: HK$1,161,745,000) and HK$174,950,000
(31 December 2015: HK$628,240,000) respectively. On the
same date, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted to
HK$240,969,000 (31 December 2015: HK$524,661,000) and the
current ratio was 1.88 (31 December 2015: 3.02).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group's total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$113,066,000 (31 December
2015: HK$277,535,000) in which approximately HK$57,231,000
is repayable within 1 year, approximately HK$16,750,000
is repayable between 1 to 2 years and approximately
HK$39,085,000 is repayable between 2 to 5 years. On the
same date, the gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total
borrowings over net assets, was 27% (31 December 2015: 24%).

There is no capital commitment in respect of the acquisition and
construction of property, plant and equipment for the period
under review (31 December 2015: nil).

The Group does not anticipate any material foreign exchange
exposure since its cash, borrowings, revenue and expenses are
mainly in Hong Kong dollars & Renminbi. Therefore the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Capital Structure

In July 2016, upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the 2014 Convertible Notes and 2015 Convertible Notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$119,757,662.10 at the
conversion price of HK$0.24 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 498,990,258 shares in aggregate to the noteholders.

In July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 452,810,000
new shares of HK$0.001 each at a subscription price of HK$0.27
upon completion of subscription of new shares under the general
mandate.

In December 2016, pursuant to the acquisition agreement
dated 14 December 2016 in relation to the acquisition of the
entired issued share capital of a financing consultancy company,
194,060,671 shares of HK$0.001 each at an issue price of
HK$0.25 in the capital of the Company were issued and allotted
to the vendor under the acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on Assets

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:
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Pawn loans receivables JE Y B E B 5k - 113,569
Property, plant and equipment Y% BWE REE 102,882 118,024
Prepaid lease payments T HEERIE 23,994 26,403
Bank deposits RITER 27,918 35,811
154,794 293,807

Contingent Liabilities

As the Company has been unable to get access to the complete
books and records of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan for the year
ended 31 December 2016, it is impossible and impracticable
for the Directors to ascertain the balances for the year ended
31 December 2016. No representation is therefore made by the
Directors as to the completeness, existence and accuracy of the
disclosure of contingent liabilities for the current period as of the
date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements.

In connection with the acquisition of Oriental Credit Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries on 21 January 2015, the Group is
subject to contingent liabilities including settlement of additional
consideration by issuance of convertible notes arising after 21
January 2015 on the basis of 2016 performance target. The
maximum principal amount of contingent convertible notes will
be HK$17,598,000. As at 31 December 2016, the Directors were
of the opinion that the 2016 performance target would not likely
to be met according to the business development and to the best
knowledge of the directors, therefore, the probability of issuance
of contingent convertible notes is remote.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has approximately 90
employees. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
respective qualifications and experiences and according to the
prevailing industry practice. Besides salary payments, other staff
benefits include contribution of mandatory provident fund, a
discretionary bonus program and a share option scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

BUSINESSES UNDER THE VARIABLE INTEREST
ENTITY CONTRACTS

In 2015, the Group acquired two pawnshop operations and a
45% equity interest in an internet finance platform operation
in the PRC, all are operated under the VIE Contracts, namely
Zhongyuan's VIE Contracts, Xinsheng's VIE Contracts and
Dangtian’s VIE Contracts. As both pawnshop and the internet
finance platform operations are subject to restrictions on foreign
investments under the prevailing laws, regulations and practice in
the PRC, the VIE contracts allowed the Group to gain control over
the financial and business operations of the restricted operations
in the PRC and the Group is also entitled to the economic interest
and benefits of the operations, so as to optimize the Group’s
business structure.

The flow of economics benefits from the operating companies,
namely Xinsheng, Zhongyuan and Dangtian to the subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC, namely Yousheng and Junning and
an associate of the Company in the PRC, namely 5 2= B & &
& (£/8) AR AR, are effected from a series of agreements
under the VIE Contracts.

Each of the agreements under the VIE Contracts is summarized
in De-consolidation of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan to the
Management Discussion and Analysis.

Risks relating to the VIE Contracts:

1. There is no assurance that the VIE Contracts could comply
with future changes in the regulatory requirements in the
PRC and the PRC government may determine that the VIE
Contracts do not comply with applicable PRC laws, rules,
regulations or policies;

2. The VIE Contracts may not be as effective in providing control
over and entitlement to the economic interests in the OPCO
as direct ownership;

3. Potential conflicts of interest among the WFOE, the OPCO
and the registered shareholders of the OPCO may exist;

4. Any failure by the OPCO or its shareholders to perform their
obligations under the VIE Contracts with them may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5. The equity pledge against the equity interest of OPCO
under the Equity Pledge Agreement is subject to successful
registration with the relevant governmental authority to take
effect; and

6. The VIE Contracts may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and additional tax may be imposed.

Measures taken to mitigate the risks:

The VIE Contracts contain dispute resolution clauses that (i)
provided for arbitration and that arbitrators may award remedies
over the shares or assets of the OPCO, injunctive relief or order
the winding up of the OPCO; and (ii) provided the courts of
competent jurisdictions with the power to grant interim remedies
in support of the arbitration pending formation of the arbitral
tribunal or in appropriate cases. The courts of Hong Kong,
the British Virgin Islands, Bermuda, place of incorporation of
the OPCO and the place where the OPCQO’s principal assets
are located have been specified as having jurisdiction for this
purpose.

The Group has implemented additional internal control measures
against the OPCO, which include (without limitation):

e The OPCO to make available monthly management
accounts within 15 days after each month end and provide
explanations on any material fluctuations to the WFOE;

e The OPCO to submit detailed loan book with aging and
impaired loan analysis/monthly key operating data within 15
days after each month end;

e The OPCO to submit copies of latest bank statements for
every bank accounts of the OPCO within 15 days after each
month end; and

e The OPCO to assist and facilitate the WFOE to conduct
quarterly on-site internal audit on the OPCO.

The VIE Contracts also provide that WFOE will unwind the
VIE Contracts as soon as relevant PRC rules and regulations
governing foreign investment in pawnshop business/internet
finance platform business are issued which allow WFOE to
register itself as shareholder of the OPCO. Furthermore, even if
the foreign ownership restriction is relaxed, the transfer of the
equity interests in the OPCO from the shareholders of the OPCO
to the Group may still be subject to substantial costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

As set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
due to the managements appointed by the Group to Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan to exercise the right to manage the business of
pawn broking and money lending in the PRC of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan under the Exclusive Consulting Service Agreements
were laid off in July 2016, the Company had been unable to both
i) access the complete sets of books and records together with
the supporting documents of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan and ii)
maintain and operate the business of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan.
As such, the Directors considered that the Company has lost its
control over Xinsheng and Zhongyuan.

As a result, Xinsheng and Zhongyuan had been de-consolidated
from the consolidated financial statements of the Group from 1
January 2016.

As for Dangtian, the Group have not encountered any
interference or encumbrances from any governing bodies in
operating the businesses through the VIE Contracts. The Group
will closely monitor the changes in the laws and regulations
that govern the VIE Contracts arrangement and make timely
announcement to the Shareholders if there is any material
developments that may have an impact on the legality and
validity of the VIE Contracts.

The information of each of the OPCOs and its registered
shareholders under each VIE Contracts

Zhongyuan's VIE Contracts

Zhongyuan is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and is primarily engaged in pawnshop business in the PRC and
its registered business scope comprises impawn or pledge of
movable property and property right; impawn or pledge of real
estate; dispose of pawn under certain value at stipulated time if
pledgor default in payment; appraisal, valuation and consultancy
services; other impawn or pledge businesses as approved by the
Ministry of Commerce.

The registered shareholders of Zhongyuan are /& ¥k 75 7> 3 3%
B B R A Al (“Shanghai Fake”) and F/BIHEREZEREEE
PR A &) (“Shanghai Baifu”), both are limited liability companies
incorporated in the PRC. 88% and 12% of the equity is owned
by Shanghai Fake and Shanghai Baifu respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Xinsheng’s VIE Contracts

Xinsheng is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and is primarily engaged in pawnshop business in the PRC, which
can be generally be classified into four segments according to
the types of collaterals of its loan portfolio: (i) civilian goods:
jewelries, antiques, watches; (ii) equity: shares of listed and
unlisted companies; (iii) real estate: residential real estate and
commercial real estate and factories; and (iv) vehicles: vehicles
with licenses in Shanghai.

The registered shareholders of Xinsheng are E/8 B EX AR
2 A (“Shanghai Zhifeng”) and Shanghai Kuailu both are limited
liability companies incorporated in the PRC. 83.13% and 16.87%
of the equity interests of Xinsheng is owned by Shanghai Kuailu
and Shanghai Zhifeng.

Dangtian’s VIE Contracts

Dangtian is a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and is primarily engaged in the operation of an internet finance
platform in the PRC.

The registered shareholders of Dangtian are Mr. Shao Yonghua,
who was an executive Director and the chairman of the Board
from 16 July 2015 to 18 March 2016, and Mr. Zhu Wenjing, an
independent third party. 70% and 30% of the equity interests of
Dangtian is owned by Mr. Shao Yonghua and Mr. Zhu Wenjing
respectively.

The results of the internet finance platform operation under
Dangtian’s VIE Contracts during the period under review is
set out in the Investment in Intraday Financial Group to the
Management Discussion and Analysis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 8 January 2016, the Company entered into the second
supplemental agreement (the “Second Supplemental
Agreement”) to the Oriental SPA with Rosy Start Investments
Limited (“Rosy Start”), Equity Partner Holdings Limited (”Equity
Partner”), Century Best Holdings Limited (“Century Best”) and
Asiabiz Capital Investment Limited (“Asiabiz”, together with
Rosy Start, Equity Partner, Century Best are collectively referred
to as the “Vendors”) and Mr. Joseph Shie Jay Lang (“Mr. Lang”)
to amend certain terms of the Oriental SPA including the
amendment of the date of the issue of the convertible notes and
the revision of the put option period. The entire issued share
capital of each of Century Best, Equity Partner and Rosy Start is
beneficially owned by Mr. Lang, the then non-executive Director,
while over 30% of the issued share capital of Asiabiz is indirectly
owned by Mr. Chen Ningdi (“Mr. Chen”), the then executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and
his associates. Given Mr. Lang and each Vendor are connected
persons of the Company, the transactions under the Second
Supplemental Agreement constituted a non-exempt connected
transaction for the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

As Mr. Lang resigned as a Director in April 2016 and Mr. Chen
resigned as a Director in June 2016, the transaction under
the Second Supplemental Agreement no longer constitute a
connected transaction.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "2017 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Friday, 28 April
2017. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2017 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 25 April 2017 to Friday, 28 April 2017,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to
be eligible to attend and vote at 2017 AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 24 April 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Kequan, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was re-designated as an executive
Director, chief executive officer of the Company and the
chairman of the Board on 30 June 2016. Mr. Liu is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was previously
the chief executive officer of ZEE F TS ERHB B R A 7
(Yunnan Ziyuan Group Co., Ltd.), a conglomerate specialising in
investment, real estate development, tourism development and
bio-pharmaceutical biotechnology industry and has extensive
management experience. Mr. Liu graduated from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University with a major in Applied Chemistry in July 1994.
He also obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Tsinghua University in July 2005.

Mr. Zhang Peidong, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated
as an executive Director on 5 July 2016. Mr. Zhang is currently
the managing director of Yongsheng (HK) International Co.,
Limited which was previously owned by a Hong Kong listed
company. He has over 20 years of experience in investment,
corporate management and international trade industry. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Jilin University of Technology (now known
as Jilin University) with a major in Metallic Materials Engineering.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jin Bingrong, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 March 2015. He is a senior
economist and has over 20 years of experience in financial
industry. Mr. Jin is an independent non-executive director of
bank of Shanghai. He was a non-executive director of SRE
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1207), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from April 2007 to December 2015. Mr. Jin
was previously the general manager of Shanghai Branch of
Agricultural Bank of China and the chairman of Shanghai Da'an
Financial Bill Delivery Co., Ltd. He holds a Master’s degree in
Economics and a Bachelor’s degree in Finance Management,
both from Fudan University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2015. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years of experience in corporate accounting and
worked in a number of listed companies. He was the company
secretary of C&D International Investment Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1908), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from
July 2015 to May 2016. Mr. Kwan holds a Master’s degree in
Accounting from Curtin University of Technology (now known as
Curtin University).

Dr. Rui Mingjie, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 7 October 2015. He has over 25
years of experience in corporate management and development
research. Dr. Rui is currently a Professor and the head of the
Department of Industrial Economics of the School of Management
of Fudan University. His main research areas are industry &
enterprise development, enterprise strategy & management,
reformation theory of state owned enterprises, theory of modern
firms and knowledge management & innovation. He was
previously the Associate Dean of the School of Management of
Fudan University from 2001 to 2003 and has been a professor
in the School of Management of Fudan University since 1995.
Dr. Rui is currently an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels (Group) Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2006), a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corporation Limited ( /& & /812 A&
R BRAA]) (SHA:600848), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. He holds a Doctoral degree in Industrial
Economics from Fudan University.

Mr. Zhou Liangyu, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He is currently the
managing director of JRIIBAL K EMEFBR A A (H&H
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.), a company specialising in ODM
service and overall supply chain management service in
electronics industry. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in
investment, corporate management and technology industry. He
graduated from BRPEE FHMEFIZET (Shaanxi Province Foreign
Training College) with a major in Foreign Trade English.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Lyu Ziang (formerly known as Lu Ziang), aged 44, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 5 July
2016. The English name of Dr. Lyu was amended to in line with
The Chinese Phonetic Alphabet Spelling Rules for Chinese Names
implemented by the Government of the People’s Republic of
China. He is currently the vice president of X #B & B 22 = &l 3%
A PBR A A] (Chengdu Shulianyixin Technology Company Limited).
Dr. Lyu was the director of E/ 8 Z S EBEZMEERA TR
i 38 & 0 (Shanghai Trade Data Mining and Application
Engineering Technology Research Center) from 2011 to 2016. He
has years of experience in identification and control of trade and
financial risks. Dr. Lyu graduated from Tsinghua University with a
degree in Thermo-Dynamic Engineering and Control in July 1994
and also received a Master’s degree in Computer Software and
Theory as well as a Doctoral degree in Computer Technology
Application from Beijing Jiaotong University in May 2003 and July
2012 respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The Company has always recognised the
importance of the transparency and accountability towards the
Shareholders. It is the belief of the Board that Shareholders can
maximise their benefits from good corporate governance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for the

following deviations:

— Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Shao Yonghua (“Mr. Shao”) served as the chairman of
the Board and Mr. Chen Ningdi (“"Mr. Chen"”) served as the
chief executive officer of the Company since 25 August
2015. Following the resignation of Mr. Shao and Mr. Chen
in March and June 2016 respectively, Mr. Liu Kequan (“Mr.
Liu”) was elected as the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company in June 2016. The Board
considers that Mr. Liu has extensive management experience
and is responsible for the overall corporate strategies,
planning and business development of the Company and he
is under the supervision by the Board which is comprised of
five independent non-executive Directors, which represent
more than half of the Board, the Board considered that
the interests of the Shareholders are adequately and fairly
represented.

— Code Provision A.5 stipulates that a nomination committee
should be established to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and reappointment of Directors
and succession planning for Director.
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The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
its own members. The chairman of the Board is responsible
for identifying appropriate candidate and proposing qualified
candidate to the Board for consideration. The Board will
review profiles of the candidate recommended by the
chairman and make recommendation of the appointment,
re-election and retirement of the Directors. Candidates are
appointed to the Board on the basis of their skill, competence
and experience that they can contribute to the Company.

— Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting and also
invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their
absence, he should invite another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend. These
persons should be available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.

Mr. Shao, the former chairman of the Board, resigned in
March 2016 and due to another business engagement,
Mr. Chen, the former chief executive officer, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 22 April 2016. As such, Ms. Chan Siu Mun, the then
executive Director, took the chair of the annual general
meeting, together with an independent non-executive
Director, being the chairman of the audit committee and
member of remuneration committee to answer questions to
ensure effective communication with the Shareholders.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. The
Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors whether the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities transactions and
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code.
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THE BOARD -

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, being EEFZHRBEAMMUATEETRRRALE (EF
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr.  3R1TERAREL) RoR/MR L E - U R AL B IE
Zhang Peidong, and five independent non-executive Directors, H{TEESMELEE BERELE - NEANE
being Mr. Jin Bingrong, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Rui Mingjie, Mr.  +ARFLEER B FRELHEK -

Zhou Liangyu and Dr. Lyu Ziang.

32 board meetings and 2 general meetings were held during the ~ R Z=Z— /\EW CBRITREETEGRLM

year of 2016. The individual attendance record is as follows: RBRRARG - ARIKE L FEREEMAT
Board General
Meetings Meetings

Attended/ Attended/

Eligible to Eligible to

Directors attend attend
BHE BHE

EEREE SERLEE

E=g IR R
B BEXE RERE
Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Shao Yonghua (Note 1) ARk EE A (MIRET) 10/10 0/1
Mr. Chen Ningdi (Note 2) PR 2 3 5E A (F95E2) 18/18 1/2
Ms. Chan Siu Mun (Note 3) PR IR B A (BEE3) 18/18 2/2
Mr. Liu Kequan (Note 4) 2w RAEAE (HI5E4) 15/15 0/0
Mr. Zhang Peidong (Note 5) gRom R oA (M5ES) 14/14 0/0
Non-executive Directors: FEHITEE -
Mr. Joseph Shie Jay Lang (Note 6) BRtt 7S 4 (BY5E6) 13/13 0/1
Ms. Ma Xiaoling (Note 7) HeEre /A (HIsE7) 15/15 0/1
Mr. Yin Xiaoguang (Note 8) FHRE N ST A (MIE8) 14/14 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors: BIIHTESE:
Mr. Jin Bingrong TR L E 29/32 0/2
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor ﬁ%% i 32/32 2/2
Dr. Rui Mingjie WNEAREL 30/32 0/2
Mr. Zhou Liangyu (Note 9) BARF & (H5E9) 12114 0/0
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Note 10) aFaEE (MiE10) 12/12 0/0
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1. Mr. Shao Yonghua resigned as Director on 18 March 2016.
2. Mr. Chen Ningdi resigned as Director on 30 June 2016.
3. Ms. Chan Siu Mun resigned as Director on 30 June 2016.

4.  Mr. Liu Kequan was appointed as Director on 1 June 2016.

5. Mr. Zhang Peidong was appointed as Director on 30 June 2016.

6. Mr. Joseph Shie Jay Lang resigned as Director on 5 April 2016.

7. Ms. Ma Xiaoling retired as Director on 22 April 2016.

8. Mr. Yin Xiaoguang was appointed as Director on 1 June 2016 and
resigned as Director on 1 January 2017.

9. Mr. Zhou Liangyu was appointed as Director on 30 June 2016.

10. Dr. Lyu Ziang was appointed as Director on 5 July 2016.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances, but the day-to-day management is
delegated to the two executive Directors, Mr. Liu Kequan and Mr.
Zhang Peidong.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors have timely access to relevant information prior to each
board meeting. Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular board meetings while Directors
are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials
to allow them to make informed decisions on matters arising
from board meetings.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of other committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open
for inspection by Directors.

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber with academic and professional qualifications in the area
of accounting, financial, management and various business field
which provide the Group with a wide range of valuable expertise.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in other
organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, an independent non-executive Director,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise states under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Individual Directors are encouraged
to attend courses relating to the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director or further enhancement of their
professional development by way of attending training courses
or via online aids or reading relevant materials. The company
secretary of the Company continuously updates all Directors on
the latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. The current Directors,
namely, Liu Kequan, Zhang Peidong, Jin Bingrong, Kwan Kei
Chor, Rui Mingjie, Zhou Liangyu and Lyu Ziang had attended
traning sessions organised by the Company. The participation
by the Directors in continuous professional development are
recorded.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and monitor the financial reporting and
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
The Audit Committee currently comprises five independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman),
Mr. Jin Bingrong, Dr. Rui Mingjie, Mr. Zhou Liangyu and Dr. Lyu
Ziang.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management and the auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
the auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2016.

In additional, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the related results announcement and auditor’s report, and made
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recommendation to the Board that the same be approved. ZENHMBENEZ-
Three Audit Committee meetings convened during the year. The HFR ERARA-AEZZE e -ERIKE
individual attendance record is as follows: R R ek T
Number of
Directors attendance
E=E IR B
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman) AR E () 3/3
Mr. Jin Bingrong BREEE 3/3
Dr. Rui Mingjie WEIARE L 3/3
Mr. Zhou Liangyu (Note 1) BRF & (MEE1) 11
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Note 2) = FRELT (HE2) 1/1
Notes: B 5T -
1. Mr. Zhou Liangyu became the member of Audit Committee on 30 1. ARFEER_ZT—R"FEA=ZTHEHRREEZ
June 2016. ZEgKE-
2. Dr. Lyu Ziang became the member of Audit Committee on 5 July 2. BFBRBIR-_ZE—ARFLtARAEKATERE
2016. BEgNE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to advise
and recommend the Board on the remuneration policy and
framework of the Company’s Directors and senior management,
as well as review and determine the remuneration of individual
executive Directors and senior management with reference to
the Company’s objectives from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Jin Bingrong (Chairman), Mr. Kwan Kei
Chor and Dr. Rui Mingjie.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy and framework of
the Company’s Directors and senior management, assessed
the performance of executive Directors and determined the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the Company’s objectives.

Three Remuneration Committee meetings convened during the
year. The individual attendance record is as follows:
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Number of
Directors attendance
B=E IR B
Mr. Jin Bingrong (Chairman) SMETE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor RERELE 3/3
Dr. Rui Mingjie WNEARIE LT 3/3
Ms. Ma Xiaoling (Note 1) SEEr/NE (FsE) 171
Ms. Chan Siu Mun (Note 2) BRIK S/ NE (BRE2) 1/1

Notes:

1. Ms. Ma Xiaoling ceased to serve as the member of Remuneration
Committee on 22 April 2016.

2. Ms. Chan Siu Mun ceased to serve as the member of Remuneration
Committee on 30 June 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole performed the following corporate
governance duties which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practice on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, HLM
CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,000,000 and HK$1,050,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review and other reporting services.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
of this report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the company secretary of the Company is Ms.
Chan Siu Mun who had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective
internal control systems and risk management to safeqguard the
Shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. Review of the
Group's internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions.
The controls built into the risk management system are intended
to manage, not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment.

Risk Management

The successful management of risk is essential for the long term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s business. These can only
be achievable if certain risks are managed effectively.

Policy

The Group's risk management policy includes the following
elements:

e |dentification significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those;

e develop necessary measure to manage those risks; and
e monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.
Responsibility

The Board has overall accountability for determining the type
and level of risk it is prepared to take. The Audit Committee
monitors and deploys appropriate actions to control or mitigate
the risks. They also assess the likelihood of these risks occurring.
Risk mitigation factors are reviewed and documented based on
the level and likelihood of occurrence. The Audit Committee
reviews the risk register and monitors the implementation of risk
mitigation procedures via executive management.

Further, the risks will be periodically reviewed so that the Group
could ensure new and emerging risks relevant to the Group’s
business are promptly identified and action upon. These are
on-going processes and the Audit Committee reviews regularly
the Group’s risk management systems.
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Based on the reports from the outsourced internal control
auditor and the Audit Committee, the Board considers the Group
internal control system and risk management is adequate and
effective and the Group has complied with the provisions on
internal controls and risk management as set out in the CG code.

Internal Control

The Group’s has outsourced the internal control systems auditing
function. The outsourced internal auditor reports directly to
the Audit Committee and is responsible for conducting regular
audits on the major activities of the Group. The Audit Committee
has received a report from the outsourced internal auditor
summarizing audits concluded in the year. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the findings and recommendations made by the
outsourced internal auditor and have ensured that any issues
arising from the audit are appropriately resolved by management
in an efficient and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. Such published documents
together with the latest corporate information and news are also
made available on the website of the Company. The Company
also welcomes comments and questions from Shareholders at its
annual general meeting.
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Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate and vote in
Shareholder’s meetings. According to Bye-law 57 of the bye-laws
of the Company, any 2 or more Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of a written requisition in aggregate not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board. Such requisition must
state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at Company’s head office.

Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the bye-laws of the Company, no
person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
by some Shareholders (not being the person to be proposed)
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been given to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
must state that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number and postal address, in
order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had not
been any changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
The Company'’s bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provide corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Detailed review and the future development of the Group's
business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this report.
Those sections form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 70.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 235 of
this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

EEEREHE T R"F+-_HA=1+—H
FENFEREMEEREAMBREK -

EBXBREKERE

ARAHERREZBARITE YAHEMB L
AREECREERSE T EMB AN
ARG B TS #R R MY 547 -

AEE XSO RARRERFHNARE R
TREMEEARERET R EONME - %F
EEHBAA[EEERE] D -

e kol

AEBEE_T-R"F+-_A=1t—HL*F
EHNRETNEIOANGEBRE REME2E
WE K o

EEefERANEBEE T — X<+ =8

SH-ALFENRERE (ZFT-—AF:
) o
hFHHHRE

AEBBEELEYREFENEEREERSR
EMEHNAREF2358 -

E VI E S

FARKEYE BFERRKENEBFEIR
AR RMEIS -

R
4 Py 7 3 T R 2 0 B4 WO 0 8 O 2 SR R
34

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH °



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EESRE

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 49 and 50 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2015: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
13.22% and 45.17% of the Group's total revenue for the year
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 85.94% and 100% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shao Yonghua
(resigned on 18 March 2016)

Mr. Chen Ningdi
(resigned on 30 June 2016)

Ms. Chan Siu Mun
(resigned on 30 June 2016)

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as non-executive Director
on 1 June 2016 and re-designated
to executive Director, chairman and
chief executive officer on 30 June 2016)
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Mr. Zhang Peidong
(appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 30 June 2016 and re-designated to executive
Director on 5 July 2016)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Joseph Shie Jay Lang
(resigned on 5 April 2016)

Ms. Ma Xiaoling
(retired on 22 April 2016)

Mr. Yin Xiaoguang
(appointed on 1 June 2016 and
resigned on 1 January 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Bingrong
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
Dr. Rui Mingjie
Mr. Zhou Liangyu
(appointed on 30 June 2016)
Dr. Lyu Ziang
(appointed on 5 July 2016)

Pursuant to Bye-laws 91 and 99(B) of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Liu Kequan (“Mr. Liu"”), Mr. Zhang Peidong
("Mr. Zhang"), Mr. Zhou Liangyu (“Mr. Zhou"), Dr. Lyu Ziang
("Dr. Lyu”) and Mr. Jin Bingrong (“Mr. Jin") will retire from office
as Directors at the 2017 AGM and Mr. Liu, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhou
and Dr. Lyu, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
Mr. Jin will not offer himself for re-election due to his other
business commitments.

The Company confirms that it has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all the existing
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares

EERTBITHRABRKS MIHE
RAR D B M 2 SR B

T NOR B

s

RZFE—RNE+_A=+—H EFFEKARQ
FEBITHAERAR B S 188 = E (E%f%
RBEHFLHERY ([BHLHAEKEG])EXV
*B)EI'JHXTﬁ MR REEETEE () RE
BHEMHAERAIEXVEETRESH //\%u
7T'< AR FTMER (BIERE RS K
%-?1!%15'%@E%flxK?BZ?%BZ”‘VE&ﬁ?%%EE’J%
KORB)  3(b) B BB IR 75 5 M HA B 161
%’3521’1%@57{?27&.&%6’1%\ P (O IRIBR
EFRBHE AN A REZFTHERT

A\

REORERROHNER

Total number Approximate

Number of Number of of shares and percentage
issued shares  Underlying underlying of the issued
Director Nature of interests held shares held shares share capital
B BT
FrisE 81T FrizHE  ROKREE IR A4 49
= EEME ROBE ROBAE R 1 48 B Bk
Mr. Liu Kequan (“Mr. Liu") Corporate interests 538,500,000 - 538,500,000 12.29%
(Note 1)
BlmREHE EEER (Kt3E1)
Note: Bt 5 -

1. Mr. Liu owns 65.80% of the issued share capital of Long Tu Limited
(“Long Tu”) and he is a director of Long Tu. On 21 March 2017,
Long Tu transferred the 538,500,000 Shares held by it to Eastern
Spring Global Limited (“Eastern Spring”), a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Liu. Mr. Liu is the sile director of Eastern Spring.

1. B mBEBARAR ([EE])EFHTR
KH65.80% FAEBZEZE -R_T—+F
—RA=+—H EBEERE 2538,500,0008%
BROERTRRRIKAR AR ([RE]) (A
BIEELEBRBENRR) B EEBRRM
—%FH
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Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company’s associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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REAFEBEIE (EERIBXZRPERD
SEXVE) RO REBARGHNER

Number of

shares/amount  Approximate

of registered  percentage of
Director Name of associated corporation ~ Nature of interest Class capital  shareholding
RGEE,/
B3 B EE AR BamME 55 dAfMEALE ERENEIH
Mr. Liu Intraday Financial Information Corporate interests Ordinary 55 shares 55%
254 Service Limited (Note 2) LBk 55k
EXRERESBRBERAA EE R (FiT2)
aBCD Enterprise Limited Corporate interests Ordinary 3 Shares 100%
(Note 2) R 3k
EE R (aT2)
SEBNREDH(LE)ERAT  Corporate interests Registered capital RMB31,000,000 100%
(Note 2) &R AER31,0000007T
EE R (MiFE2)
Note: B 5 -
2. 65.8% of the issued share capital of Long Tu is owned by Mr. 2. BEECBEITIRAKNG5.8% IHHBILEES B

Liu. Long Tu is the legal and beneficial owner of 55 shares of
Intraday Financial Information Service Limited ("Intraday”),
which is 55% of its issued share capital, whilst the remaining
45 shares, which represents 45% of the issued share capital
of Intraday, is owned by the Company. Intraday is the legal
and beneficial owner of 3 shares of aBCD Enterprise Limited
("aBCD"), which is 100% of its issued share capital. aBCD is
the holder of RMB31,000,000 of the registered capital of £
ZEMEEZW(LE)BR AR, which is its entire equity
interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors, chief executive or their associates had any interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BaZRermEERBERAR ([ERem])
RISSAR IR 1D (B E B B 1TRAMS5% ) AT

EnBEEA MBRTHLERERN (BED %
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. The effect of such arrangements would enable the
Director involved to be the Shareholder.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to
which (i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party with
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and (ii) in
which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

= 2R Bt S AR BRI By
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Approximate
percentage
Number of of the issued

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital
=r BABESH

" FrEROBE HEBITRE
Long Tu Limited (“Long Tu") (Note 1) Beneficial owner 538,500,000 12.29%

EBAERA R (T5EE]) (K1) ExEEA
Note:
1. Long Tu is the owner of 538,500,000 shares. Mr. Liu is a

director of Long Tu. On 21 March 2017, Long Tu transferred the
538,500,000 Shares held by it to Eastern Spring Global Limited,
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Liu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, so far as is
known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
no other parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Convertible Notes

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20 November
2014 (the "Oriental SPA") in relation to the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Oriental Credit Holdings Limited
("Oriental Credit”), the consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company by way of issue of convertible notes. The holder of
the convertible notes is entitled to convert it into new ordinary
shares at any time between the 30th business day after the issue
of 2015 convertible notes and ending on the 21st business day
before the maturity date (i.e. the 5th anniversary of the date of
issue of the respective convertible notes). If the convertible notes
have not been converted, it will be redeemed on maturity date
at the entire principal amount. The convertible notes bear no
interest.

On 3 June 2015, the Company issued the 2014 convertible notes
with principal amount of HK$85,401,768.19 with conversion
price of HK$1.2 per conversion share.

Following the completion of share subdivision of the Company
on 28 December 2015, the conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.24 per conversion share and pursuant to the second
supplemental agreement to the Oriental SPA dated 8 January
2016, the conversion period of the convertible notes was
amended to a period from the 5th business day after the issue
of the audited accounts of the Oriental Credit for the respective
financial years and ending on the 21st business day before the
maturity date.

On 8 March 2016, the Company issued the 2015 convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$42,000,000 with conversion
price of HK$0.24 per conversion share.

As at 31 December 2016, convertible notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$119,757,662.10 were exercised and
498,990,258 new ordinary shares were allotted and issued by
the Company accordingly.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Details of movement of the convertible notes during the year

ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: REBNEESHFBOT
Amount of convertible notes
TRREESE

Number of share Balance as at
Balance as at Granted Exercised allotted and issued 31 December
Holder 1 January 2016 during the year during the year Conversion price upon conversion 2016
R=B-R%
RZB-RF REBRERZR +=HA=+-AH
BEA —B—B##% RERRH RERTHE BRE BITNBRHEE &
Vendors of the SPA HK85,401,768.19 HK$42,000,000  HK$119,757,662.10 HK$0.24 498,990,258 HK$7,644,106.09
EEMENER 85,401,768.19%5 T 42,000,0007C  119,757,662.10% T 0.24%7T 498,990,258 7,644,106.09/% T

Issue of consideration shares for acquisition of Access
China Group Limited

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 14
December 2016 (the “Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Access China Group Limited
("Access China”), the consideration shall be paid and satisfied
by the Company in cash and by way of allotment and issue of a
total of 194,060,671 consideration shares at the issue price of
HK$0.25 per share. The consideration shares shall be released to
the vendor in 3 tranches upon the agreed date upon issue of the
respective audited financial statements of Access China and its
subsidiaries (the “Access China Group”).

The board considered that (i) the acquisition is expected to
broaden the revenue source and diversify the business of the
Group; (ii) the businesses that Access China Group principally
engaged in is considered low risk given they do not involve in
money lending, instead money loan referral business; (iii) the
optimization of the Group's resources; (iv) the potential to grow
in the automotive industry and related services; and (v) the Profit
Guarantee with adjustment mechanism to the consideration
provides sufficient protection to the Company.

The acquisition was completed on 22 December 2016. Details
of the Agreement were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 14 December 2016, 22 December 2016 and 2
February 2017.
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Subscription Agreement

On 14 July 2016, the Company issued 452,810,000 Shares with
aggregate nominal value of HK$452,810 to Mr. Yang Dayong
pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 4 July 2016 at an
issue price HK$0.270 per Share. The share price of the Company
on 4 July 2016, which is the date on which the terms of the issue
are fixed, is HK$0.335.

The net proceeds, after deducting all relevant costs and expenses,
will be approximately HK$121.5 million, representing a net
subscription price of approximately HK$0.268 per Share. The
Company intends to use the net proceeds from the subscription
for the development of factoring finance services and/or for such
other investment opportunities which may be identified by the
Company from time to time.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to the Shareholders’ resolution passed on 20
June 2011.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

The participants of the Scheme are as follow:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any invested entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any invested entity;

() any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

By -3
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(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any invested entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute, by way of joint venture,
business alliance, other business arrangement or otherwise,
to the development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 157,755,335 which comprises
157,748,000 shares to be issued under the outstanding options
unexercised and 7,335 shares to be issued under the options not
yet being granted, representing 3.45% of the issued share capital
(i.e. 4,575,894,284 shares).

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options and the share options
granted under any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the option and subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

There is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
holding of the share options before it can be exercised, unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
of the grant of share options to a grantee. An option may be
accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option by payment from the participant and
receipt by the Company of HK$1.00 prior to or on the last date
of the said 28 day period.

The exercise price will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme will expire on 19 June 2021.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Details of movements in the share options granted under the

BHE_T—R"F+_A=+—HBILFERE

Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 were as T EEHZBERENEFFBOT
follows:
Number of share options held
FERREHR
Closing
Price of
share
immediately
before
Balance as Balance the date
at  Granted  Exercised Lapsed as at Exercise  of grant of
1 January during during during 31 December Price share
Category Date of grant 2016  theyear  theyear the year 2016 Exercise Period of Share Options HKS options
R
i ZE-5E k&R
ZE-RF = RERRE
-A-H =t-H 1EE REAHA
£ RiLAH BB FRRE  FRTE  FREN G BRENGES A WER
Employeesand 20 Nov2015 90,000,000 - - (60,000,000) 30,000,000 3 tranches from (i) the expiry date of the 0.92 0.86
others put option period as stated in the sale (adjusted)
and purchase agreement dated 20 (&%)
Novernber 2014 (as amended by
the first supplemental agreement
dated 3 June 2015 and the second
supplemental agreement dated
8 January 2016}; (i) 20 November
2016; and (i) 20 May 2017
to 19 May 2018
ESRE®  —F-1f AR=H BORBR-F-BET-A
t-A “TANEERA (FRHA_T-1F
ZtH RAZRME-EEBARRBA-
E-RE-RNBNE_DRRREE
TR SEBRER AL ()
“F-~E+-B-tRE R -
—tFRAZTRE
28 Dec 2016 - 303,428,000 - - 323,428,000 Any time within 28/12/2016 to 0232 0.4
271212018
i SN ZE-AETZAZTNRE
i A ZE-N\FTZAZTtA
Zt/\H Hfe B
Total 90,000,000 323,428,000 - (60,000,000 353,428,000
o5t

Note: An aggregate of 195,680,000 share options were exercised after

the reporting period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
option scheme is set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur or about the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees and ensures they all are reasonable
remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. Double-sided
printing and copying, using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance are being implemented in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from
time to time and will consider further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition, operations
and prospects. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Risk Description
B B 4
Acquisition Risk
Wy B8 /= B

Risk Mitigation
e 1K€ L B

The Group from time to time needs

RRBR KRB

AEEFNRERE YR ERERBHNMELD
RAI- EMITEN R - EARERARNE B
AR T L ENRAMNESR AR D ERERES
EREERERRGRET-

AEETF e LIRFERED A GEE
EnERE—SHERRIERIEERED-

TE2EABLTHARREE

AEBE DR AI BB H X5 MBHIR - 2 5&
AR ER T ERBER R M AAARESE - A
TARAAKENENT2RER N THARESE &
TXAFEN REFEARBEL RIELE
RIAEETERERKAIEESEENEMAE
2 S NERBA I 3% -

Before investment in a new project or acquisition of new business, the

Board performs full management aspect assessments and due diligence
on the project, its business models, financial performance, market trend,
growth opportunities, risk etc. The new business needs to be consistent
with the Group’s overall business objectives.
EREFBEBEIMBHEB 2N EFSURE  HXRBENX MBE
BomisBY BREE RRFETEIENEEERN GMERAL -
MEBHTENAEENERKELAR

to expand by acquiring new line of
business. If the acquisition is not done
properly it may yield undesirable result
and impact the performance of the
Group that could lead to significant
write-offs.
REBTETEZBBRBINELE
o o QN R UL FE R B IEWESTAK - BI AT Bk
EXETRGER URERASENEE ~
RMEHEARIE -

External consultants/experts/valuators/advisors/professionals to be
commissioned to support technical evaluations/provide independent
assessment.

- EFEINEPEERBERFHEE B HEA B FRIMEE R
EAVAR S

— The Management continues to monitor the progress of the acquisition
to ensure it is on time and within budget. Any material discrepancy is
needed to inform the Board immediately.

- EREREBEAVEER UBREBERITAREN -FRNERER
VENEEMESE-
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Risk Description
B B 4 3t
Information Technology Risk

EENKAR

IT, cyber security risk, failure or
interruption of business-critical IT
systems or digital infrastructure,
compromise of, or attack on, Group
computer networks.

SRR MRk HEBEH
RHWBREE SHEREBNE
BT A8 B ELTE AR i P S ARl o

Partnership Risk
BB E R

The Group uses different contracts and
agreements to operate and collect their
economic interest with the partners
such as the variable interest entity
contracts (VIE contracts). There might
be potential dispute on those contracts
and agreements with other parties. It
may lead to litigation and would have
undesirable financial and reputation
impact on the Group.
REBFERZBEHNHE  BHEE
B (2N RERaL (VIESR
) —REREWRBEER R -BE
R ET Pl F AR LAl e
B M S BEER TR
MBBTE-

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Risk Mitigation
e 1EC B

The Group closely monitors the performance of cyber-attack prevention
software and systems from time to time, and upgrade to the latest where
are suitable.

AEEINREYEIEZHEER TGRSR YARINEE
B 2R FThR 7K ©

Systems vulnerability and penetration testing are carried out regularly to
ensure that data is protected from corruption or unauthorized access or
misuse.

EHRTRGRRAMZENS  NEREEIRE X BEIRE
REER -

IT risks are also managed through the application of internal policies

and change management procedures, and contractual service level
agreements with third party suppliers.
EERMAREANBRRNEEERREFANBE =TT HE®E?
RIS R EITEIR

Technical team receive updates and training relating to cyber risk and
business continuity plan regularly.

o B B B MR B AR AR R B AN SR A B A M A B T AR A o

The Group actively communicates with partners/contractors to ensure the
same business objective and no misalignment of activities.

SEBERESERN FZEEER  UBRAKNEBEENEEH -

The Group also monitors any dispute from time to time. Should there

be any issue, they will be reported to management or the Board for
appropriate actions to be taken immediately.
AEBNTTHEREMNFZ - NEEMAHEE SUNREEREXES
SREBGEEMNITE -

Ongoing monitoring and regular review of partners'/contractors’ financial
and operational performance in order to avoid misuse/leakage of
information.

FREZANMERESSERNY REOREMBNES FEAESE B
BRERJRRESR
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Risk Description
| B 4 ot
Litigation Risk
NN

The Group is currently involved in a
number of litigations in PRC and Hong
Kong. Lawsuits can have an adverse
financial impact on the Group. It may

Risk Mitigation
e 1EC B

also affect the reputation of the Group. —

SEBRRERTEEEENE TR
RAGHEBELTNMBZE -E
MrAlRE EREBE -

Business Risk

¥R

There are new businesses the
engaged by the Group. It may be
difficult for the Group to set the
long-term performance objectives
and plans. The sustainable growth
and competitiveness of the company
may be impacted because of all the
uncertainties in the new businesses.
IO ER SEARBURT RS
REBFENETE - RRIMNAFHELER
MBEF NG R I EBHORE T
AR R E -

Interest rate Risk

R E R

Interest rate fluctuation could affect
the cost of borrowing of the Group
thus impacting financial performance.
N ES IR 2 & UL P40 %
RMTEMBEEE-

The Group work closely with its legal advisers.
REEEEEEENERA -

Group is open minded to consider other resolutions.
REBHZREHAM G RFFRNREE -

Continuously monitoring on progress of the ongoing litigation and
update management committee and the Board.

T BENMERBETTOFLD T ENEERLEENESTEHRNT
il

Senior management monitors regularly the performance of the new
lines of business, such as key performance indicators, sales turnover, cost
income ratio, profit margin, market trends, competitions activities and
etc. Any issues need to be reported to the Board immediately for actions.
ERETHENREBHNES PINERERER HEE KAKRA
X -FEER M58 BREHE -TANFEFTENEETSREL
S BNERERITED ©

Different possible outcomes are considered within the planning and
budgeting process by senior management. Appropriate action plans to be
in place for all possible outcomes where is needed.
EREEREINERERIETERT FRMAIRBRLRER - SAEA
BEAE RGIEEEHE R

External consultants could be commissioned to improve business
performances or provide independent assessment on a particular situation
or issue.

Al RFEINRPER N E RBRE - A E BN KA B R B -

Adjust investment portfolio to accommodate anticipated movement in
interest rates.

HABRREHENERBHRNF =& -

Keep terms of the loan short during periods of high interest rates, and
entering into long-term loans when interest rates reduces.

EsNEHEARBEMET AREMNREERHERPER-
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Risk Description Risk Mitigation
B B 4 3t e 1EC B

Licensing, regulatory, and
compliance updates Risk
HR - EERAEEHRRAR

The securities brokerage, asset — The Group to develop procedure to control, monitors the process
management, and insurance brokerage regularly, and assesses operational internal risk to ensure internal
businesses are highly regulated compliance to meet new regulatory requirement.

business. Licences are required for such — #IFEEE [T FHERRE 1 h AR ERR  BRAZE R M
businesses and it requires continuing BAHENVERE SR -

compliance of the rules and regulation
by the authorities. There is risk of
non-renewal of licenses if there is
noncompliance by the Group. Further,
frequent updates of the Listing Rules,
accounting standards, and financial -
D y ooUtINOMISONS O s m ey R B8 405 A4S 005 SO (5D RO 47 2
S A0 L R A 1 R I A 40 EMAMEMER) EMRA S5 EREHNBEEEKMEMEETHE -

AA WL

T EE R st ge  EAARVEARENEARRASREREREFRRLLIN

EXE o
TR RS ST B A, T
0 2265 (B 5K 38 <R 4R 7 T A8 R 0 HE AR

IBER o BAN - LTI & EEEI A

TS SR T BT AT SIS B D B R

KB o

The Group from time to time to consult external consultants (external
auditors, lawyers and other experts) to review new disclosure
requirements and other regulatory requirements such as Listing Rules

and accounting standards. Any significant changes that may affect the
Group will report to senior management or the Board of Directors to take

Employee Risk
ETI Rk

Securities brokerage, asset — Remuneration policies are designed to attract, retain, and reward
management, and insurance brokerage employees with ability and experience on the Group’s businesses.
businesses of the Group require special - FrFHIEEERS| - BEMBEIA B X B N MERHET -

skill sets. Failure to attract and retain
the necessary resources and special

skills may have significant impact the
performance of the Group. Failure to

support key talen.t development and  _ The Company enforces to strengthen recruiting and development of
implement effective succession plans existing staff to upgrade respective technical knowhow.

for key leadership roles within the - _ ARk R H B THRBMBERE  RAKMER -
Group is another risk to the Group.

AEBNBHLEL EEETEMRR The Group provides either extensive in-house or external training for the
RILEBT EHE X G - RIS A staffs to have better knowledgeable in the business.
REBVENERMEEREAESER - Z5EAEITRHEBEZHOANIIZIINBIFI - AEE T T RRER -
B EASENEE - S—ERRKRE

AXFHBASTERNERER AN

HREEACEANE-

The Company is to identify the key resources and develop a succession
plan for those key employees

- RAMHERRER YAGSLEHRE TR EMEETS -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of the financial year are set out in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company Securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been audited by Messrs. HLM
CPA Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kequan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide"”) of the Listing Rules, the
Group reviewed, identified and discloses herein the material
environmental and social issues and aspects, which are considered
to have significant impacts and are relevant to the Group's
business and stakeholders for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) on environmental and social
issues and aspects have been set up to allow the management to
monitor and to assess their development and results in line with
the corporate strategy and polices in future.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial
property development, general trading of consumable goods,
securities brokerage, insurance brokerage, asset management
and loan financing operation includes loan financing, loan
referral and consultancy services.

The Group has a responsibility to maximize shareholder returns,
and this is aligned with the objective to provide clients with the
best service and platforms. This is achieved not only through the
Group having financial strength but also through investing in our
employees and wider social practices.

Material environmental and social policies and performance of
the Group are summarized below:

(A)ENVIRONMENTAL

In order to develop a sustainable business, the Group takes
the initiative to engage in conservation and to promote
environmental responsibility. We take an active role to ensure
our operation is sustainable and environmentally friendly. We
actively assume social responsibility to reduce pollution.

(i) Emissions

The Group, being primarily an office-based financial
services provider and a trading company, require
limited natural resources to operate and therefore
have a relatively low environmental impact. Our direct
environmental impact comes from our office operations,
staff travelling, and does not engaged in activities that
are generally regarded as having a high environmental
impact. The Directors believe that the Group's activities
do not materially contribute to pollution or cause material
damage to the environment. However, the Group takes
all practicable steps to meet statutory requirements and
minimize its effects on the environment and encourages
its employees to conserve energy, minimize waste and
recycle work materials.

R HERERRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE

(ii)

HERERRE

The emission of greenhouse gases and the use of energy
such as electricity is as a result of office-based business
activities and from business travel. As at 31 December
2016, there was no violation of relevant law, rules and
regulations by the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emission, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of Resource

General policies to improve the environment within the
Group are as follows:

e Staff are encouraged to travel on public transport
facilities;

e Use of video and telephone conferencing as much as
possible to reduce traveling;

e Increasing electronic storage of documents rather
than retention of hard paper copies;

e Reduction in paper usage through double sided
printing and copying and using recycled paper;

e Electronic distribution of reports, contract notes, etc.,
to reduce paper consumption;

® Recycling of waste wherever possible; and

e Use more energy saving LED lights and switching off
idle lightings and electrical appliance.

(iii) The Environment and Natural Resources

@ Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

The Group pledges to uphold quality management
and implement policies for conserving resources and
managing waste. The Group will continue to increase
its capacity in recycling to reduce the material influence
from the Group’s operation on the environment and
natural resources. The Group adopts consistent policies
to achieve effective saving of resources and follow the
laws and regulations for healthy business development.

Awareness for environmental protection of all employees
is enhanced through environmental protection activities,
training programs and promotions. The concept of
“Reduce”, “Reuse”, “Recycle” are strongly promoted.
By promoting them, the Group is striving to protect the
environment as well as contributing back to the society.
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(B)SOCIAL

(i) Employment

Policies and regulations principally adopted by the Group
in respect of compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare have clearly been stated Employee
Handbook and they are summarized as follows:

Compensation

Remuneration and benefits are benchmarked against
prevailing local industry norms and commensurate with
experiences and qualifications.

Dismissal

This is based on the legislation in Hong Kong in relation
to employment.

Recruitment and promotion

It is the policy of the Group to undertake recruitment
in fair and equitable way which gives equal opportunity
to all applicants whilst ensuring the most suitable
candidates for a role is chosen. The Group aims to offer
all suitable employees opportunity for development and
career advancement through promotion and transfer
from within the Company.

Almost all of employees hired by the Group have been
located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group strictly
complies with the requirements of the applicable laws of
employment in Hong Kong and the PRC without violating
the relevant rules and regulations:

e  Workers' wages, overtime payments and related
benefits are made in accordance with the local
minimum wage (or above);

e Holidays and statutory paid leaves are in compliance
with the requirements of Hong Kong and PRC;

e The Group treats all the employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not
be affected by their social identities such as ethnicity,
race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual
orientation, political faction and marital status;

e No underage person will be hired;
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e The Group committed to give full consideration to
applications for employment from disabled persons,
as well as providing continuing employment to
existing employees who become disabled during their
employment. In the event that an employee becomes
disabled, the Group's policy is to make reasonable
adjustments, including arranging for training, to
enable the employee to continue working for the
Group;

e The Group provides a number of different benefits
to employees including MPF, private medical care.
Eligible employees are rewarded through the Group
Share Option Scheme and have the opportunity to
acquire shares of the Company through this scheme.

(ii) Health and Safety

Working Environment

The Group is committed to providing a working
environment in which bright, dynamic and committed
individuals to perform. We believe that investing in
our staff and developing their potential is important
to the success of the business. The Group strives to be
a caring employer, encourages work-life balance, and
communicates with the staff to enhance their sense of
belonging and morale.

The health and safety of the Group's employees and
visitors is of primary importance. The Group is committed
to create and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment. Health and safety assessments are carried
out regularly in the work areas.

The Group places great importance on the health,
safety and welfare of its employees. Relevant policies,
standards and procedures are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that any hazards or risks are removed or
reduced to minimize. The safety policies, standards, and
procedures are communicated to employees through
contracts of employment, the staff handbook, and
employee briefings. All employees have a duty to exercise
responsibility and do everything possible to prevent injury
to themselves and others.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

One of our foremost priorities is to provide employees
with a safe and conducive working environment

e Office employees are assigned with individual work
stations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated, kept
clean and tidy with ample space between work
stations;

e Offices are smoke-free;

e Office furniture and fittings are well maintained and
replaced where necessary;

e Security measures are in place at our offices to restrict
entry and exit only to staff and permitted visitors;and

e We follow the government’s work guidelines on
typhoon and rainstorm warnings.

In 2016, the Group reported no fatal causality accidents
and a policy of keeping “Accidents Record” has been set
up to continue alerting the management on safety and
health issues.

(iii) Development and Training

For improving employees’ knowledge and skills to
performing their duties at work, all staff are being
encouraged to take advantage of the staff development
programs, which includes internal and external courses
and vocational training fully subsidized by the Group.

(iv) Labour Standards

(v)

The Group strictly complied with the legislation in
relation to employment in Hong Kong and PRC. The
Group provides the required labour protection, safety
and health conditions to ensure employees’ safety during
their services. The Group also paid wages and salaries,
benefits and compensations, and insurances on schedule.

The Group has honored all of its obligations towards
staffs and no labour disputes or litigations have been
reported in 2016.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is primarily office-based financial service and
trading companies. The Group insists suppliers and other
partners that we deal with during the course of business
to follow the same environmental and operating practice
that the Group adopts.
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(vi) Product Responsibility (Vi)EmE1E

The Group endeavors to provide customers with
satisfying services and monitors customer complaints so
that they can be given the attention required to resolve
the problem and put processes in place to prevent
reoccurrence.

For the customer privacy protection, all the customers’
personal documents are being kept by the operation
departments with sufficient privacy measures. It is the
Group policy requires employees to keep confidential
of the information including customer information as
they are deemed to be non-public information. Those
information is only available for the enquiries by the
staffs responsible for company operation so as to ensure
customer information security.

The Group takes great care to the avoidance of risks of
infringement of intellectual property rights. All products
used by the Group are purchased through legitimate
sources. Currently there is no infringement of intellectual
property case by the Group.

(vii) Anti-Corruption

The Group is well aware of the importance of honesty,
integrity and fairness, and has included anti-corruption
policy in our Employees Handbook. Through the
establishment of these rules and regulations, we
encourage all employees discharge their duties with
integrity and comply with relevant laws and regulations.

In 2016, the Group reported no bribery nor corruption
charges.

(vii)Community Involvement

The Group currently is actively seeking opportunities
to make contribution to the society and the Group has
always encouraged our staff to participate in voluntary
and charitable events to service the community and
society.
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Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre
2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.
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HLM CPA LIMITED

Tel &7 : (852) 3103 6980

Fax f#H.: (852) 3104 0170

Certified Public Accountants

E-mail 7& ¥ : info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF GREATER CHINA FINANCIAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 70 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NERER 2 HHE
() BUE A BB AT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

(a) De-consolidation of subsidiaries

As fully described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the management and accounting
personnel appointed by the Group to Shanghai Xinsheng
Pawnshop Limited (“Xinsheng”) and Shanghai Zhongyuan
Pawnshop Limited (“Zhongyuan”) being unable to exercise
the right to manage the business of pawn broking and
money lending in the PRC of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan
under the Exclusive Consulting Service Agreements in July
2016, the Company had been unable to both i) obtain
the complete sets of books and records together with the
supporting documents and company chops of Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan and ii) maintain and operate the business
of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan. As such, the directors of the
Company considered that the Company had lost its control
over Xinsheng and Zhongyuan.

As a result, the directors of the Company considered it is
appropriate to de-consolidate Xinsheng and Zhongyuan
from the consolidated financial statements of the Group as
from 1 January 2016. The de-consolidation of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan had resulted in a net loss on de-consolidation
of subsidiaries of HK$324,478,000 and impairment loss
on the amounts due from the de-consolidated subsidiaries,
based on the management accounts, of HK$97,484,000 as
the directors were of the view that the carrying values of
the amounts due from Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were not
recoverable.

As set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had deconsolidated the balance of
liabilities included in de-consolidated subsidiaries as at 1
January 2016, which consisted of amounts due to the Group,
borrowing, other payables and accruals and tax payables
of HK$64,966,000, HK$195,170,000, HK$11,216,000 and
HK$713,000 respectively.

The directors of the Company considered that, the
consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2016 and
for the year then ended prepared on the aforementioned
basis present more fairly the results and state of affairs of
the Group as a whole in light of the aforesaid incomplete
books and records of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan. However,
the de-consolidation of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan from the
beginning of the year is a departure from the requirement of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”.
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We have not been provided with sufficient information
and explanations on the deconsolidation of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan and there were no alternative audit procedures
that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether it
was appropriate to de-consolidate the assets and liabilities
and cease to record results of operations of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan from the consolidated financial statements from
the beginning of the financial year ended 31 December
2016. In addition, due to the unavailability of complete
sets of books and records and the lack of information on
the assets and liabilities of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidences
to determine whether the net loss on de-consolidation
of subsidiaries and impairment loss on the amounts due
from the de-consolidated subsidiaries of approximately
HK$324,478,000 and HK$97,484,000 respectively, which
were charged to the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2016, was free from material misstatement. Due
to insufficient information and explanation of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan, we were unable to complete our audit procedure
as to whether the de-consolidated liabilities should, to the
extent unpaid, be recognised as liabilities of the Group.

(b) Contingent liabilities and commitments

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the lack of complete books and records
of the de-consolidated subsidiaries, we have been unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence and explanations
as to whether the contingent liabilities and commitments
committed by the Company were properly recorded and
accounted for and in compliance with the requirements of
applicable HKFRSs including HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. There were no alternative
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the contingent liabilities and commitments were free
from material misstatements.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirement of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and to issue
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matter described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
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Report on Other Matters under sections 407(2) and 407(3)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence about the deconsolidation of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report above:

e we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

e we have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary
and material for the purpose of the audit.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

HO PAK TAT

Practising Certificate Number: PO5215
Hong Kong

17 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBRakEtEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-R"E —ZT—HF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
{g=d THT FHETT
Revenue WA 5 75,175 115,956
Cost of sales HEMA (35,636) -
Gross profit EH 39,539 115,956
Other income, gains and losses H WA -~ Yas K EE 7 (218,969) 121,549
Administrative and other operating expenses 7TIE & £ th 4% 4 5 s (82,187) (83,304)
Finance costs B TS RCAR 8 (15,200) (29,398)
Share of (loss) profit of associates JE(LEE & AR (B5E) & F (98,410) 9,324
Impairment loss on interests in associates ~ HAB & A Rl 2 BB E 1B (267,410) -
Net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries EUE4RE ARMIB AR Z
[SEisbE (324,478) -
(Loss) profit before taxation BrBE AT (B518 ) & 7 (967,115) 134,127
Income tax FriS i 9 (3,435) (17,997)
(Loss) profit for the year FA(EE) R 10 (970,550) 116,130
Other comprehensive income (expenses), Efth 2 Wz (%) -
net of tax HBRBE
Items that may be reclassified HEWREHSE
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEHZMWEAR:
Exchange differences on translation of EREIFEINEE T
foreign operations EAERERE58 (5,968) (11,383)
Release of translation reserve upon disposal & M B A &)1 ## B
of subsidiaries b (& 1 - (39,980)
Reclassification adjustment relating to FABBBINEBES
foreign operations de-consolidated REANRCETOBAR
during the year 4,925 -
Share of other comprehensive income of FEAG B & A Bl H M 2 E W
associates (6,255) (5,950)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEREEN
financial assets N ER (110,583) -
Other comprehensive expense FREMEEAX
for the year (117,881) (57,313)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FRAZMHE (FX)WEEE
for the year (1,088,431) 58,817
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GReESERkEMEE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHETT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LA T AL EEFE R (FHE)
A
Owners of the Company KARHEE A (970,550) 116,130
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 - -
(970,550) 116,130
Total comprehensive (expense) income M TALTEAEZHE (BX)
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company KARHEE A (1,088,431) 58,817
Non-controlling interests FEFE I HE 2 - -
(1,088,431) 58,817
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
(Loss) earnings per share BR (&E)EF 14
— Basic —HK (26.28) 4.93
- Diluted —#58 (26.28) 4.81
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R

At 31 December 2016 R-_ZE—XE+-_A=+—8H

2016 2015
—E—-XRE —T—AF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3E FET FETT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN & 15 113,916 131,885
Prepaid lease payments A HEERIA 16 23,288 25,649
Goodwiill S 17 123,612 198,326
Intangible assets BICEE 18 11,274 -
Interests in associates REEE QAR 20 - 372,075
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 22 41,724 -
Contingent consideration receivable FEU AR AE 23 15,102 -
Deposits Ze 26 3,325 3,045
332,241 730,980
Current assets MENEE
Repossessed assets el & E 21 - 41
Loans and interests receivables R E SRR F B 24 37,061 359,698
Trade and other receivables JrE Wi BR 5k % B At e W kIR 25 31,379 2,367
Prepaid lease payments A ERIA 16 706 754
Prepayments and deposits ENFERES 26 3,573 8,366
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE 22 16,751 -
Tax receivables JE Uk #5518 2 -
Cash held on behalf of clients REFFENR: 27 15,746 -
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER 28 27,918 35,811
Bank balances and cash IRITEESHR MR 28 240,969 524,661
374,105 931,698
Assets classified as held for sale DIARELHENEE 29 - 7,588
374,105 939,286
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and accruals &< BR 2~ E 4th FE (- 3018
st E A 30 44,507 31,339
Deferred consideration RERE 33 96,595 64,020
Borrowings BE 31 57,231 199,945
Tax payables JE 1~ ¢ 18 822 6,192
199,155 301,496
Liabilities directly associated B AFHEHENEE
with assets classified as held for sale BEEEBNEaE 29 - 9,550
199,155 311,046
Net current assets RBEEFH 174,950 628,240
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAS 507,191 1,359,220
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a B AR R

At 31 December 2016 R—ZE—XF+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—ARF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred consideration EERE 33 24,283 63,900
Deferred tax liability REMIERE 35 - 1,100
Convertible notes BIE: S 32 5,070 54,885
Borrowings BE 31 55,835 77,590
85,188 197,475
Net assets EEFE 422,003 1,161,745
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital &% < 34 4,380 3,234
Reserves &1 416,847 1,158,511
Equity attributable to owners of RNARER AEIEER
the Company 421,227 1,161,745
Non-controlling interests FEERR = 776 -
Total equity AT 422,003 1,161,745
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAER
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share options  notesequity  Translation  Revaluation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TEARE
e RABE  BRERE BEEHE ERGE Efifit EERE it | Mt FERER @it
HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HKS,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000
TEL TAL AL TEL TEL TAL L TEL TEL T TAT
(Notes 50(@) ~ (Notes 50(b)) ~ (Notes 50(c)) ~ (Notes 50(d))  (Notes 50(e)) (Notes 50(f))
(Wsiso@)  (MEsob))  (MEsol)  (MEEso@)  (MEsole)  (Msksom)
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-f—-H 1,499 379,281 - - 35,358 - - (306,673) 109,465 - 109,465
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - - - 116,130 116,130 - 116,130
Other comprehensive expenses Hﬁﬁi@fw i
~ Exchange differences on translation — [ 5550 £ 5
of foreign operations Eiﬁ@[f&%éﬁ - S S S (11,383) S S S (11,383) S (11,383)
~ Release of translation reserve —HEMBARKERELEE
upon disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (39,980) - - - (39,980) - (39,980)
- Share of other comprehensive B E AR EH 2 EME
income of associates - - - - (5,950) - - - (5,950) = (5,950)
Total comprehensive income FRRENRER
for the year - - - - (57,313) - - 116,130 58,817 - 58,817
Issue of new shares on placements R ELERE{THRH 298 116,518 - - - - - - 116,816 - 116,816
Transaction costs attributable 1 &1/ EERSHA
to issue of shares - (259) - - - - - - (259) - (259)
Issue of convertible notes REENB AR
on acquisition of subsidiaries ?éfﬂ}ﬁﬁx?f - - - 101,192 - - - - 101,192 - 101,192
Recognition of equity-settled ANREEERN X 03
share based payments - - 5,831 - - - - - 5,831 - 5831
Issue of shares upon rights issue ~ SEERETRH 1,078 473,294 - - - - - - 474312 - 474312
Transaction coss attributable RIRER R ARA
1o rights issue - (6,767) - - - - - - (6,767) - (6,767)
Issue of shares upon acquisition KB A A AIBEIRG
of associates 359 301,919 = = = = = = 302,278 = 302,278
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - 4947 (4,947) - - -
At 31 December 2015
and 1 January 2016 3,234 1,263,986 5831 101,192 (21,955) - 4947 (195,490) 1,161,745 - 1,161,745
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (970,550) (970,550) - (970,550)
Other comprehensive expense Eft2ERY
- Change in fair value of -AHHESRAEY
avalable-for-sale LTEES
financial assets - - - - - (110,583) - - (110,583) - (110,583)
- Relassification adjustment -EREARHEGE BRI E
relating to foreign operations de- B2 EFHEHE
consolidated during the year - - - - 4,925 - - - 4,925 - 4925
- Share of other comprehensive  — BB E ARG A2 B
income of associates - - - - (6,255) - - - (6,255) - (6,255)
~ Exchange differences on -REERHEBM
translation of foreign EENERZR
operations - - - - (5,968) - - - (5,968) - (5,968)
Total comprehensive expense FRRERXER
for the year - - - - (7,298) (110,583) - (970,550) (1,088,431) - (1,088,431)
Issue of new shares on subscription  RBEFE{THRH 453 121,806 - - - - - - 122,059 - 122,59
Issue of convertible notes on RIEEN B A Ak
acquisition of subsidiaries BITARER - - - 61,723 - - - - 61,723 = 61,723
Conversion of convertiblenotes BT AKZRE 499 228,369 - (153,140) - - - - 75,128 - 75,728
Transaction costs attributable to BRI EER HHRA
conversion of shares - (161) - - - - - - (161) - (161)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRESERAXTNTE
share based payments - - 42,760 - - - - - 42,760 - 42,760
Share options lapsed EREXRMBRE
during the year - - (3,887) - - - - 3,887 - - -
Issue of shares upon acquisiton ~~ RUEEIE R AR EAIR (A
of subsidiaries 194 45410 - - - - - - 45,604 - 45,604
Release of statutory reserve upon  AMBAEEUERA AR
de-consolidation of subsidiaries (i) Y] - - - - - - (120) 120 N - -
Recognition of non-controlling EARKEHBAR
interest arising on acquisition MEEN AR R
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 776 776
At 31 December 2016 W=F-~E+-A=t-H 4,380 1,659,410 44,704 9,775 (29,253) (110,583) 4821 (1,162,033) 1,227 776 422,003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
2016 2015
ZEBE-RFE —T—IOF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 FET FHETT
Operating activities L EE
(Loss) profit before taxation %R Al (E18) & A (967,115) 134,127
Adjustments for: FATIER e FHEE
Amortisation and depreciation BERITE 11,538 10,180
Finance costs B I R AR 8 15,200 29,398
Impairment loss on trade and JRE 5T AR 3R K2 L At R U5 R
other receivables E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ 7 1,298 -
Impairment loss on loans and JE W E TR K A B
interests receivables VERIEN TR 7 62,420 3,633
Written off of other receivables i 8 L b jE Uk 5K I8 7 - 65
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEW B A F MK 7,37 - (127,263)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HE SRR SR
held for sale BEM K 7 (1,952) -
Net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries HUHM B R A4FA AR Z
B e AR 324,478 -
Interest income F B U A 7 (1,425) (395)
Loss on disposal and written off i RS %
of property, plant and equipment BiBs K 5 ) 5 18 7 79 22
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 e @%E 7 (131) (624)
Share-based payment expenses PARR 9 32 AP sRIE R 2 7 42,760 5,831
Share of loss (profit) of associates PR H & R A)
EiE G A) 98,410 (9,324)
Impairment loss on interest in associates N WNCIE Tl
MEWE 267,410 -
Impairment loss on amounts due from JE W Bse & R AR IB 2
associates BEEBE 7 21 -
Impairment loss on amounts due from JT&EH&HX/Q%?E\)\EEW%
de-consolidated subsidiaries A RIBH B EE R 7 97,484 -
Reversal of impairment on other receivables T@?@ﬁif@ﬁqﬁmlﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ 7 (469) (1,988)
Fair value change on contingent IAREBZATEEY
consideration 7 20,475 -
Operating cash flows before movements Rt L EEEHAH
in working capital QBB S B (29,519) 43,662
(Increase) decrease in trade 7 L BR SR % L 4th B R IB
and other receivables (30 ) kA (5.351) 3,520
Increase in loans and interests receivables & UK E 7 & FI B4 1 (100,320) (163,956)
Increase in other loan H b & FE N - 22,358
Decrease in repossessed assets U gEl éé/ﬂi 22 - 59
Decrease (increase) in prepayments ERRERES
and deposits wA (1) 4,926 (9,191)
Decrease in trade payables and JE T RR K - EL A B 5 5RIB K
other payables and accruals fEET & AR A (19,641) (95,599)
Decrease in amount due from FEWEBUHEER & AR B A7)
de-consolidated subsidiaries FRIER 8,664 -
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients ﬁﬁ)f'%ﬁzfﬁfiﬁﬁzﬂ\ 941 —
Increase in amount due from associates JE W Bt i R B FRIE G AN (21) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T—IOF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHETT
Cash used in operations KEFTRARE (140,321) (199,147)
Interest paid ENFE (7,532) (5,355)
Income tax paid EATIER (10,017) (13,327)
Net cash used in operating activities REEEFTRAIR & F 58 (157,870) (217,829)
Investing activities KEED
Interest received 2 WF & 1,425 395
Placement of pledged bank deposits EFEHEFRITER (29,308) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIEEFRITER 35,169 2,101
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEY % - BE L& B 15 (554) (15,262)
Net cash outflow arising on interest FOBGE A R RE B EE A Y
in associates WEmHEFE - (66,423)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEAHELESREE
assets (158,823) -
Net cash outflow on de-consolidated BUB#RE ARMEB A RIA
subsidiaries WEmHFEE 38 (33,834) =
Net cash (outflow) inflow from acquisition YK B& i /B A A1 AY IR &
of subsidiaries ORE) RAEEE 36 (44,661) 27,581
Net cash inflow from disposal of HENBARMIRS
subsidiaries MAFEEE 37 - 183,737
Net cash (used in) generated from wEEE (FTA)
investing activities i8I & /%58 (230,586) 132,129
Financing activities BMEED
Expense on conversion of convertible notes AR EE 2 A (161) =
Repayment of obligations under a BERMEHEE THER
finance lease (3) -
Proceeds from subscription of shares RN P RIE 122,259 -
Proceeds from placing of shares e & B 10 P 1S 508 - 116,557
Proceeds from borrowings BEENRIA 61,253 264,627
Repayment of borrowings BEEBE (78,544) (254,973)
Proceeds from rights issue AR P15 IE - 467,605
Net cash generated from financing activities Bl& EEFTSIE & F5E 104,804 593,816
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekB2EED CRL)
cash equivalents 3 ANFRE (283,652) 508,116
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HRER
ReEFED 524,661 16,180
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEEHHTE (40) 365
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, RM+—-—A=+—HR&X
represented by bank balances and cash ReZEEY  BRITEH
MR & 240,969 524,661
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBEEEY
and cash equivalents: FEER DT -
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR KRS 240,969 524,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company's registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Suites 3001-11, Tower Two, Times
Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding,
industrial property development, general trading of
consumable goods, securities brokerage, insurance
brokerage, asset management and loan financing operation
includes loan financing, loan referral and consultancy
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of
certain group entities that operate outside Hong Kong are
determined based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group entities operate.

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and revised HKFRSs affecting amounts reported
and/or disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements

The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to HKFRSs and a new
interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
Investment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting amounts reported
and/or disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Admendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except as describe below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the new and revised HKFRSs
will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“"FVTOCI") if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured
at fair value through profit or loss (""FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. JER =] L &RIE TN E B

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

The expected credit losses model under HKFRS 9 requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. Therefore, it
is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised. The measurement of the
loss allowance generally depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of the instrument. HKFRS 9 requires an entity to recognise
lifetime expected credit losses for all financial instruments for
which there have been significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition considering all reasonable and supportable
information, including that which is forward-looking. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities. In addition, the new impairment
requirements may result in earlier recognition of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation of the Group's financial
asset measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. JER =] L &RIE TN E B

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS
16 may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$15,614,000 as disclosed in note 40. However, the Group
has not yet determined to what extent these commitments
will result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments and this will affect Group's results and
classification of cash flows. Some of commitments may be
covered by the exception for short-term and low value leases
under HKAS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("Cco").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explanation in the accounting policy
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realizable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

@ Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

3. EREETHR

B 5|2

REMBHRRDRBERESTAASRM
MEBHHREERRE - WIN FER
BHRREEETEBARIABERARES
ERARA(TEMRR) REE R B
(TRBMEGI]) PR E B E AR T E R -

T XEGR S BRI R &
R GREMBERRIRBELKAEE
mEEETERIANDRATEE-

FELRA—BRRIESRBE MR REHG
RENQFEMEE -

RN EREMSLEE 2BETERET
MEFXZHHE-—REEMKREER
—HAREEMXANER BERZERSE
EERIMERELRAEMAERMIE
HEfEst AU EEXBEN A FEES
EEtE AEEEETHSE2EEENE
ERZEEXRBETEERHEEEN
AL - U SRS MWK PR ER
FEBEORFEDEUER T ARTE -

HEE B B 15 i 5 XE RIS 257 & R A BARR
MXMNORS FEGTEAFE17REE
MNEER S UWREQAFEBLEIL I
NEENFE (fln BB ERE25R
RV A IR R ERBF LG ERIE36HET
B R EE) BRN-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Statement of compliance (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
De-consolidation

Since July 2016, the Group was denied access to the books
and records and operating controls of Shanghai Xinsheng
Pawnshop Limited (“Xinsheng”) and Shanghai Zhongyuan
Pawnshop Limited (“Zhongyuan”). Existing staff and
management of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were laid off and
replaced by staff and personnel assigned by Shanghai Kuailu
Investment Group Company Limited (“Shanghai Kuailu”),
who is one of the registered shareholder of Xinsheng.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 July 2016, 18 August 2016 and 23 February 2017
("Announcements”) in relation to the legal actions taken by
the Group against Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and Zhongyuan
to enforce its rights under the variable interest entity
contracts ("VIE Contracts”) through the Shanghai Arbitration
Commission (“SAC").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
De-consolidation (Continued)

Although legal actions had been instituted against
Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and Zhongyuan (see Note 38),
the Group is unable to exercise control over the assets and
operations of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan. The management
considers that control over Xinsheng and Zhongyuan was
lost and therefore is appropriate that these subsidiaries be
de-consolidated from the Group’s financial statements. The
management considered that it is appropriate to account
for the deconsolidation as from 1 January 2016 instead of
from the effective date of losing control, which should be at
around July 2016, in spite of the Company received Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan's management accounts every month up to
June 2016, however, the Company was denied to access the
books and records together with supporting documents for
review procedures and unable to control over the operations
of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan.

Financial impact on de-consolidating Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan

The de-consolidation of the Xinsheng and Zhongyuan had
resulted in a net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$324,478,000 and an impairment loss
on the amounts due from the Xinsheng and Zhongyuan of
approximately HK$97,484,000 as the directors were of the
view that the carrying values of the amounts due from the
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were not recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The wholly owned subsidiary, Shanghai Yousheng Investment
Consulting Limited (“Shanghai Yousheng”), has entered into
a series of contractual agreements (details as below) with
Xinsheng, Xinsheng's direct equity holders namely Shanghai
Zhifeng Holdings Limited (“Shanghai Zhifeng”) and Shanghai
Kuailu ; whereas, the wholly owned subsidiary, Shanghai
Junning Investment Consulting Limited (“Shanghai Junning”),
has entered into a series of contractual agreements (details
as below) with Zhongyuan, Zhongyuan'’s direct equity holders
namely Shanghai Fake Corporate Development Company
Limited (“Shanghai Fake”) and Shanghai Baifu Investment
Holdings Company Limited (“Shanghai Baifu™) which enables
the Group to:

e exercise effective control over Xinsheng and Zhongyuan;

e exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Shanghai Zhifeng
and Shanghai Kuailu during the general meeting of
Xinsheng and of Shanghai Fake and Shanghai Baifu
during the general meetings of Zhongyuan;

e receive a majority of the economic benefits of Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan through service fees in consideration for
the management and consulting services provided by
Shanghai Yousheng and Shanghai Junning respectively;

e receive the residual economic benefits of Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan by exercising an exclusive option to purchase
the entire equity interest in Xinsheng and Zhongyuan
when and to the extent permitted under PRC laws; and

e obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan from their respective equity
holders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The details of the contractual agreements in relation to
Xinsheng (the “Contractual Agreement A”) are summarised
below:

(i BREIEREM MR ZE (the "Exclusive Consulting
Service Agreement”) dated 30 September 2014, its
supplemental agreement on 20 November 2014 and its
second supplemental agreement on 22 December 2014
pursuant to which Shanghai Yousheng agreed to provide
the Xinsheng with exclusive management consultancy
services for managing the business of pawn broking and
money lending in the PRC, and the Xinsheng agreed
to pay its profit before income tax (after deducting all
necessary costs and expenses) as service fees to Shanghai
Yousheng;

(i) P& #EE 4 A (the "Equity Pledge Agreement”) dated
30 September 2014 and its supplemental agreement
dated 20 November 2014, pursuant to which Shanghai
Kuailu and Shanghai Zhifeng agreed to pledge the entire
equity of Xinsheng to Shanghai Yousheng, as security for
the payment obligation under the Exclusive Consulting
Service Agreement. Under the Equity Pledge Agreement
(as amended and supplemented), except with prior
written consent of Shanghai Yousheng, Shanghai Kuailu
and Shanghai Zhifeng are prohibited from transferring
any of its equity interest in Xinsheng, or creating or
allowing any creation of any pledge which may affect the
rights and benefits of Shanghai Yousheng;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

HE-2-AET-A=1-H

3. ERNEETHUCR (#)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
HERBENEE (&)
(i B AT —MWOFALA=1THZHE

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i) BR B B B # % (the "Exclusive Call Option

(iv) RAE L FE &

Agreement”) dated 30 September 2014, its supplemental
agreement on 20 November 2014 and its second
supplemental agreement on 22 December 2014 pursuant
to which Shanghai Kuailu and Shanghai Zhifeng agreed
to irrevocably undertake that insofar as permitted under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, they shall transfer
their respective equity interests in Xinsheng back to
Shanghai Yousheng with nil consideration. In the event
that consideration is required to be provided for such
transfer under relevant PRC laws and regulations, such
consideration shall be the minimum as permitted under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, and that insofar as
permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations, the
full amount of consideration received by or paid to the
registered shareholders of Xinsheng, shall be returned to
Shanghai Yousheng; and

(the "“Authorisation Agreement”) dated
30 September 2014 and its supplemental agreement
on 20 November 2014, pursuant to which Shanghai
Kuailu and Shanghai Zhifeng have unconditionally
and irrevocably authorised and entrusted Shanghai
Yousheng or any party assigned by Shanghai Yousheng
to exercise, at the discretion of Shanghai Yousheng, all
the shareholder’s rights of Xinsheng including (without
limitation) rights to approve shareholders’ resolutions, file
documents with the relevant companies registry, vote in
shareholders’ meetings, transfer or in whatever way deal
with the equity interest of Xinsheng, and all shareholders’
rights provided for under the PRC laws and the articles of
Xinsheng.

The Authorisation Agreement also provided Shanghai
Yousheng with the right to authorise, at any time, any
of its directors and their respective successors (including
the liquidation committee of Shanghai Yousheng upon
liquidation of Shanghai Yousheng), and the directors
(and successors) of Xinsheng as nominated by Shanghai
Yousheng (including members of the liquidation
committee of Xinsheng nominated by Shanghai Yousheng
upon liquidation of Xinsheng), to exercise all rights
granted to Shanghai Yousheng under the Authorisation
Agreement (as amended and supplemented), and such
persons may only take instructions from Shanghai
Yousheng without seeking any prior agreement with
Xinsheng.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAERTBR (®)
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) FERBWEE(H)
The details of the contractual agreements in relation to BRATRNE QHZE ([581H&EB]) 25
Zhongyuan (the “Contractual Agreement B”) are summarised BHaan T

below:

(i) The Exclusive Consulting Service Agreement dated 8
September 2015, pursuant to which Shanghai Junning
agreed to provide the Zhongyuan with exclusive
management consultancy services for managing the
business of pawn broking and money lending in the
PRC, and the Zhongyuan agreed to pay its profit before
income tax (after deducting all necessary costs and
expenses) as service fees to Shanghai Junning;

(i) The Equity Pledge Agreement dated 8 September 2015,
pursuant to which Shanghai Fake and Shanghai Baifu
agreed to pledge the entire equity of Zhongyuan to
Shanghai Junning, as security for the payment obligation
under the Exclusive Consulting Service Agreement.
Under the Equity Pledge Agreement (as amended and
supplemented), except with prior written consent of
Shanghai Junning, Shanghai Fake and Shanghai Baifu
are prohibited from transferring any of its equity interest
in Zhongyuan, or creating or allowing any creation of
any pledge which may affect the rights and benefits of
Shanghai Junning;

(iii) The Exclusive Call Option Agreement dated 8 September
2015, pursuant to which Shanghai Fake and Shanghai
Baifu agreed to irrevocably undertake that insofar as
permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
they shall transfer their respective equity interests
in Zhongyuan back to Shanghai Junning with Nil
consideration. In the event that consideration is required
to be provided for such transfer under relevant PRC laws
and regulations, such consideration shall be the minimum
as permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
and that insofar as permitted under applicable PRC laws
and regulations, the full amount of consideration received
by or paid to the registered shareholders of Zhongyuan,
shall be returned to Shanghai Junning; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iv) The Authorization Agreement dated 8 September
2015, pursuant to which Shanghai Fake and Shanghai
Baifu have unconditionally and irrevocably authorised
and entrusted Shanghai Junning or any party assigned
by Shanghai Junning to exercise, at the discretion
of Shanghai Junning, all the shareholder’s rights of
Zhongyuan including (without limitation) rights to
approve shareholders’ resolutions, file documents with
the relevant companies registry, vote in shareholders’
meetings, transfer or in whatever way deal with the
equity interest of Zhongyuan, and all shareholders’ rights
provided for under the PRC laws and the articles of
Zhongyuan.

The Authorization Agreement also provided Shanghai
Junning with the right to authorise, at any time, any of
its directors and their respective successors (including
the liquidation committee of Shanghai Junning upon
liquidation of Shanghai Junning), and the directors (and
successors) of Zhongyuan as nominated by Shanghai
Junning (including members of the liquidation committee
of Zhongyuan nominated by Shanghai Junning upon
liquidation of Zhongyuan), to exercise all rights granted
to Shanghai Junning under the Authorisation Agreement
(as amended and supplemented), and such persons may
only take instructions from Shanghai Junning without
seeking any prior agreement with Zhongyuan.

Pursuant to the above Contractual Agreements and
undertakings, notwithstanding the fact that the Group does
not hold direct equity interest in Xinsheng and Zhongyuan,
the Group controlled Xinsheng and Zhongyuan and was
considered to be the primary beneficiary of the results,
assets and liabilities of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan for the
year ended 31 December 2015. Consequently, the Company
treats Xinsheng and Zhongyuan as indirect subsidiaries
under HKFRS. The Group had included the financial position
and results of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition by acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Loses control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Company's Board of Directors as
its chief operating decision maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
AN Pavaw .
3. BEREFTECR ()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Noncurrent Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by— transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES s

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operation policy decisions of the investee
but is not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’'s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. ERNEETBUR (8)

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EH = —

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

A B RN

F-AEt=A=+—A

3. ERNEETHUCR (#)

REBEATNRE (8)

AEEBRTBEEABERRE BHIEE
(KEF—HFD)DHEABELEEAR
IHFERAEEE - WAEBRERAIBE R
ETZ%J/;?HW%%’T%E@%@HQ&%ET-
BIAEBRE BIRAFEFEREER
Hﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ/&%ﬁ,\ﬁ&ﬁﬁmﬁiﬁéa.:MEEJJ
”39%%)]*%3%5%2 NEEBERRIR
LH%FH*%E\ /i*azﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁifﬂﬂ%
% AREEERNEBRE AR ER L
EHﬁﬁ?%WEZFWJ#%E AEAFZEHE
Bt N Az U sk BB R R T BRI o LS -
LkﬁlAﬂﬁEﬁlJEEmiﬁH&“L;A il
RAERZFIESBAR: Fﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁgéﬁﬁ
HE N NRERELERNBEERARBZE
R AL HZBERRLAE \/\ﬁﬂ
PEWREERZ WZ BB N &R
EESBENEF P BEEED IAEE
R ABFAES RN S EEmRER
EoBERE (EREFDERAR) -

EAKERFSNBE AR ARG EE
BERBDAR HAETREME2mKE
‘?E‘ié]ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%\ FERR 2 W ek 3K 5 18 HE
PHRREEHEEEXRBEREND “*EE
B a'JZK%.AH#;/ZHQﬁ@ZEﬂE“B

M—kEEREERENAR S EZH

BRAEIRGAEL &SN RER %AEE
A AR ERRAEEERZBERT -

ATEEAKREZGEMBRRER -

ol
T

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The 45% indirectly owned associate, Dingtai Runhe
Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“Dingtai Runhe"),
has entered into a series of contractual agreements (details
as below) with Shanghai Intraday Financial Information
Service Limited (“Shanghai Intraday”), Shanghai Intraday’s
direct equity holders namely Mr. Shao Yonghua (“Mr. Shao”)
and Mr. Zhu Wenjing (“Mr. Zhu"), which enables the Dingtai
Runhe to:

e exercise effective control over Shanghai Intraday;

e exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Mr. Shao and
Mr. Zhu during the general meetings of Shanghai
Intraday;

e receive a majority of the economic benefits of Shanghai
Intraday through service fees in consideration for the
management and consulting services provided by Dingtai
Runhe;

e receive the residual economic benefits of Shanghai
Intraday by exercising an exclusive option to purchase the
entire equity interest in Shanghai Intraday when and to
the extent permitted under PRC laws; and

e obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of
Shanghai Intraday from their respective equity holders.

The details of the contractual agreements in relation to
Shanghai Intraday (“Contractual Agreements C") are
summarised below:

(i) The Exclusive Consulting Service Agreement dated
14 April 2015, pursuant to which Dingtai Runhe
agreed to provide the Shanghai Intraday with exclusive
management consultancy services for managing the
internet finance platform and money lending in the PRC,
and the Shanghai Intraday agreed to pay its profit before
income tax (after deducting all necessary costs and
expenses) as service fees to Dingtai Runhe;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ERNEETHUCR (#)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REBERRANRKRE (8)
(i) BRAR_-_T—HFMA +MA 2 Rx#

Investments in associates (Continued)

(i) The Equity Pledge Agreement dated 14 April 2015,

pursuant to which Mr. Shao and Mr. Zhu agreed to
pledge the entire equity of Shanghai Intraday to Dingtai
Runhe, as security for the payment obligation under the
Exclusive Consulting Service Agreement. Under the Equity
Pledge Agreement (as amended and supplemented),
except with prior written consent of Dingtai Runhe, Mr.
Shao and Mr. Zhu are prohibited from transferring any
of its equity interest in Shanghai Intraday, or creating or
allowing any creation of any pledge which may affect the
rights and benefits of Dingtai Runhe;

(iii) The Exclusive Call Option Agreement dated 14 April

2015, pursuant to which Mr. Shao and Mr. Zhu agreed
to irrevocably undertake that insofar as permitted under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, they shall transfer
their respective equity interests in Shanghai Intraday back
to Dingtai Runhe with nil consideration. In the event
that consideration is required to be provided for such
transfer under relevant PRC laws and regulations, such
consideration shall be the minimum as permitted under
applicable PRC laws and regulations, and that insofar as
permitted under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the full amount of consideration received by or paid to
the registered shareholders of Shanghai Intraday, shall be
returned to Dingtai Runhe; and

(iv) The Authorization Agreement dated 14 April 2015,

pursuant to which Mr. Shao and Mr. Zhu have
unconditionally and irrevocably authorised and entrusted
Dingtai Runhe or any party assigned by Dingtai Runhe
to exercise, at the discretion of Dingtai Runhe, all the
shareholder’s rights of Shanghai Intraday including
(without limitation) rights to approve shareholders’
resolutions, file documents with the relevant companies
registry, vote in shareholders’ meetings, transfer or in
whatever way deal with the equity interest of Shanghai
Intraday, and all shareholders’ rights provided for under
the PRC laws and the articles of Shanghai Intraday.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Authorization Agreement also provided Dingtai Runhe
with the right to authorise, at any time, any of its directors
and their respective successors (including the liquidation
committee of Dintai Runhe upon liquidation of Dingtai
Runhe), and the directors (and successors) of Shanghai
Intraday as nominated by Dingtai Runhe (including members
of the liquidation committee of Shanghai Intraday nominated
by Dingtai Runhe upon liquidation of Shanghai Intraday),
to exercise all rights granted to Dingtai Runhe under the
Authorization Agreement (as amended and supplemented),
and such persons may only take instructions from Dingtai
Runhe without seeking any prior agreement with Shanghai
Intraday.

Pursuant to the above Contractual Agreements C and
undertakings, notwithstanding the fact that the Dingtai
Runhe does not hold direct equity interest in Shanghai
Intraday, the Dingtai Runhe controls Shanghai Intraday and
is considered to be the primary beneficiary of the results,
assets and liabilities of Shanghai Intraday. Consequently, the
Company treats Shanghai Intraday as an indirect associate
under HKFRS. The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss on
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “Investments in associates”
above.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Warehouse storage income

Warehouse storage income is recognised when the storage
services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREETHER ()
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA (&)
Sales of goods HEEm
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the iz

EEmBaRNEmEE B EERR
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all R BIRNER AT A AR R
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant s AEEEHEMEBEENEARR K
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; EmEHTET

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial e AKBURRE —WREABEEBEHD
involvement to the degree usually associated with EHEMTEEE R ERIEGIE:

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; o WEH BRI FMETE

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with o M FHMEKEN & AFR A 6L A
the transaction will flow to the Group; and rEE: R

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the s RHEEARBEEMNKARER FEiHL
transaction can be measured reliably. A=

Interest income FILE YA

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when TEREEMN B WARLENZRAIEER

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the AREE REE R SEH T B IRA SRR HER

Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. FMERATIARRAELERREELRE R

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to BRERNXZR MEBRENXRE S/

the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate BEETEFTF MM R KR & WA LR

applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated MREZEERV A ERRNRENFEZ

future cash receipts through the expected life of the P& o

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Consultancy service income B IR IMA

Consultancy service income is recognised when the services is BIARBUARIZ R R

provided.

Loan financing EHFE

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis MBI ALK A BB A B IAIRE F L fIHER

using the effective interest income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Gain on disposal of repossessed assets

Disposal gain is recognised when the buyer of the
repossessed assets has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.

Securities brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income from securities and
futures dealings, on a trade-date basis.

Insurance brokerage income

Insurance brokerage income and agency fee received or
receivable is recognised as revenue when the underlying
transaction has been completed.

Handling and settlement fee income

Handling charge and late charge revenues are recognised
when services are provided.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, which is generally below the net realizable value
of the repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the assets,
the related loans and advances together with the related
impairment allowances, if any, are derecognised from the
statements of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed
assets are carried at the lower of the amount initially
recognised or net realizable value and are therefore written
down if and when the net realisable value falls to below the
carrying amount of the asset. The difference between the net
proceeds and the carrying amount of the repossessed assets
is recognised as a gain/(loss) upon the disposal of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES s

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
improvement, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and
equipment and warehouse held for provision of storage
services, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual value over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal
group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets
and disposal groups held for sale”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale is
highly probable. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs of disposal. Property, plant and
equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

3. ERNEETHUCR (#)

s (48)

REEBINER (EEAKER /’iﬁl\%
BE R O RRELHMB AR (2
%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁmfﬂ%Zﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ%%
DERERHABMERNR (BEBINER)
MEDS (ETHREESER/EMEE) )
B BARBER AREZFEBE MR EaR
NEFHMEELZHEN D HEERR-

BESN - HE S HEMB AR MY T2 EHK
SR B s K B~ B RO 12 I - IR L B
%EM%?EE#%EE% B0 JRTE AU
@ BY ARERE AR BT E A A
DHE (T EEHAERREEAYE
ﬁﬁ ﬂ?ﬂ%%%%@TiA“ﬁﬁm
MoHE)ME  REPIFTIEH R ER
%%Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ A

BREE (FHERM)
BN E B EE

ERREmMAERAIEAFHCBIEE
R AR R 5T # 8H AR REHRIERB B
FR-BEERAIERAFR B EENERT
AERFEHANEREEREE NER
EH ARG A EREHREETT A
EEHEMER c FERAIERELEAR -
ERlEmAERIEAFHCBIEE
BB AR RFHRERBER (R
WTNBEHEBAR LB EEREBR G
B -

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES s

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are mainly classified into available-for-sale
("AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B ISR AR AE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ=_—Z

—R"F+ZA=+—8H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

(i)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and changes in foreign exchange rates, if applicable are
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
pawn loan receivables, trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e deterioration in the value of collateral.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash
flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining
and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is
probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading
process that considers collateral type, past due status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to
the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets
by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts
due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in property prices, payment status, or other factors
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly
by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to convertible
notes equity reserve. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible notes, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to convertible
notes equity reserve. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and are amortised over the lives of
the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and accruals
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Trust accounts

Trust accounts maintained by the Group to hold clients’
monies are treated as off-statement of financial position
items and offset against accounts payable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwvill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and other
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based compensation
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based compensation
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will continue
to be held in share-based compensation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control of the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(c) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, of the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification for warehouse for provision of storage services

The Group determines whether the warehouse in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") should be classified
as property, plant and equipment or an investment property.
The warehouse is used to generate warehouse storage
income that comprises warehouse rentals and income
from the supply of warehouse logistics services. In making
its judgement, the directors of the Company considered
that income and cash flows from warehouse rentals and
warehouse logistics services are interdependent and cannot
be separated. In addition, the directors of the Company
determined that the provision of warehouse logistics services
is significant to the warehouse storage operation as a whole.
For these reasons, the directors of the Company considered
that the warehouse is classified as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Contractual agreements

Under the relevant rules and regulations prevailing in the
PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprises are not allowed
to operate pawn-loan business in the PRC. The current
registered equity holders of Xinsheng are Shanghai Kuailu
and Shanghai Zhifeng and of Zhongyuan are Shanghai Fake
and Shanghai Baifu. As described in basis of consolidation in
note 3 above, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary Shanghai
Yousheng entered into a series of Contractual Agreements
A with Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and Shanghai Zhifeng;
whereas, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary Shanghai
Junning entered into a series of Contractual Agreements B
with Zhongyuan, Shanghai Fake and Shanghai Baifu. Pursuant
to the Contractual Agreements A and B and undertakings,
notwithstanding the fact that the Group does not hold direct
equity interest in Xinsheng and Zhongyuan, management
considers that the Group has power over the financial and
operating policies of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan and receive a
majority of the economic benefits from its business activities.
Accordingly, Xinsheng and Zhongyuan have been treated as
the indirect subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Internet information service is categorised as value-added
telecommunications business. Under the relevant rules
and reqgulations prevailing in the PRC, foreign investment
in value-added telecommunications business is restricted,
and the foreign ownership in such business cannot exceed
50%. The current registered equity holders of Shanghai
Intraday are Mr. Zhu and Mr. Shao. As described in basis
of consolidation in note 3 above, the Group’s indirectly
hold 45% equity interest of Dingtai Runhe which entered
into a series of Contractual Agreements C with Shanghai
Intraday, Mr. Zhu and Mr. Shao. Pursuant to the Contractual
Agreements C and undertakings, notwithstanding the
fact that the Group does not hold direct equity interest in
Shanghai Intraday, management considers that the Group
has significant influence over the financial and operating
policies of Shanghai Intraday and receive a portion of the
economic benefits from its business activities. Accordingly,
Shanghai Intraday has been treated as an indirect associate
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises the property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments and intangible assets
with finite useful life over their estimated useful life and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight line method. The estimated useful life reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group's
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
intangible assets with finite useful life. The residual values
reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group would
currently obtain from disposal of the assets, after deducting
the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of
the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful
life.

Impairment loss on interests in associates

The directors of the Company regularly review the
recoverable amount of the associates (including its goodwill).
Determining whether impairment is required involves the
estimation of the value in use less costs of disposal of the
associates to which exceed the carrying amount of the
associates. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of associates net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$267,410,000, amounted
to Nil (31 December 2015: carrying amount of associates
net of accumulated impairment loss of Nil, amounted to
HK$372,075,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

Property, plant and equipment mainly represented the
Group’s warehouse property. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the fair value of
the property, plant and equipment less costs to sell or the
value-in-use calculations. An impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The recoverable amount of warehouse has been determined
based on a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, using
the depreciated replacement cost approach. Besides, the
directors of the Company also determined the recoverable
amount of warehouse with the estimation of future
expected cash flows from the warehouse and a suitable
discount rate. The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$113,916,000 (2015: HK$131,885,000). The
carrying amount of warehouse is HK$102,883,000 (2015:
HK$118,024,000).

Prepaid lease payments are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the fair
value of the prepaid lease payments less costs to sell or the
future expected cash flows. An impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BE T HIE M T TR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments (Continued)

The recoverable amount of prepaid lease payments have
been determined based on a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, using comparable market price of similar
prepaid lease payments on an open market value with the
assumptions that the prepaid lease payments are sold in the
market in its existing state. The carrying amount of prepaid
lease payments is HK$23,994,000 (2015: HK$26,403,000).

The Group performed impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
impairment loss has been recognised for property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history
and the customers’ current credit-worthiness, as determined
by review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience. Credit losses
have historically been within the Group's expectations and
the Group will continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$14,624,000 (2015:
HK$1,215,000), net of accumulated impairment loss on trade
receivables of approximately HK$377,000 (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables,
and prepayments and deposits

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for other
receivables, and prepayments and deposits by assessing
the recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. Allowances are applied to other receivables,
and prepayments and deposits where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of other receivables, and prepayments and deposits
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at the end of the each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of other
receivables is approximately HK$16,755,000 (2015:
HK$1,152,000), net of accumulated impairment loss on
other receivables of approximately HK$1,049,000 (2015:
HK$614,000).

As at 31 December 2016, carrying amount of prepayment
and deposits is approximately HK$6,898,000 (2015:
HK$11,411,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
for prepayment and deposits in both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BE T HIE M T TR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment allowances on loans and interests receivables

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
periodically. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the profit or loss, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before
the decrease can be identified in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in
a group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in
the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of loans and
interests receivables is approximately HK$37,061,000 (2015:
HK$359,698,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$62,420,000 (2015: HK$3,633,000).

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$123,612,000 (2015:
HK$198,326,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair values of identifiable intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group's share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of the
reporting period or recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In the
absence of an active market for the business combination/
acquisition transactions undertaken by the Group, in order
to determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the directors of the Company had made their
estimates according to the valuation results produced by an
independent professional valuer. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the fair value of identifiable intangible asset
arising from the acquisitions of a subsidiary is HK$500,000.

Fair value of contingent consideration receivable

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable of
acquisition was determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions, including the discount rates,
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries and the probability of meeting each profit target.
It is subsequently re-measured to fair value at the end of
each reporting periods. Changes in assumption used could
materially affect the fair value of the balances and as a
result affect the Group's financial condition and results of
operation.

The carrying amount of contingent consideration receivable
as at 31 December 2016 was HK$15,102,000 (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BE T HIE M T TR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement of other financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility.

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for intangible assets. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which it belongs is estimated to determine impairment
losses on the assets. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years. The
recoverable amounts are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2016 was HK$11,274,000 (2015: Nil).

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense on
options granted. Share-based payments expense is based
on the estimated fair value of each option at its grant date,
the estimation of which requires the directors to make
assumptions about future volatility of the Group’s stock price,
future interest rates and the timing with respect to exercise
of the options. The effects of a change in one or more of
these variables could result in a materially different fair value.
The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was estimated at HK$34,350,000 (2015: HK$34,029,000)
and the amount associated with share-based payments for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is HK$42,760,000 (2015:
HK$5,831,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BB HE M IhETTNEHBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred taxes

The directors of the Company exercise full control over the
dividend policy of subsidiaries in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
dividends would be declared by the PRC Subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group did not provide
additional deferred tax in 2016 related to the unremitted
earnings of the PRC Subsidiaries that are subject to

withholding taxes once distributed.

. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

A=A F ERE (5

R THABEZENEERR (&)

EEFIE

ANABEEHPENMB AR ZREBEL
B7H E%M%o%%%%ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ%&
RRATRER A R A REIRZ S - ALt
—E-REAEETERPBENE QR
53 I R 7B B8 A TR 0 0 R BB ) B R AT IR EE
AN JE R IA o

%%Jm

L ON

AREBERFARANBASHAT :

2016 2015

ZE-RE —T—IOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHEIT

Sales of goods HEEm 36,448 -

Warehouse storage income B EF B A 8,904 13,651

Financial consultancy services fee & BRI IRTE 8,359 4,591
Interest income from NHZ M EWA

— loans receivables — R ER 14,519 97,712

— margin financing —REFEHE 362 -
Commission income from Tz A BA

— securities dealing —EHFRXH 1,686 -

— underwriting — B iH 308 -

— insurance brokerage — IR 42 4,581 -

— asset management —BEETE 8 -

Gain on disposal of repossessed assets HE LW E & E R - 2

75,175 115,956
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operations are organised into securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance brokerage, loan
financing, industrial property development business and
general trading. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance is
prepared on such basis. The Group is organised into the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Industrial property development segment represents the
operation of warehouse in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

— General trading segment includes trading of consumable
goods in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

— Loan financing segment represents the provision of loan
financing, loan referral and consultancy services in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

— Securities brokerage segment represents the operation of
securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placements in Hong Kong.

— Asset management segment engages in the provision of
asset management services in Hong Kong.

— Insurance brokerage segment represents the provision
of the insurance brokerage and agency services in Hong
Kong.

Due to the establishment of insurance brokerage segment,
the corresponding figures for prior year has been reclassified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. DEFE R (&)
Ot T

AT BAEERA 2 W5 & 58 RA K&
EREDH -

BE-_Z—R"F+-ZA=+—HLFE

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading  financing  brokerage management  brokerage Total
I%R
NERR -RE5 ERmE BHEL BEERE RigLe @t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T
SEGMENT REVENUE AHEA 8,904 36,448 2,878 2,356 8 4,581 75,175
SEGMENT RESULTS PR (7,637) 1,035 (43,568) (1,217) 1 1M (51,275)
Unallocated corporate RABMEERA
income 292
Unallocated corporate RABLERT
expenses (57,436)
Unallocated finance costs KD BB R A (7.679)
Fair value change on ARRENATESRD
contingent
consideration (20,475)
Net loss on BEGAARNEBARZ
de-consolidation of EEFE
subsidiaries (324,478)
Impairment loss on REEARBEZHEFR
interests in associates (267,410)
Share of loss of associates /5B A A B (98,410)
Share-based payment DR % 1 ROBB X
expenses (42,760)
Impairment loss on EREHFEABHEAR
amounts due from REZHERE
de-consolidated
subsidiaries (97,484)
Loss before tax BREAEE (967,115)
Income tax FiEH (3,435)
Loss for the year KEEFR (970,550)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. D ESE KL ()
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBMAREE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_T—hF+-_A=1+T—HIFE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage  management brokerage Total
IXA
NEER —REH EFRE BH4 BEER RER &4 @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAE TR FER  TER TR T Tan

SEGMENT REVENUE 5 EP 4L A 13,651 - 102,305 - - - 115,956
SEGMENT RESULTS % B4 (10,547) (1,813) 64,197 g - 27) 51,810
Unallocated corporate & % B2 2 Wt A

income 178
Unallocated corporate A2 B 25

expenses (44,357)
Unallocated finance & ) g Bt # Ak A&

costs (4,260)
Gain on disposal of  HE KB L &)Uk

subsidiaries 127,263
Share of profitof ~ fE{ & D El& 7l

associates 9,324
Share-based payment LAR {7 2 4 708

expenses 53 (5,831)
Profit before tax BRE A A 134,127
Income tax MY (17,997)
Profit for the year ~ ANEE & 116,130
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external EXE2HH D EBRAEKBINEE S -
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEFE R (&)

Segment assets and liabilities PEHEEHEAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NTRAEEEERABKRAAZHRD S

liabilities by reportable segments.

At 31 December 2016

DEIDHT

R-ZE—XRE+=ZHA=+—H

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage ~ management brokerage Total
I%R
NERR -RES ERRE BHER BEER RBREL Fby
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn Fhx THx THx TiEx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets APHEE 165,975 23731 143,297 33,057 236 3,290 369,586
Unallocated bank FABRBAILEBRERS
balances and cash 151,805
Unallocated property, FARNE BERRE
plant and equipment 10,414
Unallocated other receivables, FABEMERTE BARERES
prepayments and deposits 517
Unallocated goodwill AIRBHE 123,612
Unallocated available-for-sale FARAHLESREE
financial assets 30,656
Unallocated contingent consideration ~ RARENHAKE
receivable 15,102
Consolidated total assets GREESE 706,346
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AHEE 100,792 66 38,065 17,295 - 1,032 157,250
Unallocated other payables FAREMERTE 1,145
Unallocated convertible notes FABIRRES 5,070
Unallocated deferred consideration FARBEAE 120,878
Consolidated total liabilities GREREE 284,343
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—hF+-_A=+—H
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Total
T%#5
NEER —%85 EXNRA FAEE BEER RBELE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ThEL ThT THET T T T ThL
ASSETS RE
Segment assets PHEE 185,475 2,041 401,443 - - 666 589,625
Unallocated bank balances and cash ROERTEBRRS 481,124
Unallocated property, plant and equipment AAENE BEREE 12,911
Unallocated other receivables, prepaymentsand KA EE U E  BAFRIER
deposits i 9,997
Interests in associates REERANER 372,075
Unallocated goodwil AOEEE 196,946
Non-current assets classified as held for sale PERBELEZERDEE 7,588
Consolidated total assets GREEES 1,670,266
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilties ABAME 126,126 2,387 184,911 - - 10 313,434
Unallocated other payables RAREMENTIE 1,632
Unallocated convertible notes FOETRRER 54,885
Unallocated deferred considerations RARELRE 127,920
Unallocated deferred tax liability AOEEERBEEE 1,100
Liabilities directly associated with assets BARRKELEZEE
classified as held for sale EERHZAR 9,550
Consolidated total liabilities SRAELE 508,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other information

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
I SRR N e
6. D EPE R (&)

BE-_Z-—R"F+-A=+t—HLFE

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage gement brokerag Unallocated Total
I%A
NERR -RE% EXRE BHEL BEER RBEL RO @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FER FER TER FEL TEL TET FET
Information included in segment (AR HER/ FHEEN
results/segment assets: E#:
Amortisation and depreciation ~ EHRITE 8,671 - 45 3 - b ] 2,776 11,538
Finance costs BB 7,521 - - - - - 7,679 15,200
Loss on disposal and written off  HERMENE BER
of property, plant and equipment R EHEE 1 - - - - - 78 79
Impairment loss on trade and EUEHR A ERFOEN
other receivables HEFR - - 377 - - - 921 1,298
Impairment loss on loans ERERRAEWRERS
and interests receivables - - 62,420 - - - - 62,420
Interest income FSHWA (1,162) 3) (68) (89) - - (103) (1,425)
Reversal of impairment losson BB EUENEEFE
other receivables - - (469) - - - - (469)
Impairment loss on amounts due ~ EWEUE A ARKBA R
from de-consolidated subsidiaries M HEFR - - - - - - 97,484 97,484
Impairment loss on amount due BB & A RFENAERFR
from associates - - - - - - il 2
Fair value change on FARENATLELD
contingent consideration - - - - - - 20475 20475
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE - ZT—RAF+_-_A=1+—HIEE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Unallocated Consolidated
I4R
NEER -%E85 EpE FHEE BEER RipEE KA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThEL FEL FEL T TAL TAL TAL
Information included in segment AR BEE/ HHEEN
results/ segment assets: A
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 9,193 = 528 = = = 459 10,180
Finance costs HBHRA 8,080 62 16,99 - - - 4,260 29,398
Impairment loss on loans ERERRASHREFE
and interests receivables - - 3,633 - - - - 3,633
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARAMKE - = = = = = (127,263) (127,263)
Interest income MBMA (118) (34 (159) - - - (84) (395)
Written off of other receivables A ERE 65 - - - - - - 65
Reversal of impairment loss on BEEMEYENRERE
other receivables - (1,988) - - - - - (1,988)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Geographical information

The Group'’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the
locations of operations and information about its non-current
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed

D EBE R ()

i EE R

A A T b B AR A R

AT S 7 2 [ AR 8 468 45 140 8 3 15 O PR B

HIRARREEMAERRE DN IERBE
EZER:

below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIIREF KA FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—-XREF —E—hF —ZE—REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET THERT FHET
Hong Kong an 21,464 - 164,368 558,650
PRC i 53,711 115,956 167,873 172,330
75,175 115,956 332,241 730,980
Information about major customers EBRFXEEFNEHR

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

REBFEXRBIEAEERKAI0% A
EOEPZBAMT

as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—AHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Customer A’ BEA 9,939  N/A2 T A2

' Revenue from loan financing.
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
total revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. EA A - e R E 1B
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Fair value change on contingent consideration f& U X & &9 A - (& & (20,475) -
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HES R IELHEMNEEN RS
held for sale 1,952 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR K= - 127,263
Handling fee income FEBWA 443 -
Impairment loss on loans and FEWE R R AN EH R EEE
interests receivables (62,420) (3,633)
Impairment loss on trade and other JRE M50 B TR % L At JE Uk TR TR A
receivables BB E B (1,298) -
Impairment loss on amount due JE WL & R Rl SR IB HRE S 1B
from associates (21) -
Impairment loss on amounts due FEWEHUE AR & ABRKME QR
from de-consolidated subsidiaries FIEHREBE (97,484) -
Interest income FEKA 1,425 395
Loss on disposal and written off of HERMEME  BE R
property, plant and equipment REREE (79) (22)
Net foreign exchange gain P 5 = F 58 131 624
Reversal of impairment loss on other 12 [0] H th & R IR B0 R B S 18
receivables 469 1,988
Share-based payment expenses AR X T RIE R (42,760) (5,831)
Sundry income HMIERA 1,148 830
Written off of other receivables 18 8H H th FE UK IR - (65)
(218,969) 121,549
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BATSR AR
2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Imputed interest on deferred consideration iEE (B &) E FI S 3,740 -
Effective interest on convertible notes AMBRERERNE 3,928 4,260
Interest on a margin securities account RESFBFERFPHFE 11 -
Interest on bank loans RITEFRFE 7,521 11,680
Interest on other loans H &5 A 8 - 13,458
15,200 29,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

9. INCOME TAX

9. T

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Current tax: E HARIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REERTER 4,515 17,304
Over provision in prior years: BT FEBRERE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI - (433)
Deferred tax (note 35): ERERI IR (FiFE35) ¢
Current year EAFE (1,080) 1,126
3,435 17,997

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
have no estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2016. No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has
been made as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is
derived from Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is calculated at the
applicable rates based on estimated taxable income earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of the Group with certain tax
concession, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practice in respect thereof.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
"EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

@ Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

REZE-_ETE—ARNER-_ZT—HF+_A
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F+_A=1+—HIEFERTEMGTER
Fom A MY EBIELBAFSHEE - A
RAEEHE-_Z—HE+-_A=+—8
IFEETEREBELSREEEHRA
Bt WER B BB IBELBE-

RECEMGBHR(TEEMBEHR]) HIRR
HEGXN mERERBEASERZE
ETHEEE 2T BB R F ARG
AHERTBM A ERRERFE -

BREPEARAMBEEEMSHOL (T1
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AEETEMNBRRXMESE 2 ERF
BEXMAEHRRER25%



9. INCOME TAX (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

9. FTEH (@)

AREEREHAX ARG BRa REtE
T W 25 2% YR BR B AT (/5 48 ) it ) 3 R 40

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before tax in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-RE ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
(Loss) profit before tax BrELAT (E1E) & F (967,115) 134,127
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% 1% Wﬁﬁ T E25%
(2015: 25%) —FRF:125% ) EH
ﬁ‘RIE (241,779) 33,532
Tax effect of share of (loss) profit of FE(L B & AR (BR) & M8y
associates MBE 24,602 (1,538)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for LIk %Rﬁ'ﬂfi N B T E
tax purpose 174,494 8,556
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAGHRANT G E
tax purpose (2,591) (21,541)
Over provision in prior years BT FEBREEE - (433)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEEMEEE L
as deferred tax asset MBS E 34,855 5,339
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABTRERNNIEEIR
not recognised (141) -
Deferred tax liabilities arising on AR BB & A B R 2 TR
undistributed profits of associates EXRELEHEAR
in the PRC (1,080) 1,126
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ W E th AlARE (& & E MY
operating in other jurisdictions B AR TR ENFE 15,075 (7,044)
Income tax expenses for the year FAMEHAX 3,435 17,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

10.(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10.8FE (EE) &M

AEE (BER) &M E MR T55RA

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging
the following items:

2016 2015
—B-ARE —ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR 18 & R IE Y 8E 741 785
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEENE GTATHE
(included in administrative and HihEERY)
other operating expense) 27 -
Auditor’s remuneration % ELED B
— audit services —ZE R 1,000 1,000
— other services —H A RS 1,050 970
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses REAZNFEKA 35,621 =
Depreciation of property, plant ME- WEREEOFTE
and equipment 10,770 9,395
Legal and professional fees EERBEEEA 11,773 19,700
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B TR A (BIEEEME) 23,446 16,987
11.DIVIDENDS 11./0% B
No dividends was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders NRZE—RNFERERAARAREBRRRIEN
of the Company during 2016, nor has any dividend been FERRNRE BEREHARETEESR

proposed since the end of the reporting period (2015: Nil). KNEERE (ZE—RF |) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS NEEFMNzkER (BEEAA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION fkl (55622%F ) 38315 A A
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEENZER) RO (F
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622GE ) MNEE EMHBAET
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT M2 5% )

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERITHARHS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, R b 48 B R A B 6 BB B Y
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and %%&ﬁﬂlﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ\]%éﬁﬂT : )
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: o
= - F — X = — il
For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;ﬁi_g RET=—A=t-BLF
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes emoluments
e 2HR BIKER

ik Hib R B SRR Wewsm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEx TiEx

Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chief Executive AR RHEE (THEHR) (Notea) (Fiza) - 1,560 - 9 1,569
Mr. ZHANG Peidong FMRELE (Note b) (FI&Eb) - 357 - 9 366
Ms. CHAN Siu Mun BRIk NE (Note ¢)  (Fif5Ec) - 900 450 9 1,359
Mr. SHAO Yonghua BRkELAE (Note d) (Fi3Ed) - 559 - - 559
Mr. CHEN Ningdi BREMLE (Note e) (fff3te) - 1,700 - 9 1,709
- 5,076 450 36 5,562
Non-Executive directors EHRITES
Mr. Joseph Shie Jay LANG EPHEZ LA (Note f)  (FI&Ef) 95 - - - 95
Ms. MA Xiaoling EREeME (Note g) (Fiztg) 112 - - - 112
Mr. YIN Xiaoguang FEXELE (Note h) (Fff&Eh) 270 - - - 270
Mr. Liu Kequan ARRnk (Note a) (fff3¥a) 60 - - - 60
537 - - - 537
Independent non-executive directors 1 {TES
Mr. JIN Bingrong IR L (Notei) (PfsEi) 360 - - - 360
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor HERLE (Note )  (FI5E}) 360 - - - 360
Dr. RUI Mingjie RAAREL (Note k) (FisEk) 360 - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu BARFEE (Note l)  (Fif3l) 181 - - - 181
Dr. LYU Ziang ETREL (Note m) (FffzEm) 177 - - - 177
1,438 - - - 1,438
Total emoluments et 1,975 5,076 450 36 7,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS NEFMNmEER (BEAA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION & (ZE622EF ) E38315F A A
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEENZER) RO (F
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622GE ) MNEE EMHBAFET
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT ML EE) (&)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTTHHEARME (B)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_T—AFT+A=+—HLHF
E
Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowance and  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees other benefits bonus schemes  emoluments
e RMR RAREH

we  HMEN BT SEHX Hees
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET TR

Executive directors BTES
Ms. MA Xiaoling ERE/MA (Note g) (FfizEg) - 1,360 680 = 2,040
Ms. CHAN Siu Mun Bk E (Note ¢ (FizEc) - 1,480 740 18 2,238
Mr. SHAO Yonghua ABKE S & (Note d) (Fi3Ed) - 554 - - 554
Mr. CHEN Ningdi, Chief Executive BREBEE (THREH) Notee) (Mizte) - 848 = 7 855
= 4,242 1,420 25 5,687
Non-Executive directors FHTEE
Mr. CHAN Sze Hon BREHEE (Note n) (FffzEn) 20 - - - 20
Mr. Joseph Shie Jay LANG BA L& (Note f) (FI3Ef) 331 281 - = 612
Mr. CHEN Ningdi Bt (Notee) (FffsEe) 184 - - - 184
Ms. MA Xiaoling EER /A (Note g) (fisFg) 127 - - - 127
662 281 = = 943
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Mr. CHING Men Ky, Carl BERLE (Note o) (ffizFo) 80 - - - 80
Mr. LIN Ruei Min WHRREE (Note p) (FfizEp) 183 - - - 183
Mr. SHU Wa Tung, Laurence HERLE (Note ) (FfizEq) 60 - - - 60
Mr. JIN Bingrong SRR E (Note i) (i) 278 - - - 278
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BERERE (Note ) (fi&E)) 240 - - - 240
Dr. RUI Mingjie KA EL (Note k) (FifsEk) 86 - - - 86
927 = = = 927
Total emoluments [ 1,589 4,523 1,420 25 7,557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(@ Mr. LIU Kequan was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 1 June 2016 and
re-designated as an executive director and appointed as the
chief executive officer and chairman from an non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 30 June 2016.

(b) Mr. ZHANG Peidong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect on 30 June 2016 and
re-designated as an executive director from an independent
non-executive director with effect on 5 July 2016.

(c) Ms. CHAN Siu Mun resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect on 30 June 2016.

(d) Mr. SHAO Yonghua was appointed as an executive director
of the Company with effect on 16 July 2015 and resigned
on 18 March 2016.

(e) Mr. CHEN Ningdi was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 13 February 2015.
He was re-designated as an executive director from a
non-executive director of the Company and appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect on
25 August 2015. He resigned as an executive director and
cheif executive officer of the Company on 30 June 2016.

(f) Mr. Joseph Shie Jay LANG was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 21
January 2015 and resigned with effect on 5 April 2016.

(g) Ms. MA Xiaoling resigned as the chief executive officer of
the Company and re-designated as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect on 25 August 2015. She
retired as a non-executive director of the Company with
effect on 22 April 2016.

e SRR MR

HE-2-AET-A=1-H

NEEFMNzkER (BEEAA
& (35622F ) 538315 A A
(BFEEENZER) RO (F
622GE ) MNEE EMHBAET
M EE) (50

() EERTHARME (18)

GEE

@ BIRREEXRENR_T—RFRA—
FEEZESARBFATEE LR
ZE-RFAAZTRHEBAKRATF
HTEFHIRATESTREZRIR
TTHRAERNER -

b) FHREER-_F—ARFRNA=1H
HREZTIRBYUFATEZRRN_-F
—ARFELARAREHBIYFNTES
HAERBITES-

(O BRIKS/NER-FT—RFARHA
BEARRHITES -

d) BXEEER-_T—AFLHATNA
EEZE/RRAATEEIRN-F
—RNF=At/\BEE-

() BEHBMELEN _ZT—RE_A+=
HREEZERIDTES BN
—RAENA-+HBRBAAQATIER
TEEFATARTEESNEZEAARN
NEITHRHE TR _F—F~A
ZTHBIERQARITRES

+H

) BEREER_Z-—RAF-—A=-+—
FEEZESARRABFATEERR
—E-RNFOARBEE-

(9 BERNER-_FT—-—AFN\A=-TH
AEEARRITRAR AT RIEH
TEE- RN -_T—R"RFOA-_1+=
BEREERARFERITES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(h) Mr. YIN Xiaoguang was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 1 June 2016 and
resigned with effect on 1 January 2017.

(i) Mr JIN Bingrong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 20
March 2015.

() Mr. KWAN Kei Chor was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 4
May 2015.

Dr. RUI Mingjie was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 7
October 2015.

() Mr. ZHOU Liangyu was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 30
June 2016.

Dr. LYU Ziang was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 5
July 2016.

Mr. CHAN Sze Hon resigned as an non-executive director of
the Company with effect on 30 January 2015.

Mr. CHING Men Ky, Carl retired as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 30
April 2015.

Mr. LIN Ruei Min resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 7 October 2015.

Mr. SHU Wa Tung, Laurence resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect on 31
March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Continued)

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015. No incentive payment for
joining the Group was paid or payable to any directors
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2015: Nil).

NEEFMNzkER (BEEAA
& (35622F ) 538315 A A
(FBEEEMNEER) B (F
622GE ) MNEE EMHBAET
M EE) (50

() EERTHARME (18)

HE_T—R"FEZT—HF+=-H
=+—HLEFE BEESNELH
e RBZ_T—R"FR_F—F
F+-_A=+—BIEFER BEM
FRESENREMNEARIE (ER
MAREE 2 52/ -

FIRTEEMS D EERBWERE
E_Z-RERZZE-OF+ZA
St HLEFREHRBHAEEART
RASEEHORB M A

FIBERITEEME D EERRER
BE T R"RFER-_ZE-HF+_A
=+ —BUEFEEERARSENNE
NEIEEWARG M e
FIBUATESME I EERE
ERNEBE_ZE—RFR-ZE—1F
TZA=T-RALEFEEERRFSK
HIffB AR EEHRB M e
(b) ESRKEF

FA - BEEE D WER S WEEA
BAKEN(ZF—RF 8&)-

() EBRILERER

FRBEE SO WA WEER
RIFEREN (ZFE—h%F &) -

(d) BFHESRBERE=FRENKE

BE-F-AF+-A=t+—AL#
AR RS (e ik E RIS 1
AE=FLARE (=B 0% &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporates and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2015: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2015: Nil).

13.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two directors (2015: two directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2015:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

n%%ﬂé&ﬁéiﬁ/ﬁ_
&0 (F622F ) 5538315
(BFEEEFmER) R
622G E ) N EE E T AA
M E) (@)

el

D)

A g 2

Sm

() FEANES ZEBEABBEZSE
EENEEERRZRANER £
EXREMIZHNER

HE_Z—R"F+_A=+—HLHF
R *EHEEFELA%$ REGEARE S
RZEEENHEERAT R /\E’]E
FEERREMZR L (ZF—
Fom|E)-

(f) EERXRZ ZHAEHNPHNERRE

3%

ARARMERERBKITLARA/E
RETRTRARRESTERLMER
B E AR & A F R SF AR
MATFENERR S LHHAH (Z
T—RHFE)-

BAZESHES

FAAEEREREHEEETEME (=
T-AFE WME)AES EMEHNLEX
5312 A T =B (ZZE—RHE: =51
FARARNABEERITHRARNESHFEER
FRHOMESFHFBOT

2016 2015

—E-RFE —T—1F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FE& T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e REERHEHAMER 5,701 618
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R 4K4E F 5+ 2|4 5% 49 105
Share-based payment expenses ARR 7 2 AT RIERA X 7,347 5,831
13,097 6,554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

13. A% &

ATEHINWIEARRREZNRFEEA
B R E ) Hr M

=S¥ ES (#)

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

T L 21,000,000 7T

1,000,001/& 7c £ 1,500,0007% 7T
1,500,0017& 7c £2,000,0007% 7T
2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007%8 7T
2,500,001/ 7T 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 7T £3,500,0007% 7T
3,500,001/% 7T £4,000,000/%8 7T
4,000,0017% 7T £4,500,000/%8 7T

2016 2015
—E-XE —T—HF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAR BB A

1 -

- 3

1 _

1 —

3 3

14.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

14. 88 (BE)&27F

ARAEBESH A ARGERER R E#
B (BHR) BNIR THBEAE:

(Loss) earnings

(Loss) earnings for the year attributable to
owners of the Company for the purpose of AR HB ABRFER (FIE)

basic (loss) earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Interest on convertible notes (net of tax)

(BR) &R
EREAR (BR) &M S/
27

BEEEEBRVE
THBBEFS (NRBIR)

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of diluted

(loss) earnings per share

EREE (B1R) &R S/
(E1R) &7

2016 2015
—B-X"E —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET BT
(970,550) 116,130

- 4,260
(970,550) 120,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

14.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

14. 7 0% (EE) B85 ()

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—ARF
‘000 ‘000
T F 1%
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bt &R E A (E18) &BF| 5 &
for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per A4 F 15 % 38 AL £ B
share 3,693,379 2,354,846
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ##8ZE LR 2 ¥
— Share options — R - 2,679
— Convertible notes — AR EE - 146,434
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t &A% #5% (E518) B2 5| = &Y
for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings i ERREA
per share 3,693,379 2,503,959

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is based
on the (loss) profit attributable to owners of the Company,
and the weighted average number of shares approximately
3,693,379,000 ordinary shares (2015: 2,354,846,000) in
issue.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2016
did not assume the exercise of the share options during the
year since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. No
adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as conversion of
convertible notes would result in a decrease in loss per share.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is same as the basic
loss per share.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company, adjusted
to reflect the interest on the convertible notes for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Company has dilutive
potential ordinary shares which are the convertible notes and
share options. The convertible notes are assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is
adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9% W FE k&
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor Construction
improvement Warehouse equipment vehicles in progress Total
BR-HER
HENEEE RE RE RE HEIR ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHEL FHT FHT THET
Cost D%
At 1 January 2015 R-E-HE—A—H - 170,394 1,809 772 - 172,975
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A R e IR 1,739 - 564 195 - 2,498
Additions NE 9,979 - 1,281 2,363 1,639 15,262
Derecognised on disposal of HE—HMBAARRIEER
a subsidiary - - - - (1,639) (1,639)
Disposal HE - - (841) - - (841)
Written off g - - (70) (295) - (365)
Exchange realignment ERR (95) (9,445) (49) (73) - (9,662)
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016 11,623 160,949 2,694 2,962 - 178,228
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries L= INSIEl ¢ 472 - 1,708 332 - 2,512
Additions NE 320 - 234 - - 554
Disposal HeE - - (16) - - (16)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUEERA AR B AR (1,644) - (607) (361) - (2,612)
Written off k! - - (99) - - (99)
Exchange realignment EHAR - (10,382) (29) (61) - (10,472)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZEB-XE+=A=t-H 10,771 150,567 3,885 2,872 - 168,095
Depreciation and impairment FERAE
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1F¥—-A—-8 - 36,924 1,564 712 - 39,200
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries B R A RIS IR 1,002 - 466 9 - 1477
Provided for the year REEHB 624 8,378 225 168 - 9,395
Eliminated on disposal HE R - - (841) - - (841)
Written off W - - (70) (295) - (365)
Exchange alignment ERHAR (69) 2,377) (35) (42) - (2,523)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RE+-A=+-BEK
1 January 2016 —E—xf—f—H 1,557 42,925 1,309 552 - 46,343
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries WeEBHTE A IR I 472 - 1,438 210 2,120
Provided for the year AEEEE 2,032 7,903 403 432 - 10,770
Eliminated on disposal 8 - - (30) - - (30)
Eliminated on deconsolidation of subsidiaries EUH4: & ABRHI B2 A)E i 44 (1,285) - (409) (101) - (1,795)
Written off My - - (33) - - (33)
Exchange alignment & 5 A% - (3,144) 3 (55) - (3,196)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE+=A=+-H 2,776 47,684 2,681 1,038 - 54,179
Carrying amounts BEE
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE+=A=+-H 7,995 102,883 1,204 1,834 - 113,916
At 31 December 2015 R-B-RF+=-A=t+-AH 10,066 118,024 1,385 2,410 - 131,885
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Leasehold improvements

Warehouse

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Over the shorter of remaining
unexpired terms of the leases
and 20%

5%

10%-33%

20%-33%

The warehouse are situated on land in the PRC held under a
medium-term to long-term land use right.

16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments are amortised and
charged to the profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

15. Y% W= M & ()

EiE  BE KRB B R T E
REGREHEE

HEWEXRE - REORKRFHK20%
(ABEER%E)
BE 5%

FHMFEh B RERE 10%-33%
RE 20%-33%

REMRTE L - REFHERAL
HlE SRR

16. A E 58

AEENENEEFRREREENESR
NESFEBRaEME2ERERTHIES
P 55 2 Rk

2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Cost DN
Balance at beginning of the year FYEEER 33,946 35,938
Exchange realignment PE 3 3 & (2,190) (1,992)
Balance at end of the year FRER 31,756 33,946
Accumulated amortisation g ¥
Balance at beginning of the year FYEERR 7,543 7,187
Amortisation for the year FABH 741 785
Exchange realignment P X R (522) (429)
Balance at end of the year FRER 7,762 7,543
Carrying amounts RRMEE
Balance at end of the year FRAER 23,994 26,403
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEMSONWT -
Current assets mENE E 706 754
Non-current assets ERBEE 23,288 25,649
23,994 26,403
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
17.GOODWILL 17.79 28
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Cost AR
Balance at beginning of the year F LR 198,326 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U BB B8~ 7 (BfsE36) 121,282 198,326
De-consolidation of subsidiaries (note 38)  EUB4R & ABRHIE A A
(Pff5E38) (195,996) =
Balance at end of the year FREERR 123,612 198,326
Accumulated impairment losses It REEE
Balance at beginning of the year F s - -
Impairment loss for the year FRREEE - S
Balance at end of the year FRAER - -
Carrying amounts AREE
Balance at end of the year FRER 123,612 198,326

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 19.

18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BRAMBRERNRNFERMEI19KE-

18. B & E

Information
Trading integration
right platform Total
R5E EEERTA HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THET
Cost %N
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 n-Z-—HF—A—QH-
and 1 January 2016 —T-AF+-_B=+—HEK
—ET—R"F—H—H = = =
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B B 8 2 ) e L B 500 10,904 11,404
Exchange realignment [ AR = (104) (104)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZEBE-RE+ZA=1+—H 500 10,800 11,300
Depreciation and impairment RERAE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015~ R=-ZT—HF—H—H"
and 1 January 2016 ZE-AF+ZRA=+—HK
ZE-RXF—HA—H = = =
Provided for the year FRHIBR - 27 27
Exchange alignment [ 5 A% = (1) (1)
At 31 December 2016 R=B-R"F+=A=+—-H - 26 26
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2016 R=B-R"F+=A=+—H 500 10,774 11,274

At 31 December 2015

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H
18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The trading right was purchased as part of a business
combination during the year. The trading right are retained
for stock trading and stockbroking activities. The trading right
have been considered to have indefinite lives because they
are expected to contribute to the net cash flows of the Group
indefinitely, and are not amortised. Instead it will be tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indiction
that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing
are disclosed in note 19.

Information integration platform provides all the foundational
building blocks of trusted information, including data
integration, data warehousing, master data management,
big data and information monitoring. The right of using
information integration platform is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL 19. 15
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and the
trading right with indefinite useful life set out in notes
17 and 18 have been allocated to four individual cash
generating units (CGUs), comprising one subsidiary in the
insurance brokerage segment (”Insurance Brokerage CGU"),
one subsidiary in the security brokerage segment (”Security
Brokerage CGU"), one subsidiary in the asset management
segment (“Asset Management CGU") and the subsidiaries in
the financing referral segment (“Financing Referral CGU").
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
allocated to these units are as follows:

S.EFEE (&)

ROBDFREREH A —afnmiE
B-RXHRRBEREZEEEMRERLE
B-ARXZERESEERFEN AR
EHMHARE R REFR BRI E
BREA - O R 5 o AT - HL S B F B R
BRI AR B BETFREFETTRH -
BRI A F B E M FE19

EERKFERHMEESEEERELRRZ
B BREBEER BESE- I%KTIEE

BABERRIESEZE - ERAEEEKF
G BRI 2T AR B T AL PR 2

HEEETERE - ZFRARE10F A5

A R HE TN

mENMAFERERFHN
& B RRVE R B

N/

FRERET S - M 17 R18ATH A &R
AEAFH HERRGEEDEENIE
ERReELSEMN ([REEAEMN]) B
REREgLES I —HEH B AR ([MRE
Wﬁafﬁilziﬁ_d) BHEL D —
FMMB AR ([BHELCLREEESEMN]) -
ﬁ?”éfi"*ﬁé‘]—?ﬂﬁﬁ% AI([EETE
I;'ﬁ_iﬁiFiﬁuJ)&rﬂéfLﬁ“*BEﬁ—
F'Wﬁ% (Frﬂﬁ% iﬁi?i%fﬂ)

@Eih?ﬁuﬂ’\ﬁéﬁ%,ﬁ%ﬁﬁ(?ﬂfﬁ%%
.:Jr/WEJEETE\)ZZDT

Goodwill Trading right
He REE

2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE -0 ZE-XRE 0%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT FTHERT FHET

Pawn loan financing CGU HEERRERSEESM
(note 38) (F7E38) - 195,996 - -
Insurance Brokerage CGU 1% LB ELEN 2,330 2,330 - =
Security Brokerage CGU ERARERGEEEN 14,500 - 500 =
Assets Management CGU é?féﬁfﬁﬁﬁiiﬁ 6,500 = - =
Financing Referral CGU BMEENRESELEN 100,282 = - =
Total @t 123,612 198,326 500 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the management
of the Group determines that there are no impairments of
any its CGU containing goodwill or the trading right with
indefinite useful lives.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of
the CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015. Their major underlying assumptions on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill are summarised
below:

Discount rate per annum - the discount rate used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations for the development
of the market.

Insurance Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Insurance Brokerage CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 21.85%. Cash flows after
the three-year period were extrapolated using 3% growth
rate in considering the economic condition of the market.

Security Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Security Brokerage CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 21.82%. Cash flows after
the three-year period were extrapolated using 3% growth
rate in considering the economic condition of the market.

19.7 2 N B A EIR(E F 88

B EERNFERD @)

BHE-ZT—A"F+-A=1+—HLFE"
AEEEEEETABSREXRIEY
BEBEREAFHZEMRSELEM
I #E R AE

ERTEL BN AIRE SR E N
BEAEEE BHEMAETERAEREE
BEEHENTHEENRSRETRR -

BE_ZE—XNE+-_A=+-—HAK=_%
—HF+ A=+ HIFERSELE
UEAEEFTEPEFAETERR -BE
BETEEZ2REANAKMRANRESRE
TERER MY B Rt an T -

FHREX-MEANITIR R BRBATITR
FoWRBRERBITEEENSFERR -

BERSENBEEMNER-EEEREBHE
R MHEMISHROANEETHEEN X -

REBRELCREELEMN

RERKLBESEEEMNNAKESEIIE
HAEBVWEFENBELIEXSERGHE
MBS TEE - EHEFERFERERNKE
BEMERE=-FHRANMBEEFNER
S REFEBAHA21.85% WITIH KR =
FHRZNBESREIEEMHEBERR
FH3% M REHES -

RERLREELEN

BHEELReELEEMN KB ©RETIE
HAEEVTEBENBIEESEREE
MBS TEE - BHEERERERKE
EEAERE - FHENYEEEFRNIR
ERETERITHE21.82% WITHR K =
FHEEHNESRENEBEMSEERR
FH3% MIEREHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Assets Management CGU

The recoverable amount of the Assets Management CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a four-year
period, and at a discount rate of 21.42%. Cash flows after
the four-year period were extrapolated using 3% growth rate
in considering the economic condition of the market.

Financing Referral CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financing Referral CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 19.94%. Cash flows after
the three-year period were extrapolated using 3% growth
rate in considering the economic condition of the market.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
directors of the Company are of opinion, with reference to
the professional valuation performed by the independent
valuers, that the CGUs was not impaired as compared with
their recoverable amounts.

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20088 2 R R i

19.792 N A A ERE A F B
EEERRERS (@

EEEERSELEN

EEEERSEASMNNITRESRE T
HEAEBVEBENBIEESERGHE
MBS TEE - EHETERFEFRENKE
EEERENFHENPKEESRIR
SR ETEBIEEA21.42% BT IR K- [
FHEEHNBESRENEBEMSEERR
FRA3% MIEREHESR -

MEENRETELEN

MEENBEELEMNTKRESEEHE
HAEETEBEBENBELEELEREE
MBS TEE - EHETERFEFRENKE
EEAERE-FHENYEEEFRNIR
ERETERITIHAB19.94% HITIR K =
FHREENESRENEEMSEERR
FAH3% M REHER -

REBEE_ZTE—AR"FER-_ZE—HF+ A
Zt+t—HLEFE ARRAEZERE RIE
B EMETHEEGE ZSHEE
A B8 B3 E AR Bl & BE AR S B 1 IR RE o

=

2016 2015

—E-RE —“ZT—AHF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FATT

Cost of investment in associates — unlisted REZ QAR ENKA—IE LT 372,075 368,701
Share of post-acquisition (loss) profit and ~ FE{GUREE % (B4 ) % F &

other comprehensive (expense) income Hiz2m (Fx) ke (104,665) 3,374

Less: impairment loss B R EEE (267,410) -

- 372,075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of associates,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price is not available:

Issued and fully

m]ﬂ&

20. 70 %MATE']THH/

TRIENHYSFLTRARERALED
BZBERRNER:

Place of paid ordinary Proportion of
incorporation share capital/ ownership interest
Name and operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
TR ERTRAEEE
A% EES R RE,/ERBRA ARREGAERERILH TEXH
2016 2015
ZB-RE —Z-hfF
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B CF: Bk i
Intraday Financial Information Service Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$100 45% - 45% - Investment holding
("Intraday Financial”) (Note a) Islands ("BVI")
EREREERBERRR EBEXES LRRA100% T REZR
(TEX&m]) (Hita) ([RBRREE])
aBCD Enterprise Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 - 45% - 45% Investment holding
aBCD Enterprise Limited ( fza) N LRBRAIE T BREER
Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting PRC Registered capital - 45% - 45%  Provision of
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd# ("Dingtai Runhe") RMB31,000,000 consultancy service
(Note a)
SEBNREDNH (LB BRAR HE AMBRAARE REBRRYE
(TRFEM]) (Kita) 31,000,0007C
Shanghai Intraday Financial Information PRC Registered capital - 45% - 45% Operation of
Service Limited# (“Shanghai Intraday”) (Note a) RMB200,000,000 internet finance
platform
LEEReRESRBER HE AfBRAARS KeEEHRAsRTA
([LEEx] ) (P uza) 200,000,007
Shanghai Rongyu Finance Lease Limited PRC Registered capital - 25% - 25% Provision of finance
("Shanghai Rongyu”) (Note b) RMB210,000,000 leasing service
TRREREHERRAR HE AfMBRAARS REBERERY
([LigmeE]) (Fib) 210,000,007

#  The English translation of Chinses name is for reference only
and should not be regarded as its official English name.

Notes:

(@ On 15 April 2015, 10 June 2015 and 25 June 2015, the
Company entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement first supplemental agreement and second
supplemental agreement respectively with Long Tu Limited
(“Long Tu"), for the acquisition of 45% issued share capital
of Intraday Financial at the consideration of HK$272,840,000.
The consideration was satisfied by issue of 71,800,000 shares
of the Company at the price of HK$3.8. The acquisition was
completed on 8 July 2015.

EE‘@EX%%&}O

GEE

(@ RZZE—RHFWA+HRHB —ZT—HFX
A+BE-_ZE—HFNA-_+HB AR
RIEEB AR AR ([BEE )T B K
,a,ajm NHEEHBERE_HDHETH

% NA A BELARE272,840,0007% T U I8
%%@Eﬂﬂ?ﬁ?ﬁ%ZKZ%%01%1?%35‘5@@
1%3.878 7T 2 1771,800,0000% /& 2 7 % 15 %
N-ZzWBEEEER -_Z—RFE+ANR
FERK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B ISR AR AE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Intraday Financial is the legal and beneficial owner of the
entire registered capital of Dingtai Runhe, which has entered
into Contractual Agreements C with Shanghai Intraday and its
registered shareholders, i.e. Mr. Shao and Mr. Zhu on 14 April
2015. Through these Contractual Agreements C, Dingtai Runhe
has effective control over the financial and business operations
of the Shanghai Intraday, and is entitled to the economic
interest and benefits of the Shanghai Intraday which is engaged
in operation of an internet finance platform in Shanghai, the
PRC.

The Contractual Agreements C currently in effect comprise
the following agreements, namely (a) the Exclusive Consulting
Service Agreement, (b) the Equity Pledge Agreement, (c) the
Exclusive Call Option Agreement, and (d) the Authorisation
Agreement.

On 3 July 2015, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, completed acquisition of 25% equity interest in
Shanghai Rongyu at a consideration of RMB100,000. Pursuant
to the amendment deed, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company contributed RMB52,500,000 as capital
contribution in respect of its 25% equity interest into Shanghai
Rongyu on 29 July 2015. Following the capital contribution,
the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company had
25% equity interests in Shanghai Rongyu. Shanghai Rongyu
was established for the provision of finance leasing service in
Shanghai, the PRC. The acquisition was completed on 3 July
2015.

Summarised financial information for associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% =ZF —

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

AE+=A=+—A

20. 0B 2N BRI RERS (@)

Shanghai Rongyu LigmE
Summarised statement of financial position B iR R E
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Current assets mENE B 17 234,764
Current liabilities mENEE (3,096) (7,481)
Non-current assets FERBEE 39 35,615
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BERkHEMEZEKEREE

comprehensive income

For the year end 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2016 2015

—B-R"F% T AF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Revenue and other revenue PN E= T NN 4,147 17,369
(Loss) profit for the year FA(BE) RN (248,635) 12,528
Other comprehensive expenses Hih2EHAX (17,303) (15,305)
Total comprehensive expense FHEHRZBE (265,938) (2,777)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. 70 B & N A M AR ()
Intraday Financial and its subsidiaries (“Intraday Financial EXEHREMBAR([EXERMER])
Group”)
Summarised statement of financial position BMBARRREE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Current assets MENE E 24,476 156,185
Current liabilities mENEE (29,439) (76,146)
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,960 6,608
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (114) (122)
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BERkHEMEZEKEREE

comprehensive income

For the year end 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2016 2015
—B-ARF —ZT-HF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Revenue and other revenue WA B E b A 2,329 56,206
(Loss) profit for the year FAN(BEE) RN (82,440) 13,760
Other comprehensive expenses H 2 5 52 (4,202) (4,719)
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2H (FAx) kaBsE (86,642) 9,041
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LBk REEE R R BERAZ5 6
to the carrying amount of the interests in the associates TR WERAREEBERRZEANSG
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. AR ERELAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. 70 B & A B RE S ()
Shanghai Rongyu LigmE

2016 2015

—EBE-RE —IT—0F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T FHT

Net assets at the beginning of the year FUEEFE 262,915 265,692

(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) A (248,635) 12,528

Share of translation reserve FEILTE X FtE (17,303) (15,305)

Net (liabilities) assets at the end of the year kK (B&)&EEF4E (3,023) 262,915

Interests in associates (25%) B E N E R R (25% ) - 65,729

Carrying amounts AREE - 65,729
Intraday Financial Group EXcRER

2016 2015

—E-XFE —T—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT FHETT

Net assets at the beginning of the year FYEEFE 86,525 77,484

(Loss) profit for the year FA(EBE) R (82,440) 13,760

Share of translation reserve FEAGPE 3 (4,202) (4,719)

Net (liabilities) assets at the end of the year F K (BE) EEFHE (117) 86,525

Interests in associates (45%) RREEE A A MR (45% ) - 38,936

Goodwill BES 267,410 267,410

Impairment loss on interests in associates KB & A A 2 BEE B (267,410) -

Carrying amounts FREE - 306,346
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

21.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group was
informed by Shanghai Intraday that one of the third party
asset management companies did not have sufficient cash
to repay the investment principal of certain products to
the investors when the products reach their maturity dates
("Repayment Issue”). As the management of Shanghai
Intraday does not want the reputation of its platform
and its operation being affected by the Repayment Issue,
therefore, Shanghai Intraday has, for and on behalf of
the asset management company, paid certain sums of the
investment principal to the investors utilising their internal
resources which was subsequently reimbursed before 30
June 2016. On or around June 2016, the Repayment Issue
persists and the investment principal in the internet platform
drops significantly. Furthermore, Shanghai Intraday did not
offer any products of those third party asset management
companies for new products, therefore Shanghai Intraday did
not offer any investment products on its internet platform
since mid-June 2016. Consequently, the operations are
negatively affected and the turnover dropped significantly in
current year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, in view of the
performance of Intraday Financial Group, the Group has
performed impairment testing with the assessment of an
independent professional qualified valuer not connected
with the Group on investments in Intraday Financial Group
whereby the recoverable amounts of Intraday Financial Group
were determined based on value in use calculations, with
reference to the estimated cash flows in the coming three
years were extrapolated by assuming 3% growth rate using
pre-tax discount rates of 35.93%. Following the impairment
testing, an aggregate amount of HK$267,410,000 was
recognised as impairment loss in the profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

20. 0B 2N R RERS (@)

BHEZZT—A"F+ZA=+—HLEFE"
AEBELBERENET—RE=TE
EEEARYEERMAESNE TEMEIH
ARAREEEEZFEMIREARR ([E
EFE]) AR LBERNEEETFE
EBEREFEEVABREREEE Wit-
LEBERCHAERNBERRREEEE
RAAREEXNETHRZEERNE (H
X ZRBEEER - T—R"FEA=T
HATEER) - N _T—RF/RAXAE
BEMBDABALREBETE 2RER
T AN N bt s EBE R EEEHEZ
FE=ZFEEEERRANEMER Bt
FEEREB-ZE-RFNATAELERE
HEMEFRRHEMKREEM At
AEEAHRERINEMPEREEEX
b T o

HE-_Z—XRE+-_A=+—HL=EE"
ERIEXRCHEB  XEE KCHAEE
WEBENBIEXSERGHEMEE X
CRMEEMNKEETARE AEEEY
ZEEEETRETG - Bt EXE®
SO BEFEREBRAEETE
WEBERR=ZFNHABREESRE (E3%
WERZBREFEABRFBATITE X3593%
BE) -FHTRENAZ REE-Z
—ANEF+_A=+—HItFE EERE
R HARE /267,410,000 T BB E B o

REPOSSESSED ASSETS 21.4& U B & E
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
it Tt
Pawn collaterals R 5 - 41
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H
22.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS RNAHTEEEHEE
2016 2015
—E-XFE —T—HF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed investments: EmRE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LETHRAES
(Note a) (Mfska) 30,655 -
— Equity securities listed in the PRC (Note a) — "B _ETHRIIR A E 5
(Mf5Ea) 11,069 |
Unlisted investments: ELEMIRE
— Wealth management product (Note b) - EERER (MiEb) 16,751 -~
58,475
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MImEMS ATLAT -
Current assets MENEE 16,751 -
Non-current assets IERBEE 41,724 -
58,475 -

Notes:

(@) It represent the Group's investments in listed equity securities.
All the listed equity securities are stated at fair values which
have been determined by reference to closing prices quoted in
the active markets. The Group does not intend to dispose of
these investments in the near future.

Available-for-sale financial assets is a wealth management
product acquired from a bank with both principal and interest
rate being non-guaranteed. It is fair valued using a discounted
cash flow approach and main input used by the Group is
estimated yield rate written in contract with the counterparty.
The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

B gt -

(a) HEAEBR ETRABHFZRE-FIA
FTHRABHFGRIFEINER A FE
TESERERMIZR WHEMETE
AEBESNEHNLEZFTRE -

A ESREESBRTEBANMESR
BEMm ERXESMARLTERE - HQF
BERAMERSREZFE MAKEE
RONETE2HAEAFHIILNARP A
HEFREXR-FRALFEREERTE
EWME=M-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

23.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE  23.JEU sk AR (B

The balance represents the contingent consideration ZEBREEARBEEE R ([WER

receivable in relation to the acquisition of Access China
(“Access China”) Group Limited and its subsidiaries (”Access
Group”) from a third party, the vendor, pursuant to sale and
purchase agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”). The amount
is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and measured at fair value.

)R — %% =78 75 Y8 Access China
Group Limited ([Access China | ) X &} &8
ANA] ([Access =B | ) B FEU KA RAE © 5%
S ABBESEATEIENERE
ENMEAFEFE-

2016 2015

ZE-RFE —T—IOF

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

THET FHEIT

At 1 January m—H—H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36(a)) W BB B B~ B (B 5E36(a)) 15,889 -
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss 1825 R HY A F{E & &) (787) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 15,102 -

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor
guarantees to the Company that Beijing Xinnouwei, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Access China, and its
subsidiaries shall attain certain performance targets (the
“Profit Guarantee”) for the years ending 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 respectively.

If the Guaranteed Profit could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
(i.e. 2016: HK$30,000,000, 2017: HK$20,000,000 and 2018:
HK$10,000,000). Should the cash considerations payable
to the Vendor be insufficient to cover the compensation,
the Company shall have the right to sell all or part of the
Consideration Shares under escrow, the net proceeds from
which shall be equal to the shortfall of the compensation, to
the independent third parties, in the securities market.

For avoidance of doubt, should the Beijing Xinnouwei and its
subsidiaries record an actual consolidated loss for any of the
financial years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018,
the amount shall be deemed as Nil.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

23.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE

(Continued)

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$15,889,000, representing Profit Guarantee made by
the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreement. The fair value was arrived at based on discounted
cash flow of Access Group's forecast financial budgets
used to capture the present value of the expected future
economic benefits that will flow into the group by applying
probability-weighted average of achieving the required
benchmark, using discount rate ranged from 14.44% to
16.48%. The valuation was performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The management discussed with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$15,102,000, representing Profit Guarantee made by
the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreement. The fair value was arrived at based on discounted
cash flow of Access Group’'s forecast financial budgets
used to capture the present value of the expected future
economic benefits that will flow into the group by applying
probability-weighted average of achieving the required
benchmark, using discount rate ranged from 14.41% to
18.04%. The valuation was performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the group.
The management discussed with valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results.

23. JE U S A RAB ()

RREBE BRSKAREZ AT EMK
#4/15,889,0008 T BN E H IRIBEE B
BIETIER 2 B2 FREFB-BRARFEDLR
B Access EEFBR M BEEZITBIRE R
2 (B BEREBURTEZEE 2 7] g2 nkE
S AN F14.44% £16.48% 2 T
MELBERARNEE 2 TBHI R KL E
FlmcRE MAESH HEHREAE
EEEBE B YA EREEGEMET
ERERAFREERIIEELER -

RZE—ARF+ZA=+—8" FEREA
REZ AT EMET#%15,102,000% 7T
BNESBREEEHRIERIEL ZaFfRE -
B A FETHRIE Access 5 B 78 8| Bf 75 78
EeHBRenE(ERARAERHTIE
A7 AlRe M HEC AN T14.41%
£18.04% < WH ELMBERALREE
ZHEEARREEN R ZIRE) METESH -
HEREASEEFE BYAEREE
HERMET - EEEEAFFHmEER
H M hEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

24.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 24. JEU B X K FI B

2016 2015

—E—XE —E—RF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FE&T

Pawn loans mEER - 363,331
Secured loans BEHEAER 82,619 -
Unsecured loans EIKHE N 16,862 =
99,481 363,331
Less: impairment allowances B RE B (62,420) (3,633)
37,061 359,698

Pawn loans receivables are arising from the Group's pawn
loans business. The loan periods granted to customers are
within six months. The pawn loans provided to customers
bear fixed interest rates ranging from 0.27% to 0.48% per
month and administrative fee rate ranging from 1.56% to
4.20% per month in the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group held collateral with value not less
than the carrying amount of the pawn loan receivables.

Pawn loans receivables are all denominated in RMB. The
impairment allowance of pawn loans receivables are
recognised based on the Group’s best estimate of amounts
that are potentially uncollectible.

As at 31 December 2015, renewed loans amounted to
HK$170,071,000, comprising personal property backed
pawn loans of HK$103,105,000, real estate backed pawn
loans of HK$9,669,000 and equity interest backed pawn
loans of HK$57,297,000. No renewed loans had substantially
modified their original contractual terms for the year ended
31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

24.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The ageing of the pawn loans receivables are calculated
starting from the original granting date without considering
the subsequent renewal of the loans. The ageing analysis of
pawn loans receivables net of provision for impairment of
pawn loans receivables is set out below:

24 EWE X LA E ()

R E BERZREKREFRAR L A B
AR U TERE R EREH - B
EER(NEREKAEEFRERRB) O

2016 2015
—E-RFE —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

0 - 90 days 0%90H

91 - 180 days 912180H
181 — 365 days 181£2365H
Over 365 days 365H M+

- 140,039
- 115,505
- 33,716
- 70,438

- 359,698

Loans receivables arising from the loan financing business
of the Group bear interest at rates ranging from 12% to
36% (2015: Nil) per annum. The grants of these loans were
approved and monitored by the Group’s management.
As at 31 December 2016, certain loans receivables with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$20,199,000 were
secured by the pledge of collateral and were with personal
guarantees provided by certain independent third parties.

An ageing analysis of the loans and interests receivables that
are individually not considered to be impaired as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is
as follows:

ELYEAEEERBEER 2 BIKE IR
NF12%E36% (—F—FF: |&)NER
R B - ZEERNEAEEEEREM A
NERFEE - R_ZTE—XRNE+_A=+—
B - 48R {8 420,199,000/ T & T F&E
WERTEBIRFERAREERR MBS T
B E = FRERAER-

R E BARIR A 5B B I T 1A% 7= 18 5
BB B FE U & SR B M SR BRIk D AT AR TS

2016 2015

—B-ARE —ZT-HF

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Neither past due nor individually impaired 3t £ 780 B 71 £ {& Bl & (& 25,980 359,698
Less than 1 month past due #E 2 E A 11,081 -
1 to 3 months past due #mE E£318 A - -
3 to 6 months past due #mEA3E6fE A - -
6 months to less than 1 year past due BEHEAZETE1F - -
37,061 359,698

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

24.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 24.JEWE M B ()
(Continued)
Loans receivables that were neither past due nor individually I 4% 160 B T AR AE BB E M E B SR %2
impaired relate to a number of diversified borrowers for BT i R A sk E) N RIS KA B -
whom there was no recent history of default.
In respect of the loans which have been past due for less ERaHIN—EAZERTIEFEHNE
than one month, the amounts mainly represent occasional REEERFAEY U T ERTZEFERZ
delay in repayment and are not indication of significant EEERBERL-

deterioration of credit quality of these loans.

The movements in impairment allowance of loans and EWERRMNEHHEREBEZESHNT
interests receivables are as follows:
2016 2015
—B-XF —ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 3,633 -
Impairment allowance recognised BRI EREE 62,420 3,633
Amounts written off during the year F M E &1 AT 4R Bz kI8
as uncollectible (3,633) -
Balance at end of the year FRER 62,420 3,633
Included in the above provision for impairment of loans FTHERERBRERGEEREEKRERE
receivables was a provision for impaired loans receivables #%62,420,000/% 7T 1) 2 R B E I E K
of HK$62,420,000 with an aggregate carrying amount of 62,420,000/ 7T - E R B E W E X & F &
HK$62,420,000. The impaired loans receivables relate to Hiye R RIERE B AR AR A D
borrowers that were in default and the loans and interests EHEKE-

receivables were not expected to be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. JI& Wi BR R B LAt JiE W kTR
2016 2015
—B-XR"E —ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Trade receivables from: T3 E A 2 FEUERTK :
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BARHER: (MEa)
— Cash clients —-BHexP 349 -
— Margin clients —-REBEEEF 4,754 -
— Clearing houses and brokers —HEE R 1,513 -
Consultancy services AR 377 -
Insurance brokerage business (Note b) R A4 275 (MisED) 1,173 -
Asset management business (Note c) BEEEER (Witc) 55 =
Warehouse storage business (Note d) BEFRER (KMstd) 392 1,215
General trading (Note e) —E 5 (Mizte) 6,388 -
15,001 1,215
Less: Impairment loss B REEE (377) -
14,624 1,215
Other receivables H & R IR 17,804 1,766
Less: Impairment loss B OREE R (1,049) (614)
16,755 1,152
31,379 2,367
Notes: B 5T
(a) For the trade receivables from cash clients, it normally takes two (a) RMBREFFZEUWERME  —MRNESH
days to settle after trade date of securities transactions. These RGRXHBEMBBEE - ZERB KRG
outstanding unsettled trades due from clients are reported as HEE ZERE P FRIBY RERE RN -

trade receivables from clients.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B ISR AR AE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ=_—Z

—R"F+ZA=+—8H

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

@ Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

(Continued)

Trade receivables from margin clients amounting to
HK$4,754,000 as at 31 December 2016 are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of HK$12,989,000.
Management has assessed the market value of the pledged
securities of each individual customer who has margin shortfall
as at the year end. No impairment allowance is considered
necessary for the remaining margin loans based on the Group's
evaluation of their collectability.

Trade receivables from margin clients arising from the securities
brokerage business are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from product
issuers arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
services are mainly within 45 to 60 days upon the execution of
the insurance policies and/or receipt of statements from product
issuers.

Credit terms with customers of asset management are within
30 days or a credit period mutually agreed between the
contracting parties.

25. FE UK BR 7k &2

B A eI (1)

ffeE: (48)

(a)

(%)

RZE—RNFE+ZA=+—H" 4,754,000
/EJEZ}EL&1%Q /i\gﬁﬁg ELA SP{EE
12,989,000 L2 B EE MBS EE R

EEECTHBRENRESTEREFA
ERBLHRER2ME WREAS B

WEEENOFE RAALBEFTERRES
EREH R E R

BHECEBELZBRRESEPEN
AN E B RREREE

RERBECIRIEES 2 BUWE RETA
By REEHRIBARIRER
BN ERBEITAZEEERZASET0HR -

RMTEEEERP ZEEMR30BAKG]
MABREBEZEES-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —Z —

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
warehouse tenants.

(e) The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
trade customers.

No ageing analysis of margin loans is disclosed as in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of this business.

An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade receivables net
of impairment loss as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the trade date, is as follows:

25. FE UK BR 7k &2

MisE: (&)

AE+=A=+—A

B b eI ERIE (1)

d) AEEHLETHEEEFPNFHEEHR30
H o
) AEBEGRTEREHEFPHNFHEEHA30
H e

JW% SEFEBZME KARAREERZ
R B 0 AT I R SME R Rk 3 S AR R EL AR

ﬁﬂﬁ a

FE U PR SR 8 2R (HARR BUE B 18) I & B R AR
BEXSRBZREDITEAT

2016 2015

ZE-REF —hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0-30 days 0—30H 9,801 1,192
31-60 days 31—60H 69 23
61-90 days 61—90H - -
Over 90 days 90H M + - =
9,870 1,215

An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade receivables
that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

A AR 2 18 1) 3% R R (B B FE U AR R AR B

FRECDITIAT

2016 2015

—E-REF — R4

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FAT

Neither past due nor impaired I fR 58 B 7R AR B 9,849 1,192
Less than 1 month past due B H B 1 ME A 21 23
1 to 3 months past due BmH1 =318 A - =
3 to 6 months past due mHA3E6(E A - =
6 months to less than 1 year past due BHGE A ZETBI1F - =
9,870 1,215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25.

The movements in impairment loss on trade receivables are as

JE U5 B 3k N HL b B UM FRIE (4
FEU BE ZOR E S B E B I T

follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Balance at beginning of the year FAEER - -
Amounts recognised during the year FNERN L 377 =
Balance at end of the year FRES 377 =

The movements in impairment loss on other receivables are as

Hib RRIRREREENZEH T

follows:

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FUEEH 614 3,864
Amounts recognised during the year FRNBRNEE 921 =
Amounts recovered during the year FRWE R EEE (469) (1,988)

Amounts written off during the year as F M EE T Y B 2 518
uncollectible - (1,172)
Exchange realignment ME W R EE (17) (90)
Balance at end of the year FREERR 1,049 614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

26.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

26. AR R IR &

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZET—AHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT T

Prepayments TEfT IR 1,587 1,469
Deposits in proposed acquisition of BRRERBARNZES

subsidiaries - 5,250

Rental and utilities deposits Mek HAXEERS 4,292 4,638

Statutory deposits EEEE 280 —

Other deposits Hihiz e 739 54

Total prepayments and deposits TE BRI B 6,898 11,411

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MHEMSONWOT -

Current assets & E 3,573 8,366

Non-current assets ERBEE 3,325 3,045

6,898 11,411

27.CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients” monies as
cash held on behalf of customers under the current assets
section of the consolidated statement of financial position
and recognised the corresponding accounts payable to
respective clients on the grounds that one is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group is
not allowed to use the clients” monies to settle its own
obligations.

28.BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from nil to 0.30% (31 December 2015: nil to 0.42%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of
1.70% (31 December 2015: 3%) per annum.

Bank deposits amounting to HK$27,918,000 (2015:
HK$35,811,000) have been pledged to secure a short-term
bank loan at 31 December 2016. The pledged bank deposits
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowing.

VREFHBZEE

AREBRFERITHARBILETEERS A
REEFRABXRBERETELEZNA
AEEDKZEEPREANEREA W
MARZRBEER N ZREFPFHAZR
T U RBEEAREP HIAZEMBRRK
BAE LEECERMERSEN THES
BEPZHEBERR - AEBTAISHAEFL K
HNEEREEHER-

28 R1TER RIS OB EIETT

RITHEBBNFTR030E(ZF—1F
TZA=1T—RH ZEX0422) W5 FF
RAR-DEABITEFIITI0E(ZF
—HEF+-A=+t—H:3E)NEEFH

it o

R-ZZE—RNFE+-_A=+—8 R1IEFEXK
27,918,000/ 7T ( — & — FH 4 : 35,811,000
BIT) BRI WEREBRTER-B
BHRIBETERERERE@BRTEERR
g/éf}o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

29.ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

VINBFBIFHENEE

2016 2015

—E-XFE —T—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Property, plant and equipment (Note a) Mm% BB K& (Mista) - 1,066
Prepaid lease payments (Note a) T EERIE (MisEa) - 6,522
- 7,588

Deposit received (Note a) BEYzE (Mita) - 9,550

Notes:

(@ On 29 October 2014, the Group entered into a property sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the office building together with the land portion
situated at Unit 508, Level 5, Block 2, Phase 1, Jinguanyuan,
No. 16 Xinhua Lane, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC. The
transaction was completed on 14 March 2016.

B 2 :
@ R=F—MF+A=TAA KAEER—

EEBUE A NEEREE R HEM
RO B b A P I [ T I 1650 8RB 40— HF
25RIESES08E M B TIEER L E 5 < 7%
BERXGERZE—AR"F=ZA+TWAREK-

30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 30 JETBRFN - ML B FIE K JE
ACCRUALS iTEH

2016 2015

—E-XFE —ET—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Tt FiT

Trade payables from:
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a)

NIEEZ AR :
B HE%: (WiEa)

— Cash clients - ReRP 14,960 -

— Margin clients —REBEEEF 2,204 -
Insurance brokerage business (Note b) R % (MisEb) 1,031 S
Total trade payables JERTRR R 4B 58 18,195 o
Accrued expenses et &M 2,339 7,474
Deposits received B ER & 284 907
Receipts in advance TE W IR - 3,150
Other payables H b fE < 5RI8 23,689 19,808
Total other payables and accruals Hih e RIB R BT B R4 26,312 31,339
Total trade payables, other payables and JE A~ R AR~ Ll JRE 5 TR IR K2

accruals st & REE 44,507 31,339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(a

Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the
monies received from and repayable to brokerage clients in
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received
and held for clients in the course of the conduct of regulated
activities. However, the Group does not have a currently
enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits
placed.

The majority of the trade payables balance are repayable on
demand except for certain balances relating to margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities under the
normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The settlement terms of trade payables, except for margin
clients, arising from the securities brokerage business are two
days after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business.

Trade payables to consultants arising from provision of
insurance brokerage service, are generally settled within 30 days
to 120 days upon receipt of payments from product issuers by
the Group.

An ageing analysis of trade payables from insurance brokerage
business at the end of reporting period is as follows:

e B RRME

HE-2-AET-A=1-H

30. B BR3N- A Mb BT SNB B
HE-3::0C )

GEE

() BNESKLEEPERABANETIRE
ABBETEWREREPFHE ZEELE
VIRTTREBREREL TP RENELER
HYSRIA © PR 1 > 7N 5% 61 35 B 3 4 ] 38 i) A
TTERMNAFEFFEEZF R RN

REHENEREHRARERER HHE
REEXBERETRARZEHCRELH
RESERBENE TERKI -EBB
RERESTFRAZEBARERERE-

ERRCEBELECRAER (RESE
FBIN 2 EEHRAR S BEMA -

HRARAESZRASERNBNRIESHE
ZEBUHE - By TR REIMEE -
B 4 R AR e 0 AT

AEB-RNBIERBTAEERTF

TR 1&30H £1208 AE B R KRR E LR
RERBEEZBNBERERER-

A 3 o B R AR B 48 42 3675 FE A AR SR R e

AT
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZT—h%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
THET FHET
0 — 30 days 0—30H 990 -
31 - 60 days 31—60H 41 =
61— 90 days 61—90H - =
Over 90 days 90H KA £ - =
1,031 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE—-Z —

~NE+ZA=+—H

31.BORROWINGS 3.IBE
2016 2015
ZE-RF C—T—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Bank loans (Note a) RITER (FF5Ea) 99,107 123,548
Entrusted bank loans (Note b) ZRERITER (MsEb) - 41,779
Other loans (Note ¢) HaE (MfizEc) 13,959 112,208
113,066 277,535
Secured PR 99,107 277,535
Unsecured KR 13,959 -
113,066 277,535
Carrying amount repayable: FER T3 AR E R A BRTE (8 -

Within one year —FR 57,231 199,945

More than one year, but not —FUA L ERFARN
exceeding two years 16,750 17,905

More than two years, but not more than MEAEEBRFAA
five years 39,085 59,685
More than five years AFEE - -
113,066 277,535
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities J& : IR BN BB R Z & (57,231) (199,945)
55,835 77,590

Notes:

GEE

(@) Bank loans were secured by the pledge of Group's assets as set (a)
out in note 43. The loans carry effective interest at fixed rates
ranging from 4.35% to 7.91% (2015: 5.10% to 7.91%) per

annum.

(b) The entrusted loan was secured by guarantee provided by (b)

Shanghai Kuailu, a registered shareholder of Xinsheng, to a
bank for making the loan to Xinsheng. The effective interest
rate of the entrusted loan was 5.6% per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, the interest-bearing other loan
bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 10% and is unsecured,
repayable within 12 months and is carried at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2015, other loans obtained from an
independent asset management company located in Shanghai
have fixed repayment terms which are ranging from one to six
months, which are secured by the pawn loans receivables. The
loans carrying an interest at fixed rates of 14% per annum.
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Ko ZEERUAZERZTNE(ZF
—RESI0EETIE)NBEEENRA
BB FIRETE -

RZERFABERD BB EMKRR EERE
m—RARTRERR (EAAFERTE
HHRE - RREER BB FNER D562 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

32.CONVERTIBLE NOTES

In relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Oriental Credit Holdings Limited (“Oriental Credit”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Oriental Credit Group”), the consideration
shall be satisfied by the Company by way of issue of
convertible notes with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 (subject to adjustment) at zero coupon
interest rate, which would be issued in three tranches
(comprising the first convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “2014 Convertible Note"),
the second convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000 (the “2015 Convertible Note”) and the third
convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$35,000,000
(the "2016 Convertible Note")).

2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible Note with
principal amounts of HK$85,401,768 and HK$42,000,000
at conversion price of HK$0.24 (after adjustment of share
subdivision on 23 December 2015) were issued to the
vendors of the Oriental Credit Group on 3 June 2015 and
15 March 2016 respectively. It entitled the noteholders to
convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
after the date of issuance of 2015 Convertible Note and
ending on the 21st business day before the maturity date,
which is on the fifth anniversary of the respective date of
issuance of 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note. If the convertible notes have not been converted, it will
be redeemed on maturity date at the entire principal amount.

The Convertible Note contains two components, liability and
equity components. The equity component represents the
value of the conversion option, which is credited directly to
equity as convertible notes reserve of the Company and the
Group. The liability component of the convertible notes is
carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is ranging from 9.98%
to 12.89% per annum.

32. AJ AR R IR

HWERSEEERERARA ([RAE
BENERENBRARI(I[RAEEER])Z
EHEBTRAMS - REBKHEARRESE
B3 (TR & 458 /150,000,000 7T (7]
FHREBE)ZZEZEATHRRERZ A E
BoABBREZEESES =BT BREARS
%8 /80,000,000 L 2 FE —# A R =
BT NEBERER]) A&58
/435,000,000 7T 2 % — #L Al 2 iR == &%
([ZE—RAFIRBREE])REASES
35,000,000/ 72 F=# Al R ZE ([ =
T RNFARBRER]) -

K4 %3 585,401,7688 L2 —E— M4 7]
A E IR & K& 58 A42,000,0008 T2 =
T -RFABRREEE SR _E—RF
NAZBRZE-—RFZA+HEBBITT
RAEESEECER #RE K24 T
(BR—_ZT—AHAFE+_A-+=HHKRMIFK
MAER) HE TREFEAENRET
TE-AFUMRREREREIHAASE
QAL HEH (M —OFBaREEK
TE-RFNBRRERSERTABEER
BEEH) LERREEEERAARADF
TRR - MABTRRERY EESESR .
HigR SRR ASEERD -

AR EEBEEMESNS  BEKiER S
DoEmE D IERBRECEE EENE
HARABARNRIRASE 2 R ERF
H-MBREBE BB IRBHENAE
EARBIERDAEE BEEEEHLEL
FraEAL - BEBHP2EBRFEN TS
F9O8EE12.89E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

32.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 32. A] AR i (&)

bt AR AR IR WS IR 2 BREE

The carrying amounts of above-mentioned convertible notes

recognised at the end of the reporting period were calculated SEWMT:
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE¥F —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Equity component R
Balance at beginning of the year RE ) 2 k587 101,192 -
Issued during the year FABEET 61,723 101,192
Conversion during the year FAEH (153,140) -
Balance at end of the year RERZ &8 9,775 101,192
Liability component BERS
Balance at beginning of the year RF ) 2 45 ER 54,885 -
Issued during the year FABEET 21,985 50,625
Conversion during the year FAEHR (75,728) -
Effective interest expenses ERANER 3,928 4,260
Balance at end of the year R Z SR 5,070 54,885
Principal amount, at end of the year RERZAEER 7,644 85,402
33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION 33.dRIE(E
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—AHF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
At 1 January n—HA—H 127,920 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B /B8 2 A 53,238 127,920
Settlement by issue of convertible notes FRETIRRERER (64,020) -
Imputed interest HENE 3,740 -
At 31 December Rt+tZ-ZA=+—H 120,878 127,920
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MBEMS oMW -
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 24,283 63,900
Current liabilities mENEE 96,595 64,020
At 31 December VAT IS e 120,878 127,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

33.DEFERRED CONSIDERATION (Continued)

On 22 December 2016, the Group had completed
the acquisition of Access Group (Note 36(a)). Part of
consideration was satisfied by the Company in the manner
as to HK$30,000,000, HK$20,000,000 and HK$10,000,000
respectively shall be settled in cash upon next business day
after issue of audited financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018, subject to adjustment.

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 22 December 2016 was HK$53,238,000,
which was determined by independent valuer. The effective
interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value was
ranged from 14.27% to 15.79%.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred cash consideration
are calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of from 14.27% to 15.79% per
annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$193,000 was
debited to the profit or loss of the Group for the year.

On 21 January 2015, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Oriental Credit Group (Note 36(e)). Part of
consideration was satisfied by the Company in the issuance
of convertible notes. Part of deferred consideration was
settled by issuance of convertible notes on 15 March 2016.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred convertible notes
consideration are calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest of 10.14% per
annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$3,546,000 was
debited to the profit or loss of the Group for the year.

33 R ERE (5

RZE—ARF+_AZ+=-H T5E
2 72 Ak U B8 Access &2 B (M 3T36(a)) © &
/AETSEH%MZHV%O,OOO,OOO,EE
20,000,0007% 7t 5 10,000,000/ 7t 7 Bl 7
BE_ZT—RF —_E—+FR=-_F—N
A s — - Eiif‘ﬂ’wgﬁﬁﬁ%i&
FHBEET—EEXAUBREERN-

REXKBHE -_ZT—XRE+_A_-_+—-8"
Lfﬁfi\ﬁf‘fz 18 &53,238,000/8
AT ETHB Y HEMETE FTE

/“?@Fﬁﬁﬁz,\ﬁﬂﬂ N F14.27% &

15.79% o

kaﬁifﬂﬁwﬁ”ﬂéﬁﬂs&)}hﬁﬁ%
BREREAE BRAZERFNEN T
14.27% Z15. 79% & & F) B 32193,000
BITEFARFEAEB ZIBZEA -

R-ZBE—hE—A=-+—H0 AxEEE X
RWEBR A EESE (iE36(e)) c AR
ﬂé_?ﬁ BT BRERENEBS ﬁ{g"*ﬁ
FEREBER _E—AR"E=A+HBHE
ﬂi—%ﬁ—f?ﬁkmfﬁﬂ T o

ERABERERZHEENER IR
,aﬁf’r\ﬁ“'J+/£?r# BRRZERFMNELS

10.14% ' 1A & F| B 7 33,546,000/ T E
FARFEEAREB ZEBEZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H
34.SHARE CAPITAL 34, XA
Number of Nominal
shares amount
DB A&
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each FAXEI{E0.005/8 T i) X B %
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 421,978,000 2,109,890
Share subdivision (Note d) R&R 48 (F5Ed) 1,687,912,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each EREME0.00NB T LB
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF
and 31 December 2016 +-—A=+—8-
—E—-RF—H—H
;E=—ZF—-XRF+=-H
=+—H 2,109,890,000 2,109,890
Preference shares of HK$0.005 each FRXEE0.0057% JT H B L A%
At 1 January 2015 \—E—HE—F—A 22,000 110
Share subdivision (Note d) 48 (FisEd) 88,000 =
Preference shares of HK$0.001 each FHIREEOC.001E T BB L A%
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 R_E—RAF+_H=+—H
and 31 December 2016 E=ZF—RFE+=A
=+—H 110,000 110
Issued and fully paid: EERITRERE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each FAXE{E0.005/8 T i) X B A%
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—RF—HF—H 299,847 1,499
Placing of shares (Note a) Ao &R (FizEa) 59,600 298
Issue of shares upon acquisition of U BB N R R BT AR D
associates (Note b) (Mi5EDb) 71,800 359
Issue of shares upon rights issue (Note ©) KR EITARD (BMIaEc) 215,623 1,078
Share subdivision (Note d) IR 48 (FisEd) 2,587,483 =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.001E LA E B
At 31 December 2015 and R_E—RF+_-_A=+—H
1 January 2016 ;E=—F—XRE—H—H 3,234,353 3,234
Conversion of convertible notes (Note e) ~ EHA[RR ZIE (Histe) 498,990 499
Issue of new shares (Note f) BATH R (MaEf) 452,810 453
Issue of shares upon acquisition of UL EE T B A R R B ITAR D
subsidiaries (Note g) (Mi5Eg) 194,061 194
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each RZB-—R"ETZH=1T—H
at 31 December 2016 FIEE0.001B TH LB 4,380,214 4,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

34.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 9 January 2015, the Company allotted and issued
59,600,000 new shares of HK$0.005* each at a price of HK$2
per share by placing.

Pursuant to the agreement in respect of the acquisition as
disclosed in note 20 to these consolidated financial statements,
71,800,000 shares of HK$0.005* each in the capital of the
Company were issued and allotted to the vendor under the
acquisition.

On 17 November 2015, the Company issued 215,623,557
rights shares of HK$0.005* each at prices of HK$2.2 per rights
share on the basis of one new share for every two shares held
on the 10 November 2015.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 23 December 2015, (i) every one existing
issued and unissued share of par value of HK$0.005 each in
the share capital of the Company was subdivided into five
Subdivided Shares of par value of HK$0.001 each and (ii) each
of the existing issued and unissued preference shares of the
Company of par value of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of
the Company was sub-divided into five subdivided preference
shares of par value of HK$0.001 each. Share subdivision was
effective on 28 December 2015.

On 6 July 2016, upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$119,758,000
at the conversion price of HK$0.24 per share, the Company
allotted and issued 498,990,258 shares in aggregate to the
noteholders.

On 14 July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 452,810,000
new shares of HK$0.001 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.27 upon completion of subscription of new shares.

Pursuant to the agreement in respect of the acquisition
as disclosed in note 36(a) to these consolidated financial
statements, 194,060,671 shares of HK$0.001 each in the
capital of the Company were issued and allotted to the vendor
under the acquisition.

Being prices before adjusting for the share subdivision

e R R R
RE-F-AE+-A=+-H

4= —=

34 IR AN (&)
DX

(@ RZE—RAF—ANLB ARAFUE
ERFRNESR2EB T Z BRI B R
59,600,0000% & i% M {H0.0057% 7T * A 37 A%

{/\ ®

RIRERA B T5 R M sE20FT % 25 8 Uk B
EEH W 71,800,0000% 78 A 7] B& 2
SR E0.005%F T * 7 B IR F 3.8
B BRBETREETIRESENES -

RZE—RAF+—A+tH RQFER
—T-AFt+—A+BEEHEMRRNHE
BRI G 2 EER TR 2.28
TT 2 {BH&3£717215,623,557 A% T AXE {E0.005
BT B AR AR o

BER-ZE—RAFT+ A+ =BHETH
BRENRE EBBHNEHEAZRER (A
NERAFR T —REREE0.0058 T2
REEBEITERBITROEFERIRS
A& EE0.001 B T 2 AR5 ¢ K (i) A2 7
AP E—REREE0SHE LI AR
AREEBITERARBTELREFREAR
% & I {E0.00178 T 2 R B 5L A% - B 15
FHER _ZE—RAF+-_A=-+/\BEK-

RZE—AR"FLtAANB BASREA
119,758,000 7T 2 — & — PO 4F Al AR ik
MZE—RFARBREEAH S iR
R AR EIREIR(ESFR0.247 LW
SIEFE AR K374 $£498,990,258%
&5 e

) RZE—ANFtLtA+HNB AEXIREH
B 10 RN B R R (B0.2775 U it 2 M %%
77452,810,000% & % M1 {H0.0017% 7T B ¥7
AR ©

1B % BT 7E36(a) AT 2 A B W BE B TB ) 1
FEAREBEENEFETRREELAA
A% AN AR 194,060,671 3% 5 P& I {E0.00178
TCHI D ©

* OREBBD AR ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

35.DEFERRED TAXATION 353 AE §5 18

Undistributed

profits

associates

BENEZ

R 9 Ik 5

HK$'000

FHEIT

At 1 January 2015 RN-—ZE—RF—HF—H -

Charged to profit or loss for the year RERB&=F R 1,126

Exchange realignment E 5,8 B (26)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE-—RAF+A=+—HK

—E-RF—H—H 1,100

Credited to profit or loss for the year RERBZPETA (1,080)

Exchange realignment ME W, B (20)

At 31 December 2016

RZE—XRFE+ZHA=+—H _

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$350,181,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$194,526,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$165,406,000 (31 December 2015: HK$86,788,000) that
will expire in one to five years. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

35.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in PRC for which deferred taxation liabilities
in relation to withholding tax have not been recognised was
HK$901,000 (2015: HK$5,259,000). The directors of the
Company consider that the timing for reversal of the related
temporary differences can be controlled and such temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Acquisition of the Access Group

On 22 December 2016, the Company had completed the
acquisition of Access Group. Access Group is principally
engaged in the business of loan referral services in the
PRC.

The consideration for the acquisition is approximately
HK$128,515,000, which includes (i) cash consideration
of HK$80,000,000 and (ii) the allotment and issue of an
aggregate of 194,060,671 ordinary shares of the Company
(the "Consideration Shares”) at issue price of HK$0.25 per
share. The fair value of Consideration Shares at the date
of acquisition amounted to approximately HK$45,604,000
based on the closing market price at the date of acquisition.

HK$20,000,000 of cash consideration was settled on the
date of completion. The remaining cash considerations
of HK$30,000,000, HK$20,000,000 and HK$10,000,000
are payable upon the next business day after issue of
audited financial statements of the Beijing Xinnuowei and
its subsidiaries for financial years ending 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.

35 RERNIE (&)

NR-ZZE—XRNE+_A=+—H" B R
BARIASE RN BRENEREZEEE
901,000 7t (=& — R 4 : 5,259,000/
To)WAEREBREMHE CELEHBEEE-
ARAREERABOEFAEREZENERE
A FEHNEZEEREZE ISR B ARK
B[ o

36 1058 P B A 7
(a) Wik Access &

RZEB-RE+AZ+ZH AR
B2 S A U BB Access £ E & 282 31T
fEA o Access EBFEREFBHNREE
RS o

I BE B 4 5128,515,0008 7T B2 15
(i) 38 % £ {880,000,00078 7T & (i) 3% 3%
ITEEM0.258 Ui 8 M BT R A
A 194,060,671 A% E @A ([ (B A
B1) - BBWEAHHKTE  RER
R U EE B &~ E 4 A45,604,000
B IT °

I8 4 A {820,000,0007 ;T 2 R K H
HA(E 1 - 23R € R (&% 530,000,000
7 7T + 20,000,0005% 7T 5. 10,000,000/%8
TERIEREHMEERNBRARESR
—E-RE ZE—HFRZZE-N
F+ A=+ BUHIRFENLESE
BB mERTEE T —AZEER (o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Acquisition of the Access Group (Continued)

36. WREEMT B A Al (#)
(a) YiBAccess&EE (&)

In addition, as part of the acquisition, if the actual
audited consolidated net profit after tax of Beijing
Xinnuowei and its subsidiaries for the year ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 (the “Actual Profit”), is less than RMB10,000,000,
RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 respectively (the
"Profit Guarantee”), the vendors will compensate the
Company for the shortfall for an amount equivalent to
the difference between the Profit Guarantee and the
Actual Profit multiplied by 1.2 times.

In such event, the Company shall have the right to
deduct the compensation from the respective cash
considerations payable to the vendor for financial
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
(i.e. 2016: HK$30,000,000, 2017: HK$20,000,000;
2018:HK$10,000,000). Should the cash considerations
payable to the vendor be insufficient to cover the
compensation, the Company shall have the right to sell
all or part of the Consideration Shares under escrow, the
net proceeds from which shall be equal to the shortfall
of the compensation, to the independent third parties, in
the securities market.

For avoidance of doubt, should the Access Group record
an actual consolidated loss for any of the financial years
ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018, the amount
shall be deemed as zero.

Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 December 2016 and 22
December 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. WHEEMT B~ A (4)
(a) B Access £E (&)

T R Bt 5t U BB Access R BIE T
MEORE ARRKEERERZE

(a) Acquisition of the Access Group (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid/
payable for the acquisition of Access Group, and the fair

value of assets and liabilities recognised at the acquisition EMEENRTE:
date:
HK$'000
FHIT

Non-current assets FREBEE

Property, plant and equipment M BB R 367

Intangible assets B EE

— information integration platform —EREKFEE 10,904

Available-for-sales investments AHHERE 11,175
Current assets REBEE

Other receivables, deposits and prepayment — E b fBUSFKIB - & M TEF KB 19,433

Tax receivables JE W 75t 18 1

Bank and cash balances RITRIRSER 3,868
Current liabilities REAEME

Receipts in advance TAWFRIA (1,616)

Accruals and other payables FE=T & A & B A JE < k18 (25,664)

Amount due to a shareholder JFE — B IR R RIE (6,090)

Borrowings BE (14,191)

Tax payables JE < 5t 18 (830)
Net identifiable assets at fair value UAFREFEZABRINEEFE (2,643)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 (776)
Shareholders' loan assigned to the Group HETASE ZREER 6,090
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WEEEEA ZHE 100,282
Total fair value consideration NEERERSE 102,953
Consideration satisfied by: REXFFR:

Cash paid EfRE 20,000

Fair value of consideration shares REKRD 2 2 FE 45,604

Deferred consideration RIERE 53,238

Less: contingent consideration receivable R AR RAE (15,889)

102,953

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHESRIEESX NN ML F5

Cash consideration paid ENBEENKE 20,000

Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of  J&: WIEME & MBS ZEY (3,868)

16,132
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Acquisition of the Access Group (Continued)

36. WREEMT B A Al (#)
(a) YiBAccess&EE (&)

The directors have engaged an independent valuer to
determine the fair value of the net tangible assets and
intangible assets of Access Group, in accordance with
HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be
paid/payable by the Group over the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired.

(b) Acquisition of the security brokerage service

company and asset management company

According to the conditional sale and purchase
agreements dated 1 September 2015, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Prominence Financials Limited (“PFL") and
Prominence Asset Management Limited (“PAM") for a
total cash consideration of the sum of HK$38,914,000.

PFL is principally engaged in the provision of type 1
(dealing in securities) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") in Hong
Kong. PAM is principally engaged in the provision of type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO
in Hong Kong.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% =ZF —

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of the security brokerage service
company and asset management company (Continued)

e B RRME

AET=AZ+—A
36. WHEFT B A T (#)

(b) WBRSELRBLAAREEEELD
8 (&)

The acquisition was completed on 9 March 2016. The net
identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed, at fair

value are as follows:

WBEEER-Z—X"F=ZANB=E
oA FEAENERBD B E

ENMFEREGEFENT:

PFL PAM
BEeH BREEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz - BB MR E 25 -
Intangible asset — trading right BRNEE-RHRE 500 -
Other assets H & E 250 -
Current assets REEE
Loans receivables FEWE 5k 2,632 -
Trade receivables JE W BR 5k 3,086 48
Prepayments, deposits and AN IR ke REMEYWFKIA
other receivables 459 -
Amount due from a related party FEW — & BAE 5 BB - 700
Cash held on behalf of clients REFPEBEZRS 16,687 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHBRERS 10,195 190
Tax receivable JE W A I8 - 9
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETRR X (16,668) -
Accruals and other payables FE=TE M & B th JE 1~ 5k 18 (161) (12)
Obligation under finance leases BEMEAE (3) -
Tax payable N BEIE (23) -
16,979 935
Net identified assets acquired and NAFEEZEWE
liabilities assumed, at fair value EHRANEERFIAEEETRE 16,979 935
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WHEBEEE 2 /mE 14,500 6,500
Total fair value consideration N FERERRE 31,479 7,435
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W iEEIHEERIRE R HIFRE
Cash consideration paid ENReRE 31,479 7.435
Less: Cash and cash equivalent B WERNIRE RIReEEY
acquired of (10,195) (190)
21,284 7,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEe

B ISR AR AE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of the security brokerage service

(c)

company and asset management company (Continued)

The directors have engaged an independent valuer to
determine the fair value of the net tangible assets and
intangible assets of PFL and PAM, in accordance with
HKFRS 13. The identifiable intangible asset of trading
right is identified.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be paid
by the Group over the fair value of net tangible assets
acquired.

Acquisition of the insurance brokerage service
company

On 26 November 2015, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
of Greater China Wealth & Risk Management Limited
(“Greater China”) Wealth (Formerly known as
Prominence Wealth & Risk Management Co., Limited) For
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital.

According to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Greater China
Wealth for a total cash consideration of the sum of
HK$2,999,000.

36. W BT B A A (&)
(b) KEEECERBAAREESEL

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. WHEEMT B~ A (4)
(c) Acquisition of the insurance brokerage service (c) WEBREELLIRKE LT (B)
company (Continued)
On 26 November 2015, the net identified assets acquired R-ZEZE—AF+—AZ+RB 2HK
and liabilities assumed, at fair value are as follows: BB EERFREAEEFREZA
FEMAT:
HK$'000
FHET
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from an ultimate JEW — S R IE R A Bl 5KI8
holding company 658
Prepayments and deposits BRRERES 7
Bank balances and cash IRITEGF MRS 4
669

Net identified assets acquired and liabilities NAFEHEZERBEAHRNEER

assumed, at fair value FriEaBEFEE 669
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WIEEIEEEX 28 2,330
Total fair value consideration NP EREHESE 2,999
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WESHEEANESME F58

Cash consideration paid ENReRE 2,999

Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of & : WEEMIR & RIS ZEY (4)

2,995
The directors of the Company have engaged an RAAREZCZEBLHEMERE
independent valuer, to determine the fair value of the B BEHRERNBEIRECENEE
net tangible assets and intangible assets (if any), in KB EEFRE 2NV E &5
accordance with HKFRS 13. No identifiable intangible HAl R & E -
assets are identified.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the WEEEELA BEEASEKEY
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be NEEMNZRENAFESKE WE
paid or payable by the Group over the fair value of net BREEFRENRTFEZED -

tangible assets acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Humble Group

36. W BT B A A (&)
d) KEHEED

On 31 July 2015, the Company entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, being the vendor holding the entire equity interest
in Humble Faith Management Limited (the "Humble
Faith”), for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Humble Faith.

Humble Faith is the legal and beneficial owner of the
entire registered capital of Shanghai Junning, which has
entered into a series of contractual agreements with
Zhongyuan, and its registered shareholders, i.e. Shanghai
Fake and Shanghai Baifu on 8 September 2015. Through
these Contractual Agreements B, the Shanghai Junning
has effective control over the financial and business
operations of the Zhongyuan, and is entitled to the
economic interest and benefits of the Zhongyuan which
is engaged in pawnshop business in Shanghai, the PRC.

The contractual arrangements currently in effect comprise
the following agreements, namely (a) the Exclusive
Consulting Service Agreement, (b) the Equity Pledge
Agreement, (c) the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, and
(d) the Authorisation Agreement.

According to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire the sale shares for a total cash consideration
of the sum of Hong Kong Dollars equivalent to
RMB51,000,000. On 11 September 2015, a sum of Hong
Kong Dollars equivalent to RMB41,000,000 was paid to
the vendor; and a sum of Hong Kong Dollars equivalent
to RMB10,000,000 will be paid to the vendor on or
before 31 March 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. WHEEMT B~ A (4)
(d) Acquisition of Humble Group (Continued) (d) WEREEE (&)

R-ZE-—RAFNAA+ B BEBAHE
REWBAR ([HREEE]) NS WE
AR EERMAEEBEFEIAT

On 11 September 2015, the net identified assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, at fair value of Humble Faith and
its subsidiaries (the “Humble Group”) are as follows:

BT
HK$'000
FHETT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 16
Current assets REEE
Repossessed assets KU e & E 59
Amount due from a former shareholder JE UL — & AT AR R 5KIA 390
Pawn loans receivables JE W 1 B 3R 51
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TS FRIA « & & M H Ath & WG TE 74
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERRS 60,672
Current liabilities REBAEME
Other payables H {th & 7 IR (733)
60,529
Net identified assets acquired and liabilities ~ LA RAFETE 2B WEAI#BIEE R
assumed, at fair value FiEEa BT 60,529
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WEEEEA ZHE 1,380
Total fair value consideration NP EREESE 61,909
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEEEANBESRAFRE:
Cash consideration paid ENEEKE (49,770)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired of WENRe RRESEEYD 60,672
10,902

ARAREFCDZBHIGEMEZRE
B EREERNEIIREEREEHE
BRVEERENEE (WWB)FEZR
FAE - WA A BB B EE

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the net
tangible assets and intangible assets (if any) of Humble
Group, in accordance with HKFRS 13. No identifiable
intangible assets are identified.

WEERELEZHEREARERKEX

NRENZRENDFESRHES
BAMEEFENRAFEZBLD

Goodwill arising from the Acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be
paid or payable by the Group over the fair value of net
tangible assets of Humble Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(e) Acquisition of Oriental Credit Group

36. BT B~ Al ()
() WIH S S HEE

On 20 November 2014, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Joseph
Shie Jay Lang as vendor guarantor, Rosy Start Investments
Limited (“Rosy Start”), Equity Partner Holdings Limited
("Equity Partner”), Century Best Holdings Limited
("Century Best”) and Asiabiz Capital Investment Limited
(“Asiabiz"”), together, being the vendors collectively
holding the entire equity interest in Oriental Credit,
for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Oriental Credit. Among the vendors, Mr. Joseph Shie Jay
Lang is the sole legal and beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of Rosy Start, Equity Partner and
Century Best. The agreement was subsequently amended
by a first supplemental agreement dated 3 June 2015
and a second supplemental agreement dated 8 January
2016.

Oriental Credit is the legal and beneficial owner of the
entire registered capital of Shanghai Yousheng, which has
entered into Contractual Agreements A with Xinsheng,
and its registered shareholders, i.e. Shanghai Zhifeng
and Shanghai Kuailu in September, November and
December 2014. Through these Contractual Agreements
A, the Shanghai Yousheng has effective control over the
financing and business operations of the Xinsheng, and
is entitled to the economic interest and benefits of the
Xinsheng which is engaged in pawnshop business in
Shanghai, the PRC.

The contractual arrangements currently in effect comprise
the following agreements, namely (a) the Exclusive
Consulting Service Agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement to the Exclusive Consulting
Service Agreement and second supplemental agreement
to Exclusive Consulting Service Agreement), (b) the
Equity Pledge Agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement to Equity Pledge Agreement), (c)
the Exclusive Call Option Agreement (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreement to Exclusive Call Option
Agreement and second supplemental agreement
to Exclusive Call Option Agreement), and (d) the
Authorisation Agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(e) Acquisition of Oriental Credit Group (Continued)

According to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, the Company has conditionally agreed
to acquire the sale shares for a total consideration
of HK$150,000,000 which may be raised to
HK$180,000,000 subject to adjustment on the basis
of performance targets achieved for 2014, 2015 and
2016 according to the audited consolidated net profit
after taxation of Oriental Credit and its subsidiaries (the
"Qriental Credit Group”) for the respective accounting
periods.

Initial consideration

The consideration shall initially be HK$150,000,000 for
the sale shares, subject to adjustments, in accordance
with the sale and purchase agreement.

The consideration shall be satisfied by the Company by
way of issue of the convertible notes in the following
manner:

(a) after the issue of the audited accounts of Oriental
Credit Group for the financial year ending 31
December 2014, a sum of HK$80,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) will be paid by way of issue of the
convertible notes (the “2014 Convertible Note") to
the vendors;

after the issue of the audited accounts of Oriental
Credit Group for the financial year ending 31
December 2015, a sum of HK$35,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) will be paid by way of issue of the
convertible notes (the “2015 Convertible Note”) to
the vendors; and

(c) after the issue of the audited accounts of Oriental
Credit Group for the financial year ending 31
December 2016, a sum of HK$35,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) will be paid by way of issue of the
convertible notes (the “2016 Convertible Note”) to
the vendors.

The convertible notes shall be issued to each vendor in
accordance with the respective shareholding ratio.

e B RRME

BE-T-AFt-A=+—H
36. W BT B A A (&)
() KBRS EEEE ()

BEEGKHEEHZ AR BIKMY
[ = A 4 K 8150,000,000/% 7t (A]
IR —ZE—NHE —ZE—RAFRE_F
—NFEKIEEBEZ(IBRERA
EERENBAR([EHFEESE])
RESTHBCEEZEEBRMEL
5 ) BE%E 7 Z%180,000,000%
70 ) WS S B AR 1D o

AERIE

BEEEHZ HERGD ZIHBRRE
JE 150,000,000/ 7T (AJ §%&) o

ZREEAARRBEBIA T AET
AR EREE

@ RTBEREHFEEEEEZ_-Z
—ME+-_A=+—BILHKE
€7 & E %8R B 1% 80,000,000/
T (AIAR)ZEEBEBMER
BOOBRBRERE([Z2—NFA]
BMREE]) 2 A AT

RABERHFEEEERHEZ -
—RE+—_RA=+—B LB BE
€ 2 &&= R B 1% 35,000,000/
T(ARAB) 2B HBEERRNER
BT BRREE([ZE—RFA
BREE D) 2ARIZN R

RABERERFEEEEHEZE_-Z
—RNE+_A=+—BILFBE
€ 2 & F{1Z 8k B 1%+ 35,000,000/%8
T (AR ZEBEBRER
BITABBREER ([ ZZE—RFq
BMRER]) 2RI e

AR RIERIEE B 2 IR P TT
TEET-

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. WM B AR ()
(e) Acquisition of Oriental Credit Group (Continued) (e) WBRAEEEXE (&)
Initial consideration (Continued) TEH1E (8)
The 2014 Convertible Note, 2015 Convertible Note and —E-MEABRRER - —FT—AF

2016 Convertible Note of convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company at a conversion price HK$1.2 (before
sub-division) per conversion share in the date upon the
expiry of the put option period and ending on the 21st
business day before the maturity date (the “Conversion
Period”).

Performance targets and consideration adjustments

The initial consideration (and accordingly the initial
principal amount of convertible notes) is subject to
adjustment of maximum of HK$30,000,000 on the basis
of the following performance targets of Oriental Credit:

(i) the audited consolidated net profit after tax
of Oriental Credit Group for the financial year
ending 31 December 2014 shall not be less than
HK$15,000,000 (the “2014 Performance Target”);

(i) the audited consolidated net profit after tax of
the Oriental Credit Group for the financial year
ending 31 December 2015 shall not be less than
HK$25,000,000 (the “2015 Performance Target”);
and

(iii) the audited consolidated net profit after tax of
the Oriental Credit Group for the financial year
ending 31 December 2016 shall not be less than
HK$40,000,000 (the “2016 Performance Target”
and, together with the 2014 Performance Target
and the 2015 Performance Target, the “Performance
Targets”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(e) Acquisition of Oriental Credit Group (Continued)
Put option

Upon the sole and absolute discretion of the Board,
the Company shall be entitled to require each vendor,
severally but not jointly, to repurchase all sale shares held
by it (the “Put Option”). The amount payable by the
vendors for the repurchase of the sale shares upon the
Company exercising the Put Option shall be equivalent
to the Consideration (the “Put Price”). The Put Price shall
be set off against the amounts of the Consideration and
the 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible Note (if
issued) shall be cancelled.

On 21 January 2015, the acquisition was completed
and the fair values of consideration transferrable are as

e B RRME

BE-T-AFt-A=+—H
36. WEEH B A A (/)
(€) MRS EEER (&)
bR

REZS2ENBRET ARAAF
REREES (ERIMIERR) O E
KB ZAHERD ([FRAHE]) -
RARBIITEREHER BB
CIEERNENNEREBEERNNKE
([RAE]) -RAEREHERESER
B-F-—MFIRBREEN_—"FT—5
FRHEER (MO #ET)ATEH-

R-ZZE—AF—A=-+—HB WEE
HE R R TEZEREZAFEDT

follows:
HK$'000
FAET
Initial consideration A RE
— 2014 Convertible Note — T -NF A BRERRE 129,250
— 2015 Convertible Note ——E-—hFABBREE 64,020
— 2016 Convertible Note ——E-RFUBBRER 63,900
257,170
Additional consideration by issuing BERBETIBRBRERI N 2EIME
convertible notes 22,567
Total consideration BB 279,737

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
contingent considerations, and contingent consideration
to be recognised, in accordance with HKFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement” issued by the HKICPA. Fair value
is defined in HKFRS 13 as “the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date”. The independent valuer
has reviewed the methodologies and the key valuation
parameters and business assumptions adopted.

The fair value of the deferred convertible notes included
in the initial consideration is valued by Black-Scholes
Model. Key valuation parameters include discount rates,
volatility and spot share price and conversion price.

ARBEREZBBILGER RIE
BEGMAGRONELNERE
BRF1R (2 FEHFE|BEIARRK
BZRAFERBERNOIARE-F
BUBREERNEIIRRE L FE
RIME2RERFEARETZA
FREPHEEEMRBRKEEAR
Psc itz B8] - B (EEME EHAA
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AP REZETEAIRRERZ A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. W HE I B A A ()
(e) Acquisition of Oriental Credit Group (Continued) (e) KBRS EEEHE (&)

Put option (Continued) RogRIE (&)

As per HKFRS 3, Business Combinations, an acquirer shall RIBEEMEHREEREIR [ XKL
retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognised oF ] - W 77 B M BN UK AR B HA e
at the acquisition date to reflect new information RERSRE URBAESHRKE
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of AHELFAENSEMBERUARME
the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected EMAA e ZHE RSB T2
the measurement of the amounts recognised as of that FI{ER B2 FER - REr = 8IFE - W&
date. During the measurement period, the acquirer BSEERNBEBHEFESEMNEBER
shall also recognise additional assets or liabilities if new K fie B X1 BI AT B B B 5% B MR 3%
information is obtained about facts and circumstances EEERBREZHER WEHIMA
that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, BRBEINEEXBE -FTEHBARIK
would have resulted in the recognition of those assets BHRINEBEAEEES K 2 IE B
and liabilities as of that date. The measurement period EFESENBRZERN NG AEE
ends as soon as the acquirer receives the information it EREZERRFRIE AT 528
was seeking about facts and circumstances that existed MAGHEREWER R —F -8
as of the acquisition date or learns that more information B —ZEBAR_T—RAF=HAA
is not obtainable. However, the measurement period shall s RAGEESEERE_ZT—MF
not exceed one year from the acquisition date. According TZA=T—HLEFEZE&EZNB
to the audited financial statements of the Oriental Credit W& T —HFFEFR19,944,0017%8
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 issued by TLoRBABRAN - RZTE—HFH
another auditor on 5 March 2015, the 2014 Net Profit “HETZ_T-HFAREREED
was HK$19,944,001. Based on the adjustment formula, KT BN & % 585,401,768/ 8 T (H
the adjusted principal amount of the 2014 Convertible 780,000,000/ T & — T — M0 F A #&
Note shall be HK$85,401,768 (HK$80,000,000 for 2014 MR | - M5,401,768B T ARE T
Convertible Note and HK$5,401,768 for additional —NFHEEBFERT2BINTRRE
convertible notes issued in accordance with 2014 B) —E—MEABREEAIRER
Performance Target) was issued on 3 June 2015. The HREBRESRERRM1.2E TE
2014 Convertible Note is convertible into ordinary BMABRAE L@ -

shares of the Company at conversion price HK$1.2 per
conversion share in the conversion period.

At 31 December 2015, the deferred consideration RZEBE-—RF+-_A=+—H EZL
HK$127,920,000 includes 2015 Convertible Note K {E127,920,0008 TEE_T—Hh
HK$64,020,000 and 2016 Convertible Note HK$63,900,000. F ol % E 564,020,000 T = F
— N A A R 263,900,000/ 7T ©

The principal amount for additional convertible notes will BINAIMBREBZACHEEBRIBE_-F
be issued in accordance with 2015 Performance Target —hFXEEBERFT—RNFXER
and 2016 Performance Target. EmEET

Certain terms and conditions of sale and purchase BEEWE(KBEHA-_Z—RAF A
agreement (as amended by the first supplemental “HME—MERHBERET )NET
agreement dated 3 June 2015) were amended after the BARAREER S —AFHEEHRE
year ended of 2015. On 8 January 2016, the Company BRI -R_FE—RNE—ANB KQ
entered into a second supplemental agreement to the RIEBEFRBLHERAGLEE HE
sale and purchase agreement with the vendors and the ZE_MEamE NEFTBEEH=R
vendors guarantor to amend certain terms and conditions (KBBHA-—ZTE—HFA=RAZE
of the sale and purchase agreement (as amended by —ERBEBER ) 2E THRRRIE
the first supplemental agreement dated 3 June 2015) t ([ZEBE]])) % FBIBEBE]
(the “Amendments”). The Amendments include the iR FE AR (B B R R X 1B 5T 380h HAfE
amendments to the payment terms of the deferred HAPR R ] R R A SR H o

consideration, the amendments to the Put Option Period
and the conversion period of the Convertible Notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% =ZF —

36. WHEFT B A T (#)
() KBRS Em (&)

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(e) Acquisition of Oriental Credit Group (Continued)

On 21 January 2015, the net identified assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, at fair value of Oriental Credit
Group are as follows:

e B RRME

AE+=A=+—A

R-_E—FRF—A=-+—H BBEXR
HFEEEENCWEEEREENMAT
EEAEFE2AFENT

HK$'000
T
Non-current asset FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% HE KRR 1,005
Current assets REEE
Repossessed assets e & E 44
Pawn loans receivables JE g 5 B R 213,519
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B 7RIE 1% & M H 4th & I FE 1,690
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRS 19,674
Current liabilities REEE
Other loans H i E (94,606)
Other payables H {th & 5 5RIR (11,987)
Amount due to a director BN —RBEEIE 9)
Bank loan RITERK (44,209)
85,121
Net identified assets acquired and liabilites ~ A AFEFEZEREEHEE K
assumed, at fair value FTEBE R 85,121
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WEEEEA ZEE 194,616
Total fair value consideration NEERERSE 279,737
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WIEEEESXNRSRAFEE:
Cash and cash equivalent acquired of WENRe RREEEYD 19,674

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
net tangible assets and intangible assets (if any) of
Oriental Credit Group, in accordance with HKFRS 13. No
identifiable intangible assets are identified.

Goodwill arising from the Acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be
payable by the Group over the fair value of net tangible
assets of Oriental Credit Group.

ARAEFCZBB U GEMEZRE
BUMBHREEEIREERSTEE
SEENEENBLEE (WB)FHE
/NS SRR RSl el AR §
o

WEEREECHEREAEBRRKEX
NzRENAFESRRIEESHE
BREERENRTFEZED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 February 2015, the Group disposed of its 100%
equity interests in Keycharm and Toobright and its subsidiary
which are engaged in construction of port infrastructure,
development of petrochemical industry projects, production
of petrochemical products and sale of such products in
Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, to an independent
third party at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$221,821,000 (equivalent to RMB178,228,000), which
comprises the initial consideration of HK$169,966,000
(equivalent to RMB137,000,000) and additional consideration
of HK$51,855,000 (equivalent to RMB41,228,000). Further
details of disposal are set out in the circular of the Company

37. L EMT B A A
n=

ZE-RAF_A-_+tHBE XEEHEIK
#38 & K{E221,821,0008 T (BER
AR #178,228,0007t) (EFm B EH
K 1B169,966,0008 T (HHER AR
137,000,0007T ) & B8 SMR {E51,855,000/%8
7T (FBEH AR #41,228,0007T) ) A — 4%
BB = HEEREA K& E & HH
BRAIMEHMRE ZERAREEEF
IEHEBAETHREBOERIMESR A
IFEXBEERZE ALtEREENEBE
MZEE - HEFTHZE—FFBIHHER
ARARIBA-ST—RAF—A=-+~HZ

dated 26 January 2015. 3 K o
REEHMNEEREEI MO T :

Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of
disposal are as follows:

2015

—ZET—-hF

HK$'000

FATT

Prepaid lease payments AN HEEKIA 78,114
Construction in progress EREIE 1,639
Other receivables H h fE W SRIB 3,112
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 38,084
Amounts due from the group companies FEW & B~ RIFKIE 60,540
Bank loan RITER (46,646)
Other payables and accruals Hih R RIBERESTER (305)
Net assets disposal of HENFEE 134,538
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

37.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37.HENB AT (®)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEME QAR W :
2015
—hF
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration received BEWReNRE 221,821
Net assets disposal of HENFEE (134,538)
Cumulative exchange gain in respect B ARFEEM = A RFTE R
of the net assets of subsidiaries 39,980
Gain on disposal & W 127,263
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries: HERBARNRSRAFE:
2015
—T—NF
HK$'000
FHTT
Cash consideration received BEWReENRE 221,821
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances B HENRE RASFEMER
disposed of (38,084)
183,737
38.DE-CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. BUEMIB R Rl 2426 ARR
As mentioned in note 3, Xinsheng and Zhongyuan have been M3 - B —R"F—H—H
de-consolidated from the consolidated financial statements BREPRERAEE 2G5 ®
of the Group as from 1 January 2016. KEUBFRE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

38.DE-CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

3. HUHMI B AR 2436 AR (#)

LAMBR Tz FEERBFRRIWMT

Details of the aggregate net assets of the
above-mentioned subsidiaries are set out below:

Immediate
before
de-
consolidation
on 1.1.2016
£
R-ZE—XREF
—B—HEUH
mEANRA
HK$'000
FET
Property plant and equipment M BRE MR 817
Repossessed assets e e & E 41
Pawn loans receivables JE Y8 8 B 5K 359,698
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TN IR 12 e R E A FE IR 1,232
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EFEYD 33,834
Amounts due to the Group JER AR EEFKIA (64,966)
Borrowing BE (195,170)
Other payables and accruals HEMENFRIENETEA (11,216)
Tax payables JERT IR (713)
Net assets disposed EHEFEE 123,557
Goodwill B 195,996
Cumulative exchange loss in respect of the net assets FtFEEM = < L:TE K E18 4,925
Net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries BUBM B A RlAR e AR ZEEFRE 324,478
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EUHKIBRARGAEAREELEZRE M
arising from de-consolidation of subsidiaries ReFBEY 2 REFEIN 33,834

As at the date of this report, the Group had commenced
legal action against Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and
Zhongyuan and the outcome of such legal actions remained
uncertained. As the abovementioned subsidiaries have been
de-consolidated, the directors of the Company considered
the legal actions will not have any adverse impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) resolved
that the Group no longer had the power to manage the
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan, and the control over the Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan has been lost in July 2016. Details of the de-
consolidation were set up in Group’s announcement date 12
August 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

39.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

In 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(2011 Share Option Scheme”), which will expire on 19 June
2021, for the purpose of providing incentives or reward to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any invested entity. Under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees (including any executive directors),
non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or services and
customers of the Group; and any persons or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support
to the Group.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option by payment
from the participant of HK$1.00. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the option and subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

The subscription price for shares under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the particular option; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the particular option; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the adoption date. Besides, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue for the time being.

39. fE AR HE 5T 2

ARRRN T ——FHRA—ABBHERT S
(I=ZF——FBREE]) & aHBRn
“E--FRXATABRER BRERM
RBIRETAERSEAL UEBHK
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MREEEBEENANER RE_-F
—— FBBEFE ARRES A I
BE (BREEMATES) FRATES
EnEARBEEHMAEEES ARG
AEBREMR FEHEMBMED
TAALTHERRE D BEE-

SEATAREEBRERZN B HER28
B A% 32 151.0078 7T M 32 4% 78 S - %5 K
BRAAREZTSETE BRI AT
B IR — T — — F B 8 %
AT B B MEE B Tz R B R
BRER L BB ER T F 2R
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—E - FREEEREE TR RBE
HAEFSETEMNER  ETAMER T
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RARE - ——FRREFENAKEE
o] B A 8 A R AT 8 P I HH BV PR B 1R R AT 1
BREETEMN FTETOROESH
B aAFNSBEETKDETRNO BN
30% - REMI2ME A BE A ARE-F
——FREBER S KA RE A E M ER
AT MEREETEME H1TR
ARRARTTER2EBALTHRO AR
THREBEREHTROABENI% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

39.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of
options granted and remained outstanding under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 353,428,000 (2015: 90,000,000),
representing 8.07% (2015: 2.78%) of the issued shares
of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme is 157,755,335 (2015: 149,923,555),
representing approximately 3.45% (2015: 4.64%) of the
issued shares of the Company.

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set

39. 5 IR AT 2 (8)

RZE—RNF+_A=+—H BE-Z
—— FEREAZCREBEATENE
R ¥E 3 N M B% 17 81 B £353,428,0000% ( —
= — F £ : 90,000,0000% ) " 15 AR & C 2
TR HI8.07% (ZTE—HF:2.78% ) °
RAFRAH —FT—— FERETZ
HTAHEBEITHRMDE R &157,755,335
% (ZZF— F 4 :149,923,555/% ) * 15 A
NAIEBEITRMNAB.45% (ZE—RHF:
4.64% ) °

HE-T—AF+-A=+—BLLER
R EFit AN AR REN S BEZIMT

out below:
Number of share options
BREHE
As at As at
1 January 31 December Exercise Exercise
Category of participants 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2016 period price HK$
RZB-XE
R-B-Rf T=A
S2EALER -A—H ERE [BXk:d BAX =t-B f7&H TEEBT
Category I: Employees
Bl EE
20.11.2015 90,000,000 - - (60,000,000) 30,000,000 Note (a) 0.920
“Z-RF¥+-AZtH it & (a)
28.12.2016 - 91,580,000 - - 91,580,000 28.12.2016 - 0.232
28.12.2018
ZT-RE —T-R%¥
+=A=+NH +ZA=tNBE
—E-N\E
+=A=TNH
Category II: Consultants
BRI : B
28.12.2016 - 231,848,000 - - 231,848,000 28.12.2016- 0.232
28.12.2018
ZT-RE “T-RE
+=A=+/\H +ZAZ+N\BE
—Z-N\F
+=RA=TNH
Total 90,000,000 323,428,000 = (60,000,000) 353,428,000
et
Weighted average 0.92 0.232 - 0.92 0.29
exercise price
MEFTEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

39.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set

eI HRERMEE
HE-F-AF+-A=1—~
39. BB I MERT 2 ()

BENRBE-_ZE—RE+-_A=+—81
FEMBFEEARRBERENESFTIOT

out below:
Number of share options
FRRESE
As at As at
1 January 31 December  Exercise Exercise
Category of participants 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2015 period price HK$
RZZE-1%F
AZE—-RF +=A
28ATEH —A—H B BT BEAR =+—8 78 TEEAT
Category I: Employees
Bl EB
20.11.2015 - 90,000,000 - - 90,000,000 Note (a) 0.920
—Z-RF¥+-A-1H fit 3t (a)
Total - 90,000,000 - -~ 90,000,000
izt
Weighted average - 0.92 - - 0.92
exercise price
IEFATEE
Notes: Bt & -

(a)

On 20 November 2015, the Company granted a total of
18,000,000 share options under the Scheme to employees of
the Group. The validity period of the options is 30 months from
the date of grant of the options, i.e. from 20 November 2015
to 19 November 2018. The options will entitle the grantees to
subscribe for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of HK$0.005
each at an exercise price of HK$4.59 per share.

The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from
(i) the expiry date of the Put Option period as stated in the
second supplemental agreement dated 8 January 2016, (ii)
20 November 2016, and (iii) 20 May 2017 respectively to 19
November 2018.

As a result of the share subdivision which was effective on 28
December 2015, the exercise price per share and number of
outstanding share options granted on 20 November 2015 were
adjusted from HK$4.59 to HK$0.92 and from 18,000,000 to
90,000,000 respectively.

On 28 December 2016, the Company granted a total of
323,428,000 share options under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 24 months from the date of grant of
the options, i.e. from 28 December 2016 to 28 December 2018.
The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
323,428,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.232 per share.

R-BE—HE+—A=-+8 AQAHEE
SFEl ALK EEE R A 18,000,000
DERE-ERE AR A S BRER
HEHE30@EAR (I E—HF+—A
—t+RE-Z—N\Ft+—A+NB) B
% 8 & B, T R A BE FI LATT A (B & A%4.59
v 7T EE 4 ££18,000,0000% & P& E {H0.005
T Z FTRRAD

BRE>AZH RTHBEBHEE-Z
—NFE+—A+NBILERBEEFITE: ()
BEA-Z— X "E—A/\BNE_HER
WAy R HESRERZ B (i) =
T-XNE+—A=Z+H K\ ZE—*+F
EA=-+H-

o fFREAR —_E—aF+-_A=-+N\B4%
Mg R _E-—RAF+—AZ+HEHH
MARTEERENERITEE RS EE S
HH o BIA4.598 L AE 0928 T XA
18,000,0000% 7 #& £90,000,0000% °

R-ZBE—RE+ZA-+N\B XE£ERE
BE-Z——FEREAZERNAEEEE R
EE R 1% & $£323,428,00017 B A% #E B AR
2 EWE RS BRER D B BRE241E
BBl Z—E—XRFE+=-_A=-+t/N\BE_Z
—NFE+-A=-+N\R) EHRESLHET
AR AEFATEEER0.232B TRE
4 #£323,428,000/% = I E 1E0.001/8 7T 2
D ©

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

39.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 39. BB IR MEET 2 (@)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 was estimated
as at the date of grant, using a Binomial model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

HE _ZT—RXFER-_ZEZ—FHF+=-A
Z+—HLEFERHNNURELEENER
B2 AFEDREL B BER B
FEERA G WE 5 RIR B EK
BEER RE TREYIERFTRAR
B A\ B -

2016 2015

ZE-AF _—T-N1F

Exercise price (HK$) 7 E (BT) 0.232 4.59
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) RH B EHRE (BT) 0.232 4.59
Dividend yield (%) A% B E= (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA IR 08 (%) 91.79 70.58
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 2 B2 ) K (%) 1.244 0.626
Expected life of options (years) TREARE AR H (F) 2.000 2.497

The expected life of the options is based on the contractual
life and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2016 was HK$34,350,000 (2015:
HK$34,029,000). The fair value per option granted was
HK$0.11 (2015: HK$1.89). The Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$38,873,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$5,831,000).
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BRERHFHIREBEAOFHETE K
WARAREHIRMITERNIRR - FAHIKIE
RERESL MBS RREZEENRE &

BHE T RE+-_A=1+—BLLEER
BB AR #E 2 A B A34,350,00075 7T ( —
T — A F:34,029,0008T) - BEHEK
HERENAFERET(ZE—H
F:1.8987L) AEBREEZE_T—RF
+ A=+t BT ERRERERAX
38,873,000%% 7t (=& — A 4 : 5,831,000
BIT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

40.0PERATING LEASES 0.48 & FH 4
The Group as lessee AEBEEREBEA
2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Minimum lease payments under FARBLKEHERPAE
operating leases in respect of W) 3% 8 (K HE & K18
office properties 11,105 9,779
At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments RBEHR ASBBRBET A BELEH
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AN THEHB AN RRKEHEER
operating leases which fall due as follows: B2 EERT :
2016 2015
ZEB-RFE —T—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within one year —FRA 11,315 15,049
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF (BREEMF) 4,299 14,685
15,614 29,734
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Z«(M?HKE/‘D)\IETElzﬁglﬁé\ Ko AR A
Group for certain of its office properties in Hong Kong and ETHRAEDERNNER - HOEET
the PRC. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two to BHRHAME=F-
three years.
The Group as lessor EEBEEREHBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REmERR AEEERE EFHREIESN
with tenants for the following future minimum payments for T RREEFIBEREBFET LG -
storage facilities.
2016 2015
—E-RE¥F —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within one year —FR 1,592 11,662
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF (BIEEEMT) 2,257 3,427
3,849 15,089
Warehouse storage income earned during the year was FRHRIE B EF I A %&8,904,000%
HK$8,904,000 (2015: HK$13,651,000). TT(ZZE—HF:13,651,00087T) °

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

41.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

42.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group is required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme, the MPF Scheme, in respect of its employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Both the Group and its employees contribute 5% of
the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme. The maximum
contribution for each employee is limited to HK$18,000
(2015: HK$18,000) per annum.

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of defined
contribution plans organised by PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme in the PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes for the year
amounted to HK$537,000 (2015: HK$1,291,000).

43.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 31):

41.8 &I

RZBE—RAFER_FT—RF+_A=1+—
B A&EB KARQ R E T[] EKE AR
o

42 B RE 5 S

AEEBAHBESREELETHAMNE
Eﬂémaiﬁ% %ﬁ% TR B ESRASE
ENEENHAITABAITAZHNES
#%*ﬁ%%léﬁiﬁﬁéiﬁ/ﬁaﬁﬁaﬁﬁwﬂﬁx
KH5% MBSt EEEER - 55 E
EReHARELATF18,000E T (=
— F 4 : 18,0005 7T ) °

—

FENBARMNERS BTBESAE TEATHE
Eﬁ%?ﬂ?ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁOEPIBHJ%
AREBAREEEAFEHNETED
EEELE LGS $%?ﬁ¢%&ﬁ<?ﬁﬂ
EME BT ABREBZAEELEEDN
IR 5 BT # R B B RRINE S
FERAKE ©

AN R KR T 5T 81 /9 £ 3% A537,000%
T (ZF—R%:1,291,00087T) °

43. B E MM

AEBERERZZ —REBITEE (KM
3N MERZEENE@ENT

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHEIT

Pawn loans receivables fE U B2 B 3R - 113,569
Property, plant and equipment Y% B R 102,883 118,024
Prepaid lease payments AN HEE A 23,994 26,403
Bank deposits |ITER 27,918 35,811
154,795 293,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

44.NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 21 January 2015, the Company has acquired the entire
issued share capital of Oriental Credit Company Limited
and its subsidiaries from Rosy Start, Equity Partner and
Century Best and Asiabiz. On 3 June 2015, the Company
issued the 2014 Convertible Note in the principal amount of
HK$85,401,768 with conversion price of HK$1.2 according
to their respective shareholdings ratio.

Consideration for the acquisition of associates, Intraday
Financial Group, that occurred during the year comprised
issuance of 71,800,000 shares. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in note 20 above.

Part of consideration for the acquisition of Access Group, that
occurred during the year comprised issuance of 194,060,671
shares. Further details of the acquisition are set out in note
36(a) above.

45.CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

In connection with the acquisition of Oriental Credit Group
on 21 January 2015, the Group is subject to contingent
liabilities including settlement of additional consideration by
issuance of convertible notes arising after 21 January 2015
on basis of 2016 Performance Target.

In connection with the acquisition of Intraday Financial Group
on 8 July 2015, the Group may subject to contingent assets
including receivable of cash compensation from Long Tu
Limited arising on the basis of 2016 Performance Target.

Except for the matter described above, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016 and
2015.

44 3B &R 5

R-ZTE—HE—RA=-+—RB &~AFAK
% ~ Equity Partner - ttt {F£ & Asiabiz U B8 5=
FEEERER AR RENBRQF 2
E§§ TRA-R-_FE—AFA=ZH"' K
ANRIRBREES B RELHIFHITAESEE
#385,401,7688 L2 — T —F AT RKRE
B-BmRER/I2EBT

FRUNBHEARERSREBMELAY
BB FEE1771,800,0008% I& 15 - B B Uk
BEEMNE —SFBEHRN EXXHE20-

FRUYIEAccess EBIFTEE 23D REE
FEE£17194,060,6 71 [ 1D - B U B £ 18
K — SEFEIFE R £ XM 5E36(a) ©

HREENAE

AEBR -_ZTE—RHAF—A-+—BHKER
FEEEEMmMAleAEIABE BIFR
CE-AREXEEREERBRTIRRER
mENR-_ZE—RF—A=-+—RHRBREXL
2 BEIMRAE -

AREBR-_Z-—RAFLANBKRBEXRE
REEMAEESIKREE BRE_-F
—RNEFEXEAEMERERERARZH

fr LA BBV R-FB—RFR-F—RF
ToA=1+—B AEEVESAIAAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

46.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group had certain transactions with
related parties. Details of these transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and balances at 31 December
2016 with these related parties are as follows:

46.fF8 B N T FE

FR AEBEBEALETE TS
BE_ZT-R"Ft-_A=1T—BHLFE
ZERGZHEBRR -_ZT—XRFT A
St HERFREALZEHRTT

Transactions with related parties HEEALTZRS
2016 2015
ZB-RFE —T—RHF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Interest expenses (Note ¢) FMERZ (FizEc) - 1,168
Brokerage commission income (Note b) K me A (MisEb) 279 -
Balance with related parties EHEEAL Z&ER
2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—HF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Bank loans (Note a) |ITER (MisEa) - 41,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

46.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

Included the bank loans, there is an amount of HK$Nil (2015:
approximately HK$41,779,000) entrusted by Shanghai Kuailu,
a registered shareholder of Xinsheng, to a bank for making
the loan to Xinsheng. Each of Shanghai Kuailu and Shanghai
Zhifeng executes the Contractual Agreement A in a form and
substance acceptable by the Company to hold the registered
capital in Xinsheng in trust for Shanghai Yousheng upon the
Completion Date. Shanghai Yousheng beneficially owns the
entire equity interest of Xinsheng according to the Contractual
Agreement A.

During the current year, the Group received commission
income from its director of subsidiaries for providing securities
brokerage services.

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear interest
at commercial rates which are similar to the rates offered to
third party clients.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group effected the
following material non-recurring transaction:

(i) On 15 March 2016, the Company issued the 2015
Convertible Note in the principal amount of HK$42,000,000
with conversion price of HK$0.24 (after adjustment of
share subdivision) to the related companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group effected the
following material non-recurring transaction:

(i) On 3 June 2015, the Company issued the 2014 Convertible
Note in the principal amount of HK$85,401,768 with
conversion price of HK$0.24 (after adjustment of share
subdivision) to the related companies.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year is approximately
HK$11,880,000 (2015: approximately HK$7,625,000) as
disclosed in notes 12 and 13.

e B RRME

BHE-_ZT—XF+=-A=+—H
46,781 N THFE (@)
HEEALZXS (M)
B -

(a) BITERBREFRZFMBE LGRER
W?Fﬁﬁgjﬁﬁfkfff\ﬁﬁztu% MIRTTZ T
BT (ZZT— A F 441,779,000 7T ) °

tEREN EEBEREEAEY—HEAKR
NAEEARBEMN2ENHBEA RTHK
HEBUEAREARRESHBEEIR

ZEMER-RIEAENBEA LBHBE
SR R 2 AR -

RAEE  REELIEEHESFE LIRS
HffB AR 2 EEREAE A -

TSR BEREREBETREF=FFF
E%MZMYW T REMEREE -

(@

BHE_T—XRXF+-_A=+—HIFE"
REBDETTIERELETURS

() ARR-ZZE—AR"F=ZA+RB AQF
% TTK@%@ /342,000,000 T2 — &
—AFEURBREERETHEERR  #EiR
BR0.24B T (KIRMIFMEFARE) o

BE_ZT-RAF+-_A=1+— EIJJ:@F
AEBEETTIEALELER

) RZE—RAFANA=ZRH ARAIET
K& %8 /485,401,768 L 2 — T —
FAIRBREETHEEAR EREA
0.24% 7T (KR MHIFMFRE) -

FTEEEASHRMN

Emum?uwaﬁmﬁz%'%%&,\m
TEZEEEERERFEANGT I ALY
£11,880,0008 . (=& — ﬂﬁ-m
7,625,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

47.SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

47.51 B A 7]

Proportion of nominal
value of issued
share capital/registered

Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
SEMRIR  EERIRME AARFBERTRAEE/
a8 E 3R LEREHEMEXR AMERTEL S TEER
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-1f
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E#& Gk B &
Delight Link Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - 100% - Provision of
Enterprises Limited administrative
services to group
companies
MEGLFXARAF 0 TRRA2ET EEINGE
TBR%
Spring Chance Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
KEARAT EERUEE TRRKNIET REER
ABEBIERBBAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Industrial property
(transliterated as Taicang RMB80,000,000 development
Keycharm Storage
Company Limited#)
ARERERBERAR +E dMERARY ERISXAYE
80,000,0007T
ABRREMNESHERAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100% Trading of goods
(transliterated as RMB5,000,000
Taicang Haopu Trading
Company Limited#)
AEENEHBERRA  HE AMERARE EmEH
5,000,0007C
LEEBERELA PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of
BRAHE RMB5,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as Shanghai
Yousheng Investment
Consulting Limited#)
HEhRBRERR H AMERARE REBRERS
BRAF 5,000,0007C
HERRER AR PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of
BRAE RMB1,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as Shanghai
Junning Investment
Consulting Limited#)
FRRBERERS H HMERARY REERRS
BRATE 1,000,0007T
Greater China Financing ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of
Limited investment services
AP ERERRAF 0 ERRAVET RUERERY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

47.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued and fully

47.MT B R~ &) (%)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ML K ERTRAR KARAFMBHERTRAEE
£8 EXHH LERES HEBEXR AMEREEL A TEXH
2016 2015
—E-RE —h#E
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=3 A& B %

Greater China Wealth & ~ HK Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of insurance
Risk Management HK$ 1,000,000 brokerage services
Limited (Formerly known
as Prominence Wealth &

Risk Management Co.,
Limited)

APEERERFRAR FE AMER RERB LIRS
(R IRRE IR & 2 1,000,000% 7
BRRAE)

Prominence Financials HK Registered capital - 100% = - Provision of
Limited HK$18,000,000 securities brokerage

services

BRERARAF B A MER RUBHELRSE

18,000,000/ 7T

Prominence Asset HK Registered capital - 100% = - Provision of assets
Management Limited HK$1,000,000 management

services

REREEERBERRA FAE A MER RUEEEEERE

1,000,000 7

siA E?ﬁ*ﬁlﬁéﬁﬁ PRC Registered capital - 100% = - Provision of finance
BRA RMB100,000,000 referral services
(transliterated as (Beijing
Xin Nuo Wei Assets
Management Limited#)

IR f:&%f*ﬁzﬁ%%@ HE TMERARE RESBEN RS
BRR 100,000,000 7T

*  The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in this fORXNERNENTFEEAEZEMIAAR

report for reference only and should not be regarded as its

official English name.

BE TEESELAR

&L R

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERINHEERAREEXEARTEFEEN
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results BEENARAIMBARI -EFRA JH

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

o

HpEARNFBEEER

AR E) AV

RER BRENBARCBEITEMERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H
48.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  48.FAKT B A Rt #Ezs e e
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (SLEPNG] ,AIE
The Company b /N
2016 2015
—E-XEF —hF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ETRR D - A AR 279,739 41,325
Disposal & = (41,323)
Acquisition Wy i 96,863 279,737
Less: impairment loss recognised o ERRBEERE (279,739) (2)
96,863 279,737
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UK B B N B FRIE 856,127 397,177
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERBEEE (532,723) (215,319)
323,404 181,858
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < B B~ Bl R IE 744 355

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and are repayable on demand.

@ Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016

FEU, e AP B &
NMBRERIER -

AIRASEER 25



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

49.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 49. 78R A BT 15 & K

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RFE —ZFT—AHF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FET FE& T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LN NGI o 96,863 279,737
Interests in associates Rt E R R - 302,278
Contingent consideration receivable FEW S A RAE 15,102 =
111,965 582,015
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NETE ] 235,096 181,858
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits E b fE W3R8 « TN R IB K IE & 605 5,941
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRNIRE 105,595 475,747
341,296 663,546
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b N RIB R FEERTE A 806 1,770
Deferred consideration FIERA(E 96,595 64,020
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN NGRS 744 355
98,145 66,145
Net current assets REBEEZFE 243,151 597,401
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBES 355,116 1,179,416
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Convertible notes Al AR R 5,070 54,885
Deferred consideration EERAE 24,283 63,900
29,353 118,785
Net assets REE 325,763 1,060,631
Capital and reserve BEXR#EE
Share capital AR A 4,380 3,234
Share premium R% 17 % B 1,659,410 1,263,986
Contributed surplus EHRHR 64,379 64,379
Convertible notes equity reserve A AR SRR o 9,775 101,192
Share options reserve MR 44,704 5,831
Accumulated losses R EE (1,456,885) (377,991)
Total equity XAt 325,763 1,060,631
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

50.RESERVES 50. 1 15

(a) Share premium (a) R iRE
Share premium represents premium arising from the i m B EREER O EEZER
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value. The BIIRNDMEEZRE RN EER
application of the share premium accounts is governed ZEAXBRE-NN—"FRAVER
by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the New RRARWFARMARE o
Bye-Laws of the Company.

(b) Share options reserve (b) BRERE
Share options reserve represents the portion of the grant BREREERNA R M ARITEERE
date fair value of the unexercised share options of the FIRH BB ATFERS -
Company.

(c) Convertible notes equity reserve () TRREE#RREE
The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity MR ERESHEEBEAARD T
component (conversion right) of convertible notes issued ATl EENER D (BH]E) o5
by the Company. Items included in convertible notes AR EEERFEENEE TS E
equity reserve will not reclassified to profit or loss. MoEEER-

(d) Translation reserve (d) EXRf#E
Exchange differences relating to the translation of BAEEBINEREEFEHEINE
the net assets of the Group's foreign operations from BEEMBAAEEZNEENERAE
their functional currencies to the Group's presentation HEBEERHEMZ2ERZERER
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive fEHREERT -RELRERITNEG
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such HENEZENHEBINEBERENR S
exchange differences accumulated in the translation HEER-

reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the foreign operations.

(e) Revaluation reserve (e) Efhf#EE
The revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains and BEMEHEERNEMEZERAEREE
losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale BRI EERmEEMES 2 25T
financial assets that have been recognised in other mMER - BELERENHLES R
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to BEXZFAHLECHEERRT
profit or loss when those available-for-sale financial assets RRER HFHEESENI>EER
are disposed of or are determined to be impaired. 7 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

50.RESERVES (Continued)

(f) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in the PRC comprising the
Group, it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profits of the PRC the subsidiaries and
associates, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing the net
profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
fund reaches 50% of the share capital of the PRC the
subsidiaries and associates, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years' losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing
new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares
currently held by them, provided that the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of share capital.

51.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

On 2 February 2017, in relation to the acquisition of
Access Group, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) to the
sale and purchase agreement with the vendors and the
guarantor to amend certain terms and conditions of the
sale and purchase agreement (the “Amendments”). The
Amendments include the amendments to the payment
terms, the amendments to the Profit Guarantee and the
adjustment mechanism to the consideration. Please refer
to the announcement for details of the Supplemental
Agreement dated 2 February 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

51.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

51.¥R <5 HA1& E18 (&)

(i) ZRAARBEMS-_FT—XRFLA

(i) Reference is made to the announcements of the

Company dated 22 July 2016 and 18 August 2016 in
relation to the legal actions taken against Xinsheng,
Shanghai Kuailu and Zhongyuan.

On 22 February 2017, the legal advisers of the Company
in the PRC received three decisions issued by the SAC
to suspend the three arbitration claims (“Arbitration
Claims”) initiated by Shanghai Yousheng and Shanghai
Junning against Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and
Zhongyuan in August 2016 (“Suspension Decisions”).

According to the Suspension Decisions, SAC was notified
that (i) Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and Zhongyuan are
involved in the criminal investigation conducted by one
public security authority of Shanghai City, PRC; and (ii)
the shares of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were freezed by
PRC public security authority. As such, it was stated that
such circumstances would create obstacles for submitting
evidence to SAC, and SAC agreed to suspend the
Arbitration Claims with effect from 21 February 2017.

As advised by the legal advisers of the Company in the
PRC, the suspension of the Arbitration Claims shall not
prejudice the rights of the Company, Shanghai Yousheng
and Shanghai Junning in such claims. The Board
considers that the suspension of the Arbitration Claims
shall not create adverse impact to the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

51.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(i) On 7 March 2017, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with vendors, pursuant to which the direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire entire equity interest in a target company (the
"Target Company”). A wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Target Company is a corporation licenced and approved
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") under
the SFO under a licence to carry on Type 4 regulated
activity under the SFO (Advising on Securities) and Type 9
regulated activity under the SFO (Asset Management). The
cash consideration for Target Company is HK$8,000,000.

At the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the conditions set out in the sale and
purchase agreement has not yet fulfilled.

(iv) On 8 February 2017 and 6 March 2017, the share options
were exercised to subscribe for a total of 195,680,000
new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price of
HK$0.232 per share. The Company allotted and issued
195,680 000 ordinary shares to the grantees.

52.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to
equity holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for (i) a subsidiary registered under the
Insurance Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “ICO")
which are subject to the relevant minimum capital requirement;
and (i) two subsidiaries which are regulated entities under the
SFO and subject to the relevant minimum paid-up share capital
and minimum liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the
“SF(FR)R"). Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, the
capital level of these entities to ensure compliance with the
minimum capital requirements under the SF(FR)R and ICO.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

52.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 52. B AN B IR ()
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's BHE-_Z-—R"F+A=+T—HLEFE"
strategy remained unchanged. The Group monitors capital AEENKBRIEETH AEFEREER
on the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as BELEREEER R XNIREEEE
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of BRIARRRIEE AE(hERETE -

the Company. The management considers the gearing ratio
at the year ended date is as follows:

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year EREERBNFEANEARABLRIT
ended date is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Total borrowings BEEE 113,066 277,535
Equity attributable to owners of the CompanyZ~ 2R B1HEHE A FE(E #E o 421,227 1,161,745
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 27% 24%
53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3.2/ T A
53a. Categories of financial instruments 53a. ¢RI T EDHE
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —E—FF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Financial assets EWMEE
Fair value through profit or loss BRBREATEYER
— Contingent consideration receivable -FE AR E 15,102 =
Loans and receivables EREERFRIA
— Loans and interests receivables - EFEF B 37,061 359,698
— Trade and other receivables — e U BR 3k &% B Ath i We skB 31,379 2,296
— Deposits 1% 5,311 9,942
— Cash held on behalf of clients -REFPHEZH2 15,746 -
— Pledged bank deposits -EERRITEFER 27,918 35,811
— Bank balances and cash -RTHEHRERS 240,969 524,661
Available-for-sale financial assets At EsHEE 58,475 -
431,961 932,408
Financial liabilities eHmas
— Trade and other payables — FE AT BR 3R % HL A JE 5 0IE 41,136 18,509
— Borrowings -5 113,066 277,535
— Deferred consideration —RERE 120,878 127,920
— Convertible notes - A AR IR 5,070 54,885
280,150 478,849
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

53b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed
to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and procedures to reflect changes
in markets and products.

The Group’s major financial instruments include loans
and interests receivables, contingent consideration
receivable, trade and other receivables, cash held on
behalf of clients, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables, borrowings,
deferred consideration and convertible notes. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

e B RRME

BE-F-AF+-A=+—8
5.2 T A (@)
S3h.emEREEBEERBE

REB 2 XA Z A ER B %
EXBE RN G AEREER
FIA2E /Y B B sk Bl ke 4 & - A HE LB
DE@MEBZL MEERRAR
e AR R 2 R - it A& B3
HEFRR R K B 32 EHEE
TERERERAEEHHRRIEET
MEZ=-

ANEE HIE R R ERERR B LS
TABER REEERR LR LT
BEE ARERERILEFE LR
AR RNEBETE R ERAREER
RNMEFIARBRTIZ & EmEL -

AEBNTIECRTIABRFERKER
EAE  BEEARE BEERRE
REKHIE KEPREzHE &
MRTFER RITBHKRNEE  BAER
REMEMNRE EE BEERER
ARERBE-ZERMTANFER
HEAMERE - B%Fe/m T AHERE
MERBRET SRR (B¥ERR  FIX
Rk M EMERRR)  E5RR MR
PETER - HEZFABROBKE
RIX-BEEBEEMERZSTAR
AR K2 B M8 280 B 1 8 & RO 0

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade receivables from
warehouse storage, insurance brokerage and general trading
business, the management of the Group has a credit policy
in place for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts on an ongoing
basis. The Group only extends credit to customers based on
careful evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions and
credit history. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivables at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit terms. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments and current abilities to pay and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50% (31
December 2015: 100%) and 100% (31 December 2015:
100%) of trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the warehouse storage business. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 100% (31 December 2015: nil)
and 100% (31 December 2015: nil) of trade receivables was
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the general trading business.
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 34% (31
December 2015: nil) and 99% (31 December 2015: nil) of
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively within the
insurance brokerage business. These five largest customers of
respective business segments have good historical repayment
records and low default rates. Management perform periodic
evaluations to ensure the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—-ZT— < F+_A=+—H

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk on securities brokerage
business and loan financing business and other financial
services, the directors of the respective operating subsidiaries
compile the credit and risk management policies, to approve
credit limits and to determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent receivables. In addition, the directors of
the respective operating subsidiaries review the recoverable
amount of trade receivable and the receivables from margin
clients are secured by client’s pledged securities which are
listed equity securities in Hong Kong, as disclosed in note
24 respectively on an individual and collective basis at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 100% (31
December 2015: 18.07% from five largest customers) of
loans and interests receivables from loan financing business
was due from the Group’s four largest customers as at
31 December 2016. The management is of the view that
the allowance made is adequate taking into account the
historical experience in the collection of loans and interest
receivables from these largest customers. The Group does not
have significant concentration of credit risk on receivables
from securities brokerage business, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk as most of its monetary assets and monetary
liabilities are denominated in the functional currency of
the individual group entity. The management is of the
opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk is minimal. Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk
sensitivity analysis is presented. The significant balance
carried in the translation reserve account is occasioned
by the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries into the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group at each
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

53.2 @ T A (@)
HIEEKR (F)

(i) FIE R

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate borrowings and loans receivables.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to receivables from cash and margin clients,
cash held on behalf of clients and bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming that the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
points (2015: 100 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2015:
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the net effect of Group’s post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
increase/decrease by HK$1,716,000 (post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2015: decrease/increase by
HK$2,829,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its loans and interests
receivables, bank deposits and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities which are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets. The fair value
of these financial instruments will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the changes
in the closing market prices of the relevant listed equity
securities. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and in PRC. Listed
investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations. The directors manages this risk exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2015: Nil) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the Company’s loss after taxation
for the year would increase/decrease by HK$4,172,000
(2015: Nil), as a result of changes in the fair value of
listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the price change had occurred at the reporting date
and has been applied to the Company’s investments at
that date. In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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53.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 53. 2@ T A (&)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure
compliance with FRR. In the management of the liquidity
risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitors the current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants regularly to ensure sufficient working
capital are maintained and adequate committed lines of
funding from reputable financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirement.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

53.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity table TEELE
Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 1-3 3 months than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2016
RZZE-RE
mEEH AR +t=B=t+-H
BBRA= SR—EA -2Zfif Zf@AZE-¥ —-E0E  BRERELE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
2016 ZE-RE
Non-derivative financial FTESRARE
liabilities
Trade payables and MR R E MR FUE
other payables - 40,852 - 284 - 41,136 41,136
Borrowings - fixed rate EE -8 6.66% 11,701 1,069 49,827 65,027 127,624 113,066
Convertible notes RRER - THE
- non-interest bearing - - - - 5,070 5,070 5,070
Deferred consideration BERERE - THE
- non-interest bearing - - - 96,595 24,283 120,878 120,878
52,553 1,069 146,706 94,380 294,708 280,150
Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 1-3 3 months than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2015
R-Z-1E
mEFH R +ZA=1+-H
EEA X SR—{E A —-E=fdf ZERE-f —FE RERERE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR TAT ThEx TAR FAR FAT
2015 —E-%f
Non-derivative financial FiTEemAaE
liabilities
Other payables Hth R - 17,602 - 907 - 18,509 18,509
Borrowings - fixed rate B8 - E8 9.68% 65,452 50,598 93,149 92,108 301,307 277,535
Convertible notes RRER - Tit 8
- non-interest bearing - - - - 54,885 54,885 54,885
Deferred consideration EERE - TR
- non-interest bearing - - - 64,020 63,900 127,920 127,920
83,054 50,598 158,076 210,893 502,621 478,849

RAESBMERABRIF | T RFFRH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—H

54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 5.~ F{EETE

() AEEHEERAFEFAENERE

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at

fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016

EHATE

AEESH S BEER SRS HFE
AFEHE FREHNAEEZE
SHEERGMEEL ATFENER
(EERRANHERNREALRE) -

R-B—AE+=A=+—-ANAYT
E2

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B F=R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTERx FTER TEx
Financial assets CHEE
Available-for-sale investments: [t HE®RE :
— Listed equity securities - EmRAES
(Note a) (PH3Ta) 30,655 - - 30,655
- Wealth management -HEEREM
products (note b) (MizEDb) - - 16,751 16,751
Contingent consideration SHARE (FHsEc)
(note ¢) - - 15,102 15,102
Total szt 30,655 - 31,853 62,508

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The valuation techniques and key inputs used of the listed
equity securities, classified as the available-for-sale financial
assets, for level 1 fair value measurement are quoted bid
prices in an active market.

(b) The investment principal is RMB15,000,000 and it is fair
valued using a discounted cash flow approach and main
input used by the Group is estimated yield rate written in
contract with the counterparty. The fair value is within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy.

() The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
is based on the valuations performed by an independent
professional valuer, using a Monte Carlo simulation, which
are reviewed by and approved by the directors of the
Company.

As the Profit Guarantee relating to the acquisition of
Access Group, covers period of more than one year,
hence there are more interactions to be assessed for the
results. Monte Carlo simulation is therefore adopted as
the simulation produces distribution of possible outcome
values. By assuming probability distributions, variables can
have different probabilities of different outcomes occurring.
Probability distributions are a much more realistic way of
describing uncertainty in variables of the result.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the contingent consideration receivable are based
on the management’s best estimate. The value of the
contingent consideration receivable varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

54 N FEEETE (#®)

() UEEMEERAFEAENERE
ENDFE(E)

i :

(@) RE-—RAFEAEMS  FIRATH
HESRMEEZ EMRAZZMA MG
BERMEREZHABEREET SN
BEARE-

(b) ®EARE A ARK15000,0005T  WE
BiInERERELATERAFTE A&
EXRBzEEH ABBEAEEFHA
RIAHRETHMMEREX -2 F
EBRRAFESHRTHEIR-

(O BURIARENRAFEDREBIE
EEEMRARERERIEETH
MEME YHARAEEEHN L
i

A A B WS Access £ B 2 m AR 78
MEBR—FHE WATHEEZRSH
NEBER - SHREEBREZR TR
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54.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

54 N FEEETE (#®)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at () AREHEERAFEFENERE
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) ENATE(E)
The key inputs used of contingent consideration RBEHR RBIRATFEFEMS
receivable for the level 3 fair value measurement at the MEKSAREMAEIEH AZREN
end of reporting period are as follows: I
FEAAHE
Significant unobservable input 2016 Range oA BB —E-NFEHE
Volatility 32.25%-46.36% ] 32.25%-46.36%
Discount rate 14.41%-18.04% Prif =R 14.41%-18.04%
Time to settlement date 0.19-2.19 BT B HA 5 85 By 0.19-2.19
Due to the variety of basis of determination used in profit HRANENEINEEERZTEL
forecast, it is not practicable to provide any meaningful Bl A KRATRERMEBRREAED
sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions WS 16 2 RIR B ge 11 R I3 A
concerning future profitability of acquired business REQATFTEEH BEZENEAR
and the potential impact on the fair value change FMEHERNAERNGRE DT -
on contingent consideration receivable at the end of
reporting period.
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) E3MAFEHFEZHER
31 December 2016 —B-AE+=ZA=+—H
Available-
for-sale
wealth
management Contingent
products consideration Total
AftHE
NEEEEM HARE #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R THERT FET
At the beginning of the year 4 - - -
Additions NE 16,751 - 16,751
Arising in acquisition of AU B AR ELE
subsidiaries (note 36(a)) (P 7E36(a)) - 15,889 15,889
Change in fair value recognised ~ FRRIBERERHN A TE
in profit or loss during the year b - (787) (787)
At the end of the year FR 16,751 15,102 31,853

(i) LI A A FEIBN S REER AN
ZA¥E

ARRIEZRE WEHKAI R Z
TREELERAGENRAERHE
RZE-—RERZZT-—AF+_H
=t BHORTVELEEAEZR-

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost are not material different from
their fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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B E
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
—E-R"E T-hF ZIT-NF —IT—=F ZT—-F
+=H T=A T=A W — T=A
=+—H == = = = =+—H
LEE LFE EFE LHFE LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT FHET TET TAT
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 75,175 115,956 558133 32,963 118,337
Cost of sales #HE B (35,636) - (42,090) (21,544) (108,924)
Gross profit EH 39,539 115,956 13,043 11,419 9,413
Other income, gains HaplgA - K&
and losses B8 (218,969) 121,549 4,098 4,262 5,760
Selling and HE R KA
distribution costs - - - (659) (106)
Administrative and THREMEE
other operating 2
expenses (82,187) (83,304) (31,391) (29,416) (33,002)
Other expenses H it F 2 - - = S (5,753)
Finance costs BT ACR (15,200) (29,398) (13,365) (15,731) (20,219)
Share of (loss) profit of  FE{LEE & A A
associates (E518) & F) (98,410) 9,324 - - -
Impairment loss on N AN
interests in associates ZREREE (267,410) - - - -
Net loss on HUBER A AR
de-consolidation of )N
subsidiaries ZIBEFE (324,478) - - - -
(Loss) profit before tax ~ BrFi Al (&518)
ikl (967,115) 134,127 (27,615) (30,125) (43,907)
Income tax PTG (3,435) (17,997) 8,221 = =
(Loss) profit for the year &R (518 ) % F (970,550) 116,130 (19,394) (30,125) (43,907)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company A2 F#A A (970,550) 116,130 (19,575) (30,045) (43,817)
Non-controlling interests  JE¥2 A% 25 - = 181 (80) (90)
(970,550) 116,130 (19,394) (30,125) (43,907)
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BEBE
31.12.2016  31.12.2015  31.12.2014  31.12.2013  31.12.2012
“E-RE —T—HF —T—mF —T—=F —T—-F
+=A +=A +=A +=A +=A
=+—-H =+—H =+—H =+—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAET FAET FET FAET
ASSETS AND EEHER
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 706,346 1,670,266 309,660 388,499 368,954
Total liabilities BafE (284,343) (508,521) (200,195) (257,400) (211,375)
Non-controlling interests  3E¥2 A% 25 (776) = - (196) (269)
Equity attributable to iN/NIEZ ZEDN
owners of the Company  JE{h#E %S 421,227 1,161,745 109,465 130,903 157,310

@ Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2016



IS FHE G Rl JB AT BR /A )

GREATER CHINA FINaNcIAL HoLDINGS LIMITED




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



